DECISIONS AND REPORTS ON RULINGS
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LABOR
FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
Pursuant to Executive Order 11491

Volume 2
January 1, 1972, through December 31, 1972

This Volume includes Assistant Secretary Decisions
Nos. 123 - 234 and Reports on Rulings Nos. 44 - 52.

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Labor-Management Services Administration




-
=
- #
5w *
. F
3
=
v
. “




DECISIONS AND REPORTS ON RULINGS
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LABOR
FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
Pursuant to Executive Order 11491

Volume 2
January 1, 1972, through December 31, 1972

This Volume includes Assistant Secretary Decisions
Nos. 123 - 234 and Reports on Rulings Nos. 44 - 52.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Peter J. Brennan, Secretary

LABOR-MANAGEMENT SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
Paul J. Fasser, Jr.,
Assistant Secretary of Labor for Labor-Management Relations

OFFICE OF FEDERAL LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
Louis S. Wallerstein, Director






PREFACE

This Volume of Decisions and Reports on Rulings of the Assistant Secretary of Labor for Labor-
Management Relations Pursuant to Executive Order 11491%, covers the period from January 1, 1972,
through December 31, 1972. It includes: (1) Summaries of Decisions and the full text of Decisions of the
Assistant Secretary after formal hearing or stipulated record (A/SLMR Nos. 123 - 234); and (2) Reports on
Rulings of the Assistant Secretary (originally referred to as Reports on Decisions), which are published
summaries of significant or precedent-setting rulings by the Assistant Secretary on requests for review of
actions taken at the field level (R A/S Nos. 44 - 52).

*Executive Order 11491 was amended by Executive Order 11616 on August 26, 1971, and by Executive Order 11636 on
December 17, 1971.
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NUMERICAL TABLE OF DECISIONS OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY

SHOWING DATE ISSUED, AREA OFFICE CASE NUMBER(S) AND TYPE OF CASE

A/SLMR NO. CASE NAME

123,

124,

125.

126.

127.

128.

129.

Mississippi National Guard,
172nd Military Airlift Group (Thompson Field)
and Mississippi National Guard (Camp Shelby)

United States Air Force, Department of Defense,
Non-Appropriated Fund Activities,

4756th Air Base Group,

Tyndall Air Force Base, Florida

NASA Management Audit Office

Department of Transportation, Federal
Aviation Administration, Houston Area Office =~
Southwest Region, Houston, Texas

Naval Underwater Systems Center,
Newport Laboratory,
Newport, Rhode Island

Department of the Navy,
United States Naval Weapons Center,
China Lake, California

Department of the Navy,
Mare Island Naval Shipyard,
Vallejo, California

AC
CU
DR
OBJ
RO

ULP

TYPE OF CASE
Amendment of Certification
Clarification of Unit
Decertification of Exclusive Representative
Objections to Election
Certification of Representative (Labor Organization Petition)
Standards of Conduct
Unfair Labor Practice 1

DATE ISSUED

1-13-72

1-13-72

1-24-72

1-24-72

1-25-72

1-28-72

1-28-72

AREA OFFICE
CASE NO(S).

TYPE OF CASE */

41-1723
41-1741

42-1495

46-1848

63-2508

31-5222

72-2238

70-1876

RO

RO

RO

ULP

RO

Cu

Ccu

PAGE

27

31

34

47

58

60

64



A/SLMR NO.

CASE NAME

130.

131.

132.

133.

134.

135.

136.

137.

138.

139,

140.

United States Naval Air Station,
Moffet Field, California

United States Department of Defense,
United States Army,

United States Material Command,

Red River Army Depot

Department of Health, Education, and Welfare,
Center for Disease Control,
Atlanta, Georgia

Department of Army,
United States Military Academy,
West Point, New York

Department of the Air Force,
McConnell Air Force Base, Kansas

Department of the Air Force,

Arnold Engineering Development Center,
Air Force Systems Command,

Arnold Air Force Station, Tennessee

Environmental Protection Agency,
Perrine Primate Laboratory

United States Department of Agriculture,
Agricultural Stabilization and
Conservation Service

Department of the Army Directorate,
United States Dependent Schools,
European Area (USDESEA)

APO, New York

Department of the Navy and
The U.S. Naval Weapons Station

Department of the Navy,

Naval Training Device Center,
Procurement Services Office,
Orlando, Florida

DATE ISSUED

1-31-72

1-31-72

2-09-72

2-28-72

2-28-72

2-28-72

2-29-72

2-29-72

2-29-72

3-06-72

3-20-72

AREA OFFICE

CASE NO(S).

70-1882

63-2534

40-2312

30-2547

60-2312

41-2101

42-1450

60-2151

46-1807

22-2330
22-2334

42-1604

TYPE OF CASE

RO

RO

RO

RO

CU

RO

ULP

OBJ

ULP

ULP

RO

PAGE

67

70

73

78

81

83

87

106

122

134

151 -



A/SLMR NO,

CASE NAME

141.

142,

143,

144,

145.
146,

147.

148.

149,

150.

Internal Revenue Service,
National Office, Office of
International Operations

Social Security Administration,
Bureau of Hearings and Appeals

U.S. Department of the Interior,
Pacific Coast Region, Geological
Survey Center, Menlo Park, California

Army and Air Force Exchange Service,
Keesler Consolidated Exchange and
Local 2670, American Federation of
Government Employees, AFL-CIO

Department of the Interior,
United States Park Police,
National Capital Parks

General Services Administration,
Region 10, Interagency Motor Pool No. 2,
Portland, Oregon

California Air National Guard
Headquarters, 146th Tactical Airlift Wing,
Van Nuys, California

U.S. Army School/Training Center,
Fort Gordon, Georgia

United States Department of the Air Force,
434th S,0.,W., Air Force Reserve,
Grissom Air Force Base, Peru, Indiana

Department of the Navy,
Naval Air Station, Corpus Christi, Texas

DATE ISSUED

3-20-72

3-21-72

3-21-72

3-28-72

3-29-72

3-29-72

4-25-72

4-25-72

4-27-72

4-27-72

AREA OFFICE

CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
22-2591 RO 153
22-2637 RO 157
70-1829 OBJ 160
41-1905 ULP 170
41-2130
22-2640 RO 190
71-1871 RO 194
72-2829 RO 199
40-2596 ULP 201
50-5168 RO 215
63-2657 RO ) 219



A/SLMR NO. CASE NAME
151. National Weather Service,
Central Region and
National Weather Service
152, Treasury Department,
Bureau of Customs, Region IV
153. Portland Area Office, Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
154. Long Beach Naval Shipyard
155. Department of the Navy,
Naval Air Rework Facility, Jacksonville, Florida
156, Department of Agriculture,
Forest Service, Sierra National Forest
157. U.S., Army Transportation Center,
Fort Eustis, Virginia
158. Department of the Navy, Naval Air
Rework Facility, NAS, Alameda, California
159. General Service Employees Union, :
Local No. 73, Affiliated with Service
Employees International Union, AFL-CIO
160, Headquarters, U.S. Army Aviation
Systems Command, St. Louis, Missouri
161, United States Department of the Treasury,
Office of Regional Counsel, Western Region
162. St. Louis Region, United States Civil
Service Commission, St. Louis, Missouri
163. Department of the Army, Medical

Department Activity Fort Huachuca,
Fort Huachuca, Arizona

DATE_ISSUED

4-28-72

4-28-72

4-28-72

4-28-72

5-08-72

5-09-72

5-11-72

5-11-72

5=-17=-72

5-18-72

5-18-72

5-23-72

5-31-72

AREA OFFICE
CASE NO(S).

60-2311
60-2368
22-2417
42-1448
71-1770

72=-2544

42-1536

70-2368

46-1745

70-2302

50-5154

62-2443

70-1877

62-2659

72-2831

TYPE OF

CASE PAGE
RO 223
RO 229
RO 235
ULP 239
ULP 247
RO 251
0BJ 253
RO 265
s 268
cu 278
RO 282
RO 289
RO 294



A/SLMR NO.

CASE NAME

164.

165.

166.

167.

168.
169.

170.

171.

172.

173.

The American Federation of Government
Employees, AFL-CIO,
John F. Griner, National President

Headquarters and Installation
Support Activity (AVSCOM)

Department of the Army, Headquarters,
Camp McCoy, Wisconsin, St. Louis
Metropolitan Area, St, Louis, Missouri

Army and Air Force Exchange Service,
Fort Huachuca Exchange Service,
Fort Huachuca, Arizona

Headquarters, United States Army
Aviation Systems Command

Department of the Treasury, Bureau
of Customs, Boston, Massachusetts

Department of Interior,
Bureau of Land Management,
Riverside District and Land Office

Statue of Liberty National Monument,
National Park Service,
Liberty Island, New York

U.S. Department of Agriculture,
Agricultural Marketing Service,

Grain Division, Grain Inspection Branch,
Commodity Inspection Branch, and

Market News Branch and Seed Branch,
Northern Regional Office,

Minneapolis Field Office

Federal Aviation Administration,
Department of Tramsportation

AREA OFFICE

DATE ISSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
5=31-72 50-4750 S 297
6-23-72 62-2722 RO 302
6-23-72 62-2361 RO 304
6~26-72 72-2913 RO 306
6-27-72 62-2903 ULP 309
6-26-72 31-3306 OBJ 312
6-26-72 72-2763 RO 328
7-13-72 30-3983 RO ) 334
7-13-72 51-1978 RO 338

51-2065
51-2066
7=-20-72 22-2603 RO 340



AREA OFFICE

A/SLMR NO. CASE NAME DATE ISSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
174. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 7-27=72 63-2903 RO 353

Fort Bliss Area Exchange,
Fort Bliss, Texas

175. United States Civil Service Commission, 7-28-72 70-2417 RO 356
San Francisco Region

176. General Services Administration, 7-28-72 63-3231 RO 360
Region 7

177. Department of the Army, Military 7-28-72 32-1704 OBJ 362

Ocean Terminal, Bayonne, New Jersey

178. Anchorage International/Lake Hood Tower, 7-28-72 71-2064 DR 371
Federal Aviation Administration,
U.,S. Department of Transportation

179. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 7-28-72 63-2947 RO 373
Altus Air Force Base Exchange

180. Navy Exchange, U.S. Naval Air Statiom, 7-28-72 31-4623 ULP 376
Quonset Point, Rhode Island

181. Naval Weapons Station, 7-28-72 22-2881 RO 384
Yorktown, Virginia

182. Adjutant General, State of Georgia, 8-03-72 40-3147 ULP 387
Air Technician Detachment at
Dobbins Air Force Base, Georgia,
and Travis Field, Savannah, Georgia

183. Department of the Army, Headquarters, 8-03-72 62-2905 RO 396
U.S. Army Training Center Engineer,
Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri

184, Federal Aviation Administration, 8-04-72 30-3213 OBJ 399
New York Air Route Traffic Control Center

185. The Department of the Treasury, 8-07-72 22-2828 RO 403
U.S. Savings Bonds Division



AREA OFFICE

A/SLMR NO. CASE NAME DATE 1SSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
186, Internal Revenue Service, 8-09-72 40-3105 RO 408

Birmingham District

187. U.S. Department of the Army, 8-24-72 63-3369 RO 414
Red River Army Depot,
Lone Star Army Ammunition Plant,
Texarkana, Texas

188. United States Army Infantry Center, 8-24-72 40-3573 RO 417
Non-Appropriated Fund Activity,
Fort Benning, Georgia

189. U.S. Department of Agriculture, 8-24-72 40-3521 RO 422
Richard B. Russell Research Center

190. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 8-24-72 72-2651 AC 424
Golden Gate Exchange Region,
Storage and Distribution Branch,
Norton Air Force Base, California

191. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 8-24-72 72-2967 RO 426
Norton Air Force Base Exchange,
Norton Air Force Base, California

192. Department of Health, Education and 8-24-72 22-2432 RO 429
Welfare (HEW), Health Services and 22-2530
Mental Health Administration (HSMHA),
Maternal and Child Health Services
and Federal Health Programs Service

193. Department of Transportation, National 8~24-72 22-2681 RO 433
Highway Traffic Safety Administration

194, Federal Aviation Administration, 8-24-72 42-1672 ULP 436
Jacksonville Air Route Traffic Control Center, 42-1673

and Federal Aviation Science and
Technological Association,
National Association of Government
Employees, Local R5-20



AREA OFFICE

A/SLMR NO. ) CASE NAME DATE ISSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
195. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 8-24-72 32-2461 Ccu 446

Dix-McGuire Consolidated Exchange,
Fort Dix, New Jersey

196. National Oceanic and 8-31-72 22-3387 RO 450
Atmospheric Administration,
Communications Operating Branch

197. Department of Justice, 8-31-72 50-5552 RO 452
United States Marshal's Office,
Northern District of Illinois

198. Department of Justice, 8-31-72 40-3429 RO 457
United States Marshal's Office,
Northern District of Georgia

199. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 9-01~72 63-2945 cu 462
Alamo Exchange Region,
Fort Sam Houston, Texas

200. Bethel Agency, Bureau of Indian Affairs, 9425-72 71-2062 RO 465
U.S. Department of Interior,
Bethel, Alaska

201. U.S. Naval Air Station, 9-25-72 31-5476 . RO 468
Quonset Point, Rhode Island

202. U.S. Department of Housing 9-25-72 50-5593 cu 471
and Urban Development,
Indianapolis, Indiana Area Office

203. U.S. Department of the Army, 9-25-72 32-2283 RO 473
Picatinny Arsenal, Dover, New Jersey

204, U.S. Department of Interior, 9-25-72 61-1545 RO 476
Bureau of Reclamation-Region 4,
Weber Basin Job Corps Civilian
Conservation Center, Ogden, Utah

205. Department of Agriculture, 9-25-72 41-2713 RO 481
Farmers Home Administration, Nashville, Tennessee



A/SLMR NO.

CASE NAME

206.

207.

208.

209.

210.

211.

212.

213.

214,

Department of the Army, U.S. Army
Engineer District, Mobile, Alabama

ACTION

Army and Air Force Exchange Service,
Alaskan Exchange System,

Southern District and Headquarters,
Elmendorf Air Force Base and

Fort Richardson, Anchorage, Alaska

Housing Division, Directorate of
Industrial Operations, Headquarters
9th Infantry Division and Fort Lewis,
Fort Lewis, Washington

United States Customs Service
Region IX, Chicago, Illinois

U.S. Department of Defense, Department of
the Army, Army Materiel Command,
Automated Logistics Management

Systems Agency

Department of Interior, Bureau of
Land Management, District Office,
Lakeview, Oregon

Department of the Army,
Defense Language Institute,
East Coast Branch

Internal Revenue Service,

Office of the District Director,
Jacksonville District,
Jacksonville, Florida

DATE ISSUED

9-26-72

9-26-72

9-29-72

9-29-72

9-29-72

10-30-72

10-30-72

10-30-72

10-30-72

AREA OFFICE
CASE NO(S).

TYPE OF CASE

40-3045
40-3064
40-3137
40-3492
40-3503

22-2800

71-2079

71-2289

52-2743

62-3093

71-2120

22-2878

42-1505

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

ULP

RO

CU

ULP

PAGE

486

495

498

502

506

512

515

520

523



AREA OFFICE

A/SLMR NO. CASE NAME DATE ISSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
215. U.S. Naval Rework Facility, 10-30-72 31-5475 RO 536

Quonset Point Naval Air Station,
Quonset Point, Rhode Island

216, United States Army Electronics Command, 10-31-72 32-2003 RO 540
Fort Monmouth, New Jersey 32-2235
32-2393
32-2432

217. Department of Treasury, Division of 10-31-72 40-3534 cu 546
Disbursement, Birmingham, Alabama .

218. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 11-22-72 72-3050 RO 548
Vandenberg Air Force Base Exchange,
Vandenberg Air Force Base, California

219. Army and Air Force Exchange Service, 11-22-72 60-3007 RO 551
Richards-Gebaur Consolidated Exchange,
Richards-Gebaur Air Force Base, Missouri,
/Whiteman Air Force Base Exchange,
Knob Noster, Missouri/

220. General Services Administration, 11-30-72 30-4659 RO 554
Region 2, New York, New York

221. 926th Tactical Airlift Group, U.S. Air 11-30-72 64-1803 RO 557
Force Reserve, Naval Air Station,
Belle Chasse, Louisiana

222, National Ocean Survey, Pacific Marine 11-30-72 22-3483 RO 564
Center and Atlantic Marine Center

223. NASA, Kennedy Space Center, 12-04-72 42-1762 ULP 566
Kennedy Space Center, Florida

224, United States Army Safeguard Logistics 12-04-72 40-3673 RO 581
Command and United States Army Safeguard 40-3674 {

Systems Command, Huntsville, Alabama

225. Illinois Air National Guard, 12-14-72 50-4752 ~ Ccu 587
182nd Tactical Air Support Group

10



AREA OFFICE

A/SLMR NO, CASE NAME DATE ISSUED CASE NO(S). TYPE OF CASE PAGE
226, United States Air Force, 12-15-72 42-1900 RO | 590

Non-Appropriated Fund Activities,
Tyndall Air Force Base, Florida

227. United States Department of Agriculture, 12-18-72 40-3628 RO 596
Forest Service, Francis Marion
and Sumter National Forest

228, Savanna Army Depot, and AMC Ammunition 12-18-72 50-8195 RO 605
Center, Savanna, Illinois 50-8197
229, United States Department of Commerce, 12-18-72 40-4186 RO 610

Economic Development Administration,
Southeastern Regional Office

230. Department of Transportation, Federal 12-18-72 63-3383 RO 613
Aviation Administration, Airway
Facilities Sector, Fort Worth, Texas

231. Federal Aviation Administration, 12-18-72 42-2109 RO 619
Jacksonville Air Route Traffic
Control Center

232, Federal Aviation Administration, Richmond 12-18-72 22-2701 RO 622
Air Traffic Control Tower (Byrd Tower) 22-2835
Roanoke Air Traffic Control Tower, and 22-2924

Washington Air Route Traffic Control Center

233. Federal Aviation Administration, 12-18-72 51-2243 RO 626
Minneapolis Air Route Traffic Control
Center, Farmington, Minnesota

234, Federal Aviation Administration, 12-18-72 42-1620 RO 629
Southern Region, 42-1648
Miami Air Route Traffic Control Center 42-1724
and Miami Airport Traffic Control Tower 42-1759
11

500-836 O - 78 -2






NUMERICAL TABLE OF REPORTS ON RULINGS OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY,

R A/S No.

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

CHALL

OBJ
REP
RO

ULP

TYPE OF CASE

1-17-72
1-20-72
1-20-72
1-20-72
1-20-72
2-15-72
2-29-72
8-17-72

8-18-72

Challenged Ballots Resolution

Objections to Election
Representation Matters

Certification of Representative (Labor Organization Petition)

Unfair Labor Practice

SHOWING DATE ISSUED AND TYPE OF CASE

DATE ISSUED

13

TYPE OF CASE */

RO
REP
ULP

ULP

OBJ
CHALL/OBJ

RO

PAGE
637
637
638
638
639
639
640
640

641






TABLE OF DECISIONS OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY ALPHABETICAL LISTING 1/

TITLE A/SLMR No(s). TITLE A/SLMR No(s).
ACTION 207 Air Force, Department of (cont.)
Agricultural Marketing Service 172 -- 436th S.,0.W., Air Force Reserve,
Grissom Air Force Base, Peru, Ind. 149
Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service 137
== 926th Tactical Airlift Group,
Agriculture, Department of Air Force Reserve, Naval Air Station,
Belle Chasse, La. 221
-- Agricultural Marketing Service 172
Airways Facilities Sector, FAA, Fort Worth, Tex. 230
-- Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service 137
Alamo Exchange Region, Fort Sam Houston, Tex. 199
~-- Farmers Home Administration, Nashville, Tenn, 205
Alaskan Exchange System (See: Army and Air Force
-- Forest Service, Francis Marion . Exchange Service)
and Sumter National Forest 227
Altus Air Force Base Exchange 179
-- Richard B. Russell Research Center 189
American Federation of Government Employees, The,
~= Sierra National Forest 156 AFL-CIO, John F. Griner, National President 164
-=- Stabilization and Conservation Service 137 Anchorage International/Lake Hood Tower, FAA 178
Air Force, Department of Army, Department of
-- Arnold Engineering Development Center, -= Aviation Systems Command Headquarters,
Air Force Systems Command, U.S. Army, St. Louis, Mo. 160, 168
Arnold Air Force Station, Tenn, 135
-- Camp McCoy Headquarters, St. Louis, Mo. 166
=~ McConnell Air Force Base, Kans, 134
-~ Corps of Engineers, Mobile, Ala, District 206
-= Non-Appropriated Fund Activities,
Tyndall Air Force Base, Fla. 226 -- Defense Language Institute,
East Coast Branch 213

~= Nonappropriated Fund Activities
4756th Air Base Group,
Tyndall Air Force Base, Fla,. 124

£7 To facilitate reference, listings in this Table contain only key words in the Activity's title. For complete and official case captions see
Numerical Table of Cases on page l.

15



TITLE

Army, Department of (cont.)

Directorate of Industrial Operationms,

Headquarters 9th Infantry and Fort Lewis

Electronics Command, Fort Monmouth, N.J.

Headquarters and Installation
Support Activity (AVSCOM)

Infantry Center,
Non-Appropriated Fund Activity,
Fort Benning, Ga.

Materiel Command, Automated
Logistics Management Systems Agency

Materiel Command, U.S.,
Red River Army Depot

Medical Department Activity,
Fort Huachuca, Fort Huachuca, Ariz.

Military Academy, U.S.,
West Point, N.Y.

Military Ocean Terminal, Bayonne, N.J.

Picatinny Arsenal, Dover, N.J.

Red River Army Depot,
Lone Star Army Ammunition Plant,
Texarkana, Tex.,

Safeguard Logistics Command,
and Safeguard Systems Command

Savanna Army Depot, Savanna, Ill.,
and AMC Ammunition Center,
Savanna, Il1,

A/SLMR No(s).

209

216

165

188

211

131

163

133

177

203

187

224

228

TITLE

Army, Department of (cont,)

16

School/Training Center, Army,
Ft. Gordom, Ga.

Training Center Engineer,
Headquarters, Fort Leonard Wood, Mo.

Transportation Center, U,S. Army,
Ft. Eustis, Va,

U.S. Dependent Schools,

European Area (USDESEA),

Army Directorate

9th Infantry Division, Headquarters,
Fort Lewis, Directorate of
Industrial Operations

and Air Force Exchange System

Alamo Exchange Region,
Fort Sam Houston, Tex.

Alaskan Exchange System
-- Southern District and Headquarters,
Elmendorf Air Force Base and
Fort Richardson, Anchorage, Alaska
Altus Air Force Base Exchange

Dix-McGuire Consolidated Exchange,
Fort Dix, N.J.

Fort Bliss Area Exchange,
Fort Bliss, Tex.

Ft. Huachuca Exchange Service

A/SLMR No(s).

148

183

157

138

209

199

208

179

195

174

167



TITLE
Army and Air Force Exchange Service (cont.)
-- Golden Gate Exchange Region,
Storage and Distribution Branch,
Norton Air Force Base, Calif.

-- Keesler Consolidated Exchange

-- Norton Air Force Base,
Exchange Service Storage and Distribution Branch

-- Norton Air Force Base Exchange,
Norton Air Force Base, Calif.

-- Richards-Gebaur Consolidated Exchange,
Richards-Gebaur Air Force Base, Mo.

-- Vandenberg Air Force Base Exchange,
Vandenberg Air Force Base, Calif.

-- Whiteman Air Force Base Exchange,
Knob Noster, Mo.

Arnold Engineering Development Center,
Air Force Systems Command,
Arnold Air Force Station, Tenn.

Aviation Systems Command Headquarters,
Army, St. Louis, Mo.

Belle Chasse, La, Naval Air Station,

Air Force Reserve,

926th Tactical Airlift Group

Bethel Agency, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Interior

California Air National Guard Headquarters,
146th Tactical Airlift Wing, Van Nuys, Calif,

Camp McCoy Headquarters, Army, St. Louis, Mo.

A/SLMR No(s).

190

144

190

191

219

218

219

135

160, 168

221

200

147

166

IITLE
Center for Disease Control, HEW, Atlanta, Ga.
Civil Service Commission

-- St. Louis Region, St. Louis, Mo.
-- San Francisco Region
Commerce, Department of

~- Economic Development Administration,
Southeastern Regional Office

-- National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration

-- National Ocean Survey,
Pacific Marine Center and
Atlantic Marine Center

-- National Weather Service,
Central Region

-~ National Weather Service,

Office of Meteorological Operations,
Communications Division,
Communications Operating Branch

Corps of Engineers (See: Army)

Customs, Bureau of (See: Treasury)

Defense, Department of

-- Air Force, Department of (See: Air Force)

-- Army, Department of (See: Army)

-- Army and Air Force Exchange
Service (See: Army and Air Force)

A/SLMR No(s).

132

162

175

229

222

151

196



TITLE
Defense, Department of (cont.)

-- National Guard Bureau (See:
National Guard)

-- Navy, Department of (See: Navy)
Defense Language Institute, East Coast Branch
Dix-McGuire Consolidated Exchange, Fort Dix, N.J.

Economic Development Administration,
Commerce, Southeastern Regional Office

Electronics Command, Army, Fort Monmouth, N.J.
Elmendorf Air Force Base, Alaskan Exchange System

Environmental Protection Agency,
Perrine Primate Laboratory

Farmers Home Administration, Nashville, Tenn.

Federal Aviation Administration (See:
Transportation) :

Federal Aviation Science and Technological
Association, Natienal Assoclation of Government
Employees, Local R5-20

Federal Health Programs Service, HEW

Forest Service, Francis Marion and
Sumter Natiomal Forest

Fort

-- Benning, U.S. Army Infantry Center,
Non-Appropriated Fund Activity

A/SLMR No(s).

213

195

229
216

208

136

205

194

192

227

188

Fort

TITLE
(cont.)

Bliss, Tex., Fort Bliss Area
Exchange

Dix, N.J., Dix=McGuire
Consolidated Exchange

Eustis, Va,, Transportation Center, U.S., Army

Gordon School/Training Center, Army

Huachuca Exchange Service, Army
and Air Force Exchange Service

Huachuca Medical Dept. Activity, Army
Ft. Huachuca, Ariz,

Leonard Wood, Mo., Headquarters,
Army Training Center Engineer

Lewis, Headquarters, 9th
Infantry Division,
Directorate of Industrial Operations

Monmouth Electronics Command, Army

Sam Houston, Tex., Alamo Exchange

General Services Administration

Region 2, New York, N.Y.
Region 7

Region 10, Interagency Motor Pool No. 2,
Portland, Oreg.

General Services Employees Union, Local No. 73,
Affiliated With Service Employees International
Union, AFL-CIO

18

A/SLMR No(s).

174

195
157

148

167

163

183

209

216

199

220

176

146

159



TLITLE
Geographical Survey Center, Pacific Coast Region,
Menlo Park, Calif.
Georgia Adjutant General, Air Technician
Detachment, Dobbins Air Force Base, Ga.,

and Travis Field, Savannah, Ga,

Golden Gate Exchange Region, Storage and
Distribution Branch, Norton Air Force Base, Calif,

Grissom Air Force Base
436th S,0,W,, Air Force Reserve

'Headquarters and Installation
Support Activity (AVSCOM), Army

Health, Education and Welfare, Department of

-=- Center for Disease Control
Atlanta, Ga,

-- Health Services and Mental
Health Administration

-= Social Security Administration

-- Bureau of Hearings and Appeals

Health Services and Mental Health Administration, HEW

-- Federal Health Programs Service

~- Maternal and Child Health Services
Housing and Urban Development, Department of

-- Indianapolis, Indiana Area Office

-~ Portland Area Office

A/SLMR No(s).

143

182

191

149

165

132

192

142

192

192

202

153

TLITLE
Illinois Air National Guard,
182nd Tactical Air Support Group
Indian Affairs, Bureau of, Bethel Agency, Interior

Infantry Center, Non-Appropriated Fund
Activity, Fort Benning, Ga,

Interior, Department of
~-- Geological Survey Center,
Pacific Coast Region,
Menlo Park, Calif,
-- Indian Affairs, Bureau of
-- Bethel Agency, Bethel, Alaska
-~ Land Management, Bureau of
-= District Office, Lakeview, Oreg,
== Riverside District and Land Office
-- National Park Service
-~ Statue of Liberty National Monument
-- Park Police, National Capital Parks
~-- Reclamation, Bureau of
~-- Region 4, Weber Basin Job Corps
Civilian Conservation Center,
Ogden, Utah

Internal Revenue Service (See: Treasury)

Jacksonville Air Traffic Control Center, FAA
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A/SLMR NoSs).

225

200

188

143

200

212

170

171

145

204

194, 231



TITLE A/SLMR No(s). TITLE A/SLMR No(s),

Job Corps Civilian Conservation Center, Military Ocean Terminal, Bayonne, N.J, 177
Weber Basin, Ogden, Utah 204 .

Minneapolis Air Route Traffic Control Center, FAA 233
Justice, Department of

Mississippi National Guard

-- United States Marshal's Office Thompson Field and Camp Shelby 123
-- Georgia, Northern District 198 Mobile, Ala, Army Engineer District 206
== Illinois, Northern District 197 National Aeronautics and Space Administrationm (NASA)

Keesler Consolidated Exchange, -- Kennedy Space Center 223
Army and Air Force Exchange Service 144
-- Management Audit Office 125
Kennedy Space Center 223
National Association of Government Employees,
Land Management, Bureau of, Interior Local R5-20, Federal Aviation Science and
Technological Association 194
-- District Office, Lakeview, Oreg, 212
National Capital Parks, U.,S. Park Police, Interior 145
-~ Riverside District and Land Office 170
National Guard
Long Beach Naval Shipyard 154
=~ California Air National Guard
Mare Island Naval Shipyard 129 Headquarters, 146th Tactical
Airlift Wing, Van Nuys, Calif, 147
Material Command, U,S., Red River Army Depot 131 B
-- Georgia, Adjutant General, Air Technician
Material Command, Automated Logistics Detachment, Dobbins Air Force Base, Ga,,
Management Systems Agency 211 and Travis Field, Savannah, Ga, 182
Maternal and Child Health Services, HEW 192 -~ Illinois Air National Guard,
182nd Tactical Air Support Group 225
McConnell Air Force Base, Kans., 134
-~ Mississippi National Guard
Miami Airport Traffic Control Tower, FAA 234 Thompson Field and Camp Shelby 123
Miami Air Route Traffic Control Center, FAA 234 National Highway Traffic Safety Administratiom, DOT 193
Military Academy, U.S., West Point, N.Y. 133

20



TITLE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administrationm,

Commerce
-- National Ocean Survey, Pacific
Marine Center and Atlantic
Marine Center

-~ National Weather Service,
Central Region

-- National Weather Service,
Office of Meteorological Operatiomns,
Communications Division,
Comnunications Operating Branch
National Park Service
-- Statue of Liberty National Monument
Naval (See: Navy)
Navy, Department of
-~ Long Beach Naval Shipyard
-- Mare Island Naval Shipyard
-- Naval Air Rework Facility
-= Alameda, Calif.
-= Jacksonville, Fla,
-- Quonset Point, R, I,
-- Naval Air Station

-- Corpus Christi, Tex.

-~= Moffet Field, Calif,

A/SLMR No(s).

222

151

196

171

154

129

158

155

215

150

130

TITLE

Navy, Department of (cont.)
-=- Naval Air Station (cont,)
-= Quonset Point, R, I.
-- Naval Training Device Center,
Procurement Services Office,

Orlando, Fla.

== Naval Underwater Systems Center,
Newport Laboratory, Newport, R, I.

-- Naval Weapons Center,
China Lake, Calif,

== Naval Weapons Station, Yorktown, Va.
-- Navy Exchange, Quonset Point, R, I.
New York Air Route Traffic Control Center, FAA

Norton Air Force Base,
Exchange Service Storage and Distribution Branch

Norton Air Force Base Exchange, Calif.,

Perrine Primate Laboratory,
Environmental Protection Agency

Picatinny Arsenal, Dover, N.J.
Reclamation, Bureau of
-- Region 4, Weber Basin Job Corps
Civilian Conservation Center,

Ogden, Utah

Red River Army Depot, Lone Star Army
Ammunition Plant, Texarkana, Tex.
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A/SLMR No(s).

201

140

127

128
139, 181
180

184

190

191

136

203

204

187



TITLE

Richard B, Russell Research Center

Richards-Gebaur Consolidated Exchange,
Richards-Gebaur Air Force Base, Mo.

Richmond Air Traffic Control Tower
(Byrd Tower), FAA

Roanoke Air Traffic Control Tower, FAA

Safeguard Logistics Command, Army,
and Safeguard Systems Command

Savanna Army Depot, Savanna, Ill,.,
and AMC Ammunition Center, Savanna, Ill.

Service Employees International Union, AFL-CIO,
General Service Employees Union, Local No, 73

Sierra National Forest

Social Security Administration (See:
Health, Education, and Welfare)

Statue of Liberty Natiomal Monument,
National Park Service, Interior

Training Center Engineer, Army, Headquarters,
Fort Leonard Wood, Mo,

Transportation Center, Army, Fort Eustis, Va,
Transportation, Department of
-=- Federal Aviation Administration

-~ Airways Facilities Sector,
Fort Worth, Tex.

-~ Anchorage International/Lake
Hood Tower

A/SLMR No(s).,

189

219

232

232

224

228

159

156

171

183

157

173

230

178

TITLE

Transportation, Department of (cont.)

-- Federal Aviation Administration (cont.)

~= Houston Area Office =
Southwest Region

~-= Jacksonville Air Route Traffic
Control Center

~-= Miami Airport Traffic Control Tower

== Miami Air Route Traffic
Control Center

-~ Minneapolis Air Route Traffic
Control Center

-= New York Air Route Traffic
Control Center

== Richmond Air Traffic Control
Tower (Byrd Tower)

-- Roanoke Air Traffic Control Tower

-- Washington Air Route Traffic
Control Center

National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration

Treasury, Department of

22

Customs, Bureau of
-- Boston, Mass,
== Region IV, Miami, Fla,

~= Region IX, Chicago, Ill,

A/SLMR No(s).

126

194, 231

234

234

233

184

232

232

232

193

169
152

210



TITLE A/SLMR No(s). TITLE A/SLMR No(s).

Treasury, Department of {(cont.) Washington Air Route Traffic Control Center, FAA 232
-= Division of Disbursement, Weber Basin Job Corps Givilian
Birmingham, Ala. 217 Conservation Center, Ogden, Utah 204
== Internal Revenue Service Whiteman Air Force Base Exchange, Knob Noster, Mo, 219
-~ Birmingham District 186
== Jacksonville District 214

-= National Office,
Office of International Operations 141

-- Regional Counsel, Office of,
Western Region 161

-~ U,S. Savings Bond Division 185

Tyndall Air Force Base,
Non-Appropriated Fund Activities 226

Tyndall Air Force Base,
Nonappropriated Fund Activities,
4756th Air Base Group 124

U.S. Dependent Schools, European Area (USDESEA),
Dept. of Army Directorate 138

United States Marshal's Office
-~ Georgia, Northern District 198
-= Illinois, Northern District 197

U.S. Park Police,
National Capital Parks, Interior 145

Vandenberg Air Force Base Exchange,
Vandenberg Air Force Base, Calif, 218

23
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January 13, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

MISSISSIPPI NATIONAL GUARD,
172ND MILITARY AIRLIFT GROUP
(THOMPSON FIELD)
AND
MISSISSIPPI NATIONAL GUARD
(CAMP SHELBY)
A/SIMR No. 123

This case arose as a result of petitions filed by the Inter-
national Union of Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers, AFL-CIO, and
its National Army-Air Technicians Association, Local 676 (IUE), and
by the American Federation.of Goverpment Employees, AFL-CIQ, Local
3151 (AFGE). The IUE sought-a unit of Wage Board (WB) technicianms
employed by the Mississippi National Guard in the 172nd Military
Airlift Group, at Thompson Field, Jackson, Mississippi, excluding,
among others, all General Schedule (GS) employees., The AFGE sought
a unit of all technicians employed by the Activity at Camp Shelby,
Mississippi employed in the Annual Training Equipment Pool, the
Combined Support Maintenance Shop, the Organizational Maintenance
Shop No. 6, and the United States Property and Fiscal Office. The
Activity took the positiom that neither unit petitioned for was
appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition, and asserted
that the only appropriate unit herein should include all technicians
employed by the Activity.

With respect to the unit sought by the IUE, the Assistant
Secretary found that the record did not support a finding that the
Wage Board (WB) technicians employed at the 172nd Military Airlift
Group, stationed at Thompson Field, Jackson, Mississippi, enjoyed
a community of interest, separate and distinct from other employees
of the Activity., In this regard, the Assistant Secretary noted
that the record revealed that GS technicians as well as the WB
technicians employed by the Activity are hired subject to the same
regulations; share common supervision; are subject to uniform
personnel policies and practices; and technicians are able to trans-
fer from location to location and from unit to unit, In addition,
it was noted that WB technicians at the 172nd Military Airlift Group
performed related or, in some instances, exactly similar tasks
and interchange with each other; that there is trxansfer of personnel
between GS and WB technician status; and that there is interchange
with personnel assigned to the other air fields of the Activity,
In these circumstances, the Assistant Secretary, dismissed the
petition filed by the IUE. :

500-836 O - 73 - 3
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With respect to the unit sought by AFGE, the Assistant
Secretary found that the technicians in the petitioned for uait
did not share a community of interest, separate and distinct
from other employees of the Activity. In this regard, the
Assistant Secretary noted that all of the Activity's technicians
are hired subject to uniform regulations; that they are all
under the command of the Adjutant General of Mississippi;
that they share in a common mission; that they are subject to
uniform personnel practices and policies; that there are trans-
fers of personnel from unit to unit, as well as from location to
location; and that there is evidence that personnel in the
petitioned for unit are regularly sent on temporary duty to other
locations to perform their tasks in cooperation with other
technicians assigned to those locations. In these circumstances,
the Assistant Secretary dismissed the petition filed by the
AFGE.
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A/SIMR No. 123

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

MISSISSIPPI NATIONAL GUARD,
172ND MILITARY AIRLIFT GROUP (THOMPSON FIELD)

Activity
and Case No. 41-1723(RO)

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF ELECTRICAL, RADIO
AND MACHINE WORKERS, AFL-CIO and its
NATIONAL ARMY-AIR TECHNICIANS ASSOCIATION,
LOCAL 676

Petitioner

MISSISSIPPI NATIONAL GUARD
(CAMP SHELBY)

Activity
and Case No. 41-1741(RO)

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 3151 1/

Petitioner
SUPPLEMENTAL DECISION AND ORDER

Upon petitions duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, a consolidated hearing was held in the subject
cases. Thereafter, on April 2, 1971, I issued a Decision and
Remand, 2/ in which I found that Mississippi National Guard
technicians are employees within the meaning of Section 2(b) of
the Order. Also, I remanded the subject cases to the appropriate
Regional Administrator to reopen the record solely for the pur-
pose of receiving evidence concerning the appropriateness of the

57 The Petitioner's name appears as amended at the initial
hearing in this matter.

2/ A/SIMR No. 20.
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units sought, On June 29 and July 20, 1971 a further hearing
was held before Hearing Officer Seymour X. Alsher. The Hearing
Officer's rulings made at the reopened hearing are free from
prejudicial error and are hereby affirmed,

Upon the entire record in this matter, including the
facts developed at the hearings held both prior and subsequent
to the remand, as well as the brief filed by American Federation
of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 3151, herein called AFGE, 3/
I find:

1. The labor organizations involved claim to represent
certain employees of the Activity.

2, The International Union of Electrical, Radio and
Machine Workers, AFL~CIO, and its National Army-Air Technicians
Association, Local 676, herein called IUE, seeks an election in
the following described unit of employees of the Activity: All
excepted Wage Group technicians employed at the 172nd Military
Airlift Group, Thompson Field, Jackson, Mississippi, excluding all
General Schedule employees, management officials, supervisors,
employees engaged in Federal personnel work in other than a purely
clerical capacity, professional employees and guards as defined
in the Executive Order.

The AFGE seeks an election in the following described
unit of employees of the Activity: All technicians of the
National Guard employed in accordance with Title 32, United States
Code, Section 709, in the Annual Training Equipment Pool, Combined
Support Maintenance Shop, Organization Maintenance Shop No. 6, and
the United States Property and Fiscal Office at Camp Shelby, Mis-
sissippi, excluding all management officials, supervisors, employees
engaged in Federal personnel work in other than a purely clerical
capacity, guards as defined in Executive Order 11491, Section 2(d),
and professional employees,

The Activity asserts that neither unit petitioned for is
appropriate, and contends that the onky appropriate unit would be
one which includes all nonsupervisory technicians employed by the
Mississippi National Guard.

The record discloses that overall policy and guidance
relating to the civilian persomnel administration and the functions
of technicians, classified as Federal employees, is set forth under
joint Army and Air National Guard Regulations. The Adjutant General
of the State of Mississippi administers the technicians' program

3/ The Activity's brief was not filed timely and, accordingly, was
not considered.
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of the Activity on a State-wide basis within these Regulations

and guidelines, In this regard, he has the final authority for

the assignment, promotion, discipline, or separation of technicians,
as well as the authority to establish the basic workweek, prescribe
hours of duty and make the final resolution of grievances. The
evidence establishes also that the personnel practices and policies
of the Activity are initiated and enforced on a centralized basis
by its Persomnel Officer, who is on the staff of the Adjutant
General.

The Mississippi National Guard is comprised of 157 military
units situated at 97 locations, with 30 support units situated at
29 locations., The record reveals that the centralization of per-
sonnel policies of the Activity results in the fact that all
grievances and personnel problems which cannot be resolved locally
are referred to the Adjutant General through his staff Personnel
Officer for final resolution. Further, it is disclosed that
personnel vacancies are posted at all locations throughout the
State in both the Air and Army National Guard units, and that all
technicians are free to bid on such vacancies. 4/ The evidence
establishes that personnel are transferred between units and
location, and there is evidence of employees transferring from
Army Guard units to Air Guard units, 5/

Case No. 41~1723(R0O)

Three units of the 157 military units, operated by the
Activity, are air fields located at Gulfport, Meridian and Jackson,
Mississippi. At the latter location is Thompson Field, which is
the base for the 172nd Military Airlift Group and which includes
the employees sought by the IUE. Also at Thompson Field is the
headquarters of one of the support units of the Activity, the U.S.

£7’ The record reveals that in a few instances bidding on vacancies
was restricted to the location of the vacancy due to restrictions
on personnel strength at the particular location. However, this
is an infrequent occurrence.

5/ The National Guard Regulations provide that a technician must be

a member of the military unit in which he is employed as a
technician.
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Property and Fiscal Office (U.S.P&FO). The unit sought by the
IUE would exclude all U.S.P&FO personmel. 6/

With respect to the Air National Guard technicians employed
by the 172nd Military Airlift Group, the record reveals that both
Wage Board (WB) and General Schedule (GS) technicians are employed.
The Wage Board employees generally perform duties associated with
"blue collar" employees and the General Schedule employees generally
perform "white collar" job functions. However, the evidence further
discloses that in many instances the WB and the GS technicians per-
form related, or in some instances, the same duties and that they
interchange without regard to classification. Further, it appears
that there have been instances of WB technicians converting to GS
status, as well as GS converting to WB status. Also, in at least
two instances at Thompson Field, WB technicians supervise GS
technicians. Although the IUE, in contending that its claimed umit
is appropriate, attached great importance to the fact that generally
WB technicians wear fatigue uniforms while GS technicians wear dress
uniforms, the record discloses that there are instances where the WB
technicians wear dress uniforms and the GS technicians wear fatigue
uniforms. The record further discloses that the National Guard
Regulations state only that the uniforms worn will conform to the
type of work being performed.

While the record does not indicate whether units other
than the 172nd Military Airlift Group and the various U.S.P&FO units
are located at Thompson Field, it does reveal that the technicians
at Thompson Air Field have job contacts with technicians at the
Gulfport and Meridian air fields. Thus, the record reveals that
technicians are frequently sent on temporary duty to the other air
fields to perform work in cooperation with the, technicians at the
field involved. In addition, there is evidence of transfer of personnel
from Thompson Air Base to other fields, and evidence that personmel
are transferred from other fields to Thompson Field.

g7 The record reveals that the mission of the U,S.P&FO is to channel
military equipment from the U.S. Government to the various units
of the Mississippi Natiomal Guard, including both Air and Army
components. The U.S,P&FO operates a warehouse located at Camp
Shelby, and it appears there are also U,S5,PSFO units attached
to various components of the Mississippi National Guard through-
out the State including the 172nd Military Airlift Group. The
evidence establishes that at Thompson Field there is some inter-
change among employees of the U,S.P&FO Headquarters and the U.S.P&FO
component attached to the 172nd Military Airlift Group.
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Based on the foregoing, I find that the unit sought by
the IUE is mot appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition
under Executive Order 11491 as the Wage Board employees in the
claimed unit do not share a clear and identifiable community of
interest separate and distinct from other employees of the Activity.
Thus, the Wage Board technicians sought by the IUE and the excluded
General Schedule technicians in many instances perform closely
related or the same duties, share common supervision and have common
personnel policies, mission and terms and conditions of employment.
Moreover, there is evidence of interchange and transfer among the
two groups of technicians. In these circumstances, I shall dismiss
the petition in Case No. 41-1723(RO).

Case No. 41-1741(RO)

The petition filed by the AFGE is limited to certain support
units of the Activity stationed at Camp Shelby. These are identified
as the Annual Training Equipment Pool, the Combined Support Maintenance
. Shop, the Orgenization Maintenance Shop No. 6, and the U.S.PS&FO
technicians at that facility. The record reveals also that a sub-
ordinate unit, the Field Training Site, apparently is a component
of the Organization Maintenance Shop No. 6. As noted above, the
mission of the U.S,P&FO is to chanmel supplies and equipment from
the U.S. Government to the various units of the Mississippi National
Guard. The record discloses that the mission of the techmicians in
the other units included in the AFGE's claimed unit is to prepare
and maintain equipment utilized in the training operations of various
units of the Mississippi National Guard, as well as for units from
other States sent to Camp Shelby for training.

The record reveals that all of the technicians sought
by the AFGE wear a distinctive grey uniform for the purpose of readily
distinguishing them from National Guard personmnel sent to Camp Shelby
for training. As in the case of all techmicians within the State of
Mississippi, the technicians in the claimed unit share common per-
sonnel policies, wage policies, insurance, sick leave, vacation and
retirement policies with the technicians at other locations through-
out the State.

While the record is not clear as to the mission of the
Field Training Site unit or the Organization Maintenance Shop No. 6, 7/

jjr As to the Field Training Site, the AFGE apparently asserts that
all personnel assigned to this unit are either non-technicians
or supervisors, and on this basis attempted to amend the unit
description so as to exclude this group from the petitioned for
unit, However, the Activity disputed the AFGE's assertion that
all technicians assigned to the Field Training Site are super-
visors. The AFGE also attempted to amend its petition to exclude
the technicians in the Maintenance Shop No. 6 at Camp Shelby con-
tending that such employees did not share a community of interest

with those included in its petitiomed unit. In view of my disposition

regarding the AFGE's petition, discussed more fully below, the fail-
ure of the Hearing Officer to rule on the AFGE's attempted amendments
of its petition herein was not comsidered to be prejudicial.
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it does disclose that the Annual Training Equipment Pool performs
first and second echelon maintenance on various types of vehicles,
and that the mission of the Combined Support Maintenance Shop

is to perform third and fourth echelon maintenance on these same
types of vehicles. The record discloses further that the distinc-
tion between these services is that the Annual Training Equipment
Pool performs the basic regular maintenance, while the Combined
Support Maintenance Shop performs major overhaul and repair functions.
Because of the similarity of skills involved, there is some inter=-
change of personnel between the two units and, on occasion, employees
in the Combined Support Maintenance Shop perform work for the

Annual Training Equipment Pool when the latter unit becomes overloaded
with work. It further appears that employees of the Combined Support
Maintenance Shop are sent regularly on temporary duty to various
locations throughout the State to perform third and fourth echelon
maintenance work on vehicles and equipment in cooperation with the
technicians at those locations. The record further reveals that
although techmicians of the Annual Training Equipment Pool and Com-
bined Support Maintenance Shop requisition parts and supplies from
the U.S.P&FO warehouse at Camp Shelby, such requisitions are made
through the supply personnel of each unit rather than by the
individual technicians.

Under all the circumstances, I find that the unit sought
by the AFGE, whether or not the Field Training Site and/or the
Organization Maintenance Shop No. 6 are excluded, is not appropriate
for the purpose of exclusive recognition under the Executive Order,
as the employees in the claimed unit do not share a clear and
identifiable community of interest separate and distinct from other
employees of the Activity. Thus, although the technmicians in the
Annual Training Equipment Pool, the Combined Support Maintenance
Shop and the U.S.P&F0 Warehouse have some daily relationships with
each other, the record reveals these employees enjoy a broader com-
munity of interest with other technicians at Camp Shelby as well as
with technicians throughout the State. In this latter comnection,
it is noted that all Mississippi National Guard technicians share
the common mission of military preparedness in times of emergency,
that the skills and activities of all are organized and interrelated
for the accomplishment of this mission; and that they all share a
common, overall supervision emanating from the State Adjutant General
and his headquarters staff. Also, all technicians are subject to
the same regulations governing terms and conditions of employment;
personnel practices and policies are equally applicable to all;
there are transfers of technicians from one unit to another as well
as transfers from one location to another; and there is some degree
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of interchange as evidenced by the sending of personmel on
temporary duty from one location to another.

Accordingly, because the unit petitioned for by the
AFGE is not appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition
under the Executive Order, I shall dismiss the petition in Case
No. 41=1741(RO).
ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petitions in Case Nos.
41-1723(RO) and 41-1741(RO) be, and they hereby are, dismissed.

Dated, Washington, D.C.

«W.J. Us-
Labor

T., Assistapft
abor-Manage 31

cretary of
elations

January 13, 1972
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January 13, 1972

UNLTED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTLVE ORDER 11491

UNITED STATES ATR FORCE,
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE,
NON-APPROPRIATED FUND ACTIVITIES,
4756TH AIR BASE GROUP,

TYNDALL AIR FORCE BASE, FLORIDA
A/SLMR No. 124

The Petitioner, Local 3240, American Federation of Govermment
Employees, AFL-CIO (AFGE), sought to represent a unit of all regular full-
time and regular part-time employees of the Billeting Fund employed by the
Non-Appropriated Fund (NAF) Activities of the 4756th Air Base Group,
Tyndall Air Force Base, Florida. The Activity contested the appropriate-
ness of the unit sought by the AFGE, contending that Billeting Fund per-
sonnel did not possess a clear and identifiable community of interest
apart from other NAF employees working in other NAF activities at Tyndall
Air Force Base.

The Assistant Secretary found that while the claimed employees had
separate immediate supervision, the skills represented in the claimed unit
are found in at least six of the other NAF activities on the Base., He
also found that all NAF employees are covered by the same Air Force Regula-
tions under which final authority over NAF employees rests in the Base
Commander and which provide for uniform persomnel policies and procedures,
promotion plans, annual and sick leave criteria and the same grievance
procedures.

In these circumstances, the Assistant Secretary concluded that the
employees in the unit sought by the AFGE did not possess a clear and
identifiable community of interest separate and distinct from certain
other employees at the Base, and that such a unit would effectuate an
artificial division among employees which would result in a fragmented
unit and would not promote effective dealings and efficiency of agency
operations. Accordingly, he ordered that the petition be dismissed.



A/SLMR No. 124
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

UNITED STATES AIR FORCE,
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE,
NON-APPROPRIATED FUND ACTIVITIES,
4756TH AIR BASE GROUP,

TYNDALL AIR FORCE BASE, FLORIDA

Activity
and Case No. 42-1495 (RO)

AMERTCAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 3240

Petitioner

DECISION AND ORDER

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive Order 11491,
a hearing was held before Hearing Officer George O. Gonzalez. The
Hearing Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from prejudicial
error and are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties' briefs,
the Assistant Secretary finds:

1. The labor organization involved claims to represent certain
employees of the Activity.

2. The Petitioner, American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-

CIO, Local 3240, herein called AFGE, seeks an election in a unit of: all
regular full-time and regular part-time employees of the Billeting unit
employed by the Non-Appropriated Fund activities of the 4756th Air Base
Group, Tyndall Air Force Base, Florida, excluding all professional
employees, temporary employees, management officials, employees engaged
in Federal personnel work in other than a purely clerical capacity, and
supervisors and guards as defined by Executive Order 11491, 1/

L? The claimed unit appears as amended at the hearing,
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The Activity disputes the appropriateness of the claimed unit con-
tending that the appropriate unit herein would be one consisting of all
nonsupervisory and nommanagerial employees of all of the Non-Appropria-
ted Fund activities at Tyndall Air Force Base.

The employees in the unit sought by the AFGE are employed by the
Billeting Fund, which is one of ten Non-Appropriated Fund (NAF)
activities at Tyndall Air Force Base. The other NAF activities are the
Central Base Fund, the Aero Club, the Central Accounting Office, the
Noncommissioned Officers' Club, the Officers' Club, the Nursery, the
Pre-Kindergarten, the Saddle Club and the Yacht Club, There are
approximately 258 employees in all of the NAF activities, with some 40
of them being employed within the claimed unit. The majority of the
employees in the claimed unit are maids and janitors. The mission of the
NAF activities is to provide facilities which contribute to the morale,
welfare and recreation of the military persomnel of the United States Air
Force, The membership in the Billeting Fund is composed of the occupants
of the Bachelor Officers' Quarters, the Bachelor Noncommissioned Officers'
Quarters and the Guest House at Tyndall Air Force Base, all of whom pay a
set periodic fee primarily for maid and janitor services. Personnel
policies and procedures with regard to NAF's related activities are
governed by regulations and directives issued by the United States Air
Force and the Department of Defense. Also, at Tyndall Air Force Base, a
Fiscal Control Office has been established to provide NAF activities on
the Base with centralized professional bookkeeping and accounting ser-
vices and separate general ledger control accounting in order to
minimize opportunities for misappropriation and unauthorized use of assets.

The record indicates that each NAF activity at Tyndall Air Force Base,
including the Billeting Fund, is headed by a Custodian who is appointed by
the Base Commander., The Custodian is the supervisor who has the day-to-
day supervision over emplpyees within each particular program. Immediately
below the Custodian in the chain of supervision in the Billeting Fund is
the Foreman whose duties include checking on the performance of the
Jani tor Leaders in the unit, 2/ The Foreman is responsible for checking
and correcting any problems which might arise with respect to the clean-
liness of the facilities receiving maid and janitorial service, He works
through the lowest level in the chain of supervision, the Janitor Leader,

a working member of the unit, who carries out the Foreman's directions to
the staff.

2/ Although the record does mot go into detail with respect to the duties
of the Foreman and the six Janitor Leaders in the requested unit, the
Activity apparently takes the position that they, as well as the Office
Manager, about whom no testimony was elicited, are supervisors. In
view of my ultimate conclusion in this case, I find it unnecessary to
make a determination as to their eligibility.
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The evidence demonstrates that the employees in the claimed unit
perform varied duties at the Bachelor Officers' Quarters, the Bachelor
Noncommi ssioned Officers' Quarters, and the Guest House at Tyndall Air
Force Base, These duties include cleaning individual rooms, making the
beds and dusting, sweeping and mopping porches and day rooms, cleaning
the latrines, obtaining the necessary supplies and laundry and mainten-
ance of the grounds. The record reveals further that most of the jobs
represented in the various NAF activities throughout the Base are of the
unskilled variety, and it would appear the employees in the unit sought
could be interchanged readily with other NAF employees of the Base. In
this regard, the record indicates that transfers from the Billeting NAF
to other Base NAF activities have occurred in the past,

The record reveals that all NAF employees at the Tyndall Air Force
Base are governed by the same Air Force Regulations which provide for
uni form personnel policies and procedures, promotion plans, annual and
sick leave criteria, a standard wage system, and the same grievance pro-
cedures. Final authority over all employees in the various NAF activi-
ties rests with the Base Commander. Moreover, as noted above, there are
centralized bookkeeping and accounting services for all the NAF activi-
ties., The record further reveals that the skills represented in the
claimed unit are present in at least six of the other NAF activities on
the Base and that all NAF employees on the Base in the same classifica-
tions as the employees in the claimed unit work daylight hours, wear the
same type of clothes while working, take coffee breaks, lunches and
other breaks at similar times and under centrally prescribed rules,

Based on the foregoing and noting particularly the fact that there
are employees on the Base, in addition to those sought by the AFGE, who
perform essentially the same job functions as those in the claimed unit,
and that all NAF employees herein are covered by uniform promotion pro=-
cedures, grievance procedures, sick and annual leave, pay scales, working
condi tions, requirements for promotion, standards for working conditions,
and job performance requirements, I find that the claimed unit is not
appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition under Executive Order
11491. Moreover, in my view, to separate the Billeting unit NAF employees
from other NAF employees employed at the Base who have similar terms and
conditions of employment and who generally perform their job functions in
the same work area, and who share uniform employment conditions and bene-
fits, would effectuate an artificial division among employees and would
result in a fragmented unit which would not promote effective dealings or
efficiency of agency operations., Accordingly, I shall order that the
AFGE's petition be dismissed.
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ORDER

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that the petition in Case No. 42-1495 (RO) be,
and it hereby is, dismissed,

Dated, Washington, D, C.
January 13, 1972

A s

"W, J. Use Jr., Assistan ry of
Labor for Labor-Management ions



January 24, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

NASA MANAGEMENT AUDIT OFFICE
A/SLMR No, 125

This case involves a Regional Administrator's dismissal, affirmed
by the Assistant Secretary, of a representation petition filed by
American Federation of Government Employees, Local 2842, AFL-CIO, (AFGE),
after the Agency head had made a determination that the unit sought was
covered by Section 3(b)(4) of the Order in that the Order could not be
applied to the claimed employees in a manmer consistent with the internal
security of the Agency. The Federal Labor Relations Council (Council),
after granting a petition for review filed by the AFGE, remanded the
case to the Assistant Secretary stating that "a dispute over the findings
by any agency head that a unit sought to be represented by a union has
a 'primary function' related to internal security is subject to review
by the Assistant Secretary, as provided in the Order, to determine
whether such findings were arbitrary or capricious.'" Thereafter,
pursuant to the remand, a hearing was held before a Hearing Examiner,

In his Report and Recommendations, the Hearing Examiner found that
in the circumstances, the evidence did not establish that the determination
of the Agency head was arbitrary or capricious. Accordingly, he recom-
mended that the dismissal of the representation petition be sustained.
In his Decision and Order, the Assistant Secretary adopted the findings,
conclusions,and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner and ordered that
the representation petition filed by the AFGE be dismissed.
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A/SLMR No. 125
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
NASA MANAGEMENT AUDIT OFFICE ‘
Activity 1/
and Case No. 46-1848(R0O)

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2842, AFL-CIO

Petitioner
DECISION AND ORDER

On August 21, 1970, the Regional Administrator dismissed the
representation petition in the above-named case filed by American
Federation of Government Employees, Local 2842, AFL-CIO, herein called
AFGE. 1In his dismissal, the Regional Administrator ruled that the
determination of the Administrator of the National Aeronautics and
Space Administration, herein called NASA, that the unit requested
came within the meaning of Section 3(b)(4) of the Order in that the
Order could not be applied to the claimed employees in a manner
consistent with the internal security of the Agency, rendered further
proceedings on the AFGE's petition unwarranted. On November 2, 1970,
the Assistant Secretary issued his decision denying the AFGE's re-
quest for review of the Regional Administrator's action and stating
that a determination by an Agency head under Section 3(b)(4) was not
subject to review by the Assistant Secretary. Thereafter, the AFGE
filed a petition for review of the Assistant Secretary's decision
with the Federal Labor Relations Council, herein called the Council.
On January &4, 1971, the Council granted the AFGE's petition for review,
and thereafter on April 29, 1971, issued its Decision on Appeal
(FLRC No. 70A-7) remanding the proceedings to the Assistant Secretary
for appropriate action consistent with its decision. In its Decision
on Appeal, the Council held that a dispute over the findings of an
Agency head ''that a unit sought to be represented by a union has a
'primary function' related to internal security is subject to review
by the Assistant Secretary, as provided in the Order, to determine
whether such findings were arbitrary or capricious.”

1/ The parties are in agreement that the name of the Activity was
changed on April 16, 1971, from National Aeronautics and Space
Administration, Audit Division (Code DU) to the name set forth
above,



In accordance with the Council's decision, the Assistant Secretary
remanded the above-named case to the appropriate Regional Administrator
for the issuance of a notice of hearing. Thereafter a hearing was
held before Hearing Examiner Frank H, Itkin on July 20 and 21, 1971,

On November 11, 1971, the Hearing Examiner issued his Report and
Recommendations in the above-entitled proceedings finding that, in the
circumstances, the action of the Administrator of NASA "in determining
that a primary function of the Audit Division is the audit of work of
officials or employees for the purpose of ensuring honesty and integrity
in the discharge of their official duties and that the Executive Order
cannot be applied to the requested unit in a manner consistent with the
internal security of NASA" was not arbitrary or capricious. Accordingly,
he recommended that the dismissal of the representation petition in the
subject case be sustained. Therefter, the AFGE filed a request for
review of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations with the
Assistant Secretary, and the Activity filed an answer to the request
for review.

The Assistant Secretary has reviewed the rulings of the Hearing
Examiner made at the hearing and finds that no prejudicial error was
committed. The rulings are hereby affirmed. Upon consideration of
the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations and the entire record
in the case, including the request for review filed by the AFGE and
the answer thereto filed by the Activity, I hereby adopt the findings,
conclusions, and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petition in Case No. 46-1848(R0O)
be, and it hereby is, dismissed.

Dated, Washington, D.C.
January 24, 1972 //

/- )
Ay

Al

W.J. Ufery, Jr., Assfstant Secpetary of
Labor/ for Labor-Manggement ReYatioms

/
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS & SPACE
ADMINISTRATION, AUDIT DIVISION
(CODE DU),

Activity
CASE NO. 46-1848(RO)
And

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2842 (AFL-CIO),

Petitioner

Helen S, Kupperman and E. M. Shafer,
Office of the General Counsel

National Aeronautics & Space Administration,
400 Maryland Avenue, S. W.

Washington, D. C. 20546, on behalf of the
Activity.

Neal H, Fine and Dolph D, Sand,
American Federation of Government Employees
400 First Street, N, W,
Washington, D. C., 20001, on behalf of

Petitioner,
Before: Frank H, Itkin, Hearing Examiner

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Statement of the Case

This proceeding arises under Executive Order 11491. On
June 25, 1970, the American Federation of Government Employees Local
2842, AFL-CIO (herein, "the Union"), filed a representation petition
with the Assistant Secretary for Labor-Management Relations pursuant
to the Executive Order, seeking to represent a unit of "all non-supervisory
GS employees, including professionals," in the Audit Division of
the National Aeronautics & Space Administration, Washington, D. C.,



(herein, "NASA"), On July 23, 1970, the NASA Administrator, Dr. T. D.
Paine, determined "that the unit requested falls within the meaning of"
Section 3(b)(4) of the Executive Order "and that the petition is

hereby denied on the grounds that the Order cannot be applied in a
manner consistent with the internal security of the agency.” 1/ There-
after, the regional administrator for the Assistant Secretary dismissed
the Uniorts representation petition, ruling that the agency head's
determination rendered further proceedings unwarranted., On November 2,
1970, the Assistant Secretary upheld the action of the regional
administrator on the grounds that the determination made by the NASA
Administrator rests in the sole judgment of the agency head and "is
not subject to review by the Assistant Secretary;" consequently,

"an investigation into the merits of the NASA Administrator's determina-
tion * * * does not appear to be appropriate.”

On January 4, 1971, the Federal Labor Relations Council granted
the Union's petition for review of the Assistant Secretary'’'s decision,
"limited to the following major policy issue: Whether the Assistant

Secretary has authority to review that portion of the NASA Administrator's

determination under Section 3(b) (4) which found that the Audit Division
*has as a primary function investigation or audit of the conduct or
work of officials or employees of the agency for the purpose of

ensuring honesty and integrity in the discharge of their official duties.'’

On April 29, 1971, the Council issued its decision on appeal, remanding
these proceeding to the Assistant Secretary for appropriate action
consistent with its decision, The Council held, in pertinent part

as follows:

% * %

The exclusion of a segment of an agency from the operation
of the Order obviously limits effective collective bargaining
within the agency, and deprives the employees concerned of
the opportunity to participate in the formulation and
implementation of personnel policies and practices, sought

to be extended by E.O. 11491, Although the need for such en
exclusion is recognized under the limited conditions
prescribed in Section 3(b)(4), that section was plainly not

1/ Section 3(b)(4) provides:

% % % This Order (except Section 22) does not apply to

* % % any office, bureau or entity within an agency which has
as a primary function investigation or audit of the conduct
or work of officials or employees of the agency for the
purpose of ensuring honesty and integrity in the discharge

of their official duties, when the head of the agency determines,

in his sole judgment, that the Order cannot be applied in a
manner consistent with the internal security of the agency.
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intended to empower an agency head, under the guise of
‘internal security' findings, to exclude any office, bureau
or entity of his agency from the impact of the Order., Any
such interpretation would enable an agency head, arbitrarily
or capriciously, to defeat the underlying purposes of the
Order.

#* % % [Tlhe Order assigns to the Assistant Secretary the
initial responsibility to resolve controversies over
representation matters. In our opinion, it is implicit,
under Section 3(b)(4), that a dispute over the findings by

an agency head that a unit sought to be represented by a
union has a 'primary function' related to internal security
i1s subject to review by the Assistant Secretary, as provided
in the Order, to determine whether such findings were
arbitrary or capricious. The burden of proof before the
Assistant Secretary is, of course, on the union which claims
that the action of the agency head was arbitrary or capricious.
Furthermore, the decision of the Assistant Secretary is
subject to appeal to the Council as provided in the Council's
rules of procedure, (35 Fed. Reg. 15065),

On May 20, 1971, the Assistant Secretary further remanded this
case to the regional administrator “for the issuance of a notice of
hearing” designating that "a hearing examiner take evidence consistent
with the Council's decision on appeal and make factual findings and
recommendations., Thereafter, the hearing examiner shall report these
findings and recommendations to the Assistant Secretary and the
parties * * *," 2/ On June 3, 1971, the regional administrator issued
a notice of hearing. Subsequently, on July 14, 1971, the Assistant
Secretary granted NASA's "request for a closed hearing" in this case
and also directed that a pre-hearing conference be held "for the purpose
of establishing the procedural guidelines to be followed" during the
hearing.

As directed, a pre-hearing conference was conducted before
me on July 20, 1971, Following the conference, a closed hearing was
held before me on July 20 and 21, 1971. All parties were represented

2/ The Assistant Secretary, in remanding the case,also noted:

Provision should be made that any party aggrieved by the
findings and recommendations of the hearing examiner may
obtain a review of such action by the Assistant Secretary by
following the procedure set forth in Section 202,20(f) of
the regulations * * #*,
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by counsel, who were afforded full opportunity to adduce evidence,
examine and cross-examine witnesses, submit oral argument, and file
briefs. Upon the entire record in this matter, from my observation
of the witnesses, and after due consideration of the briefs filed by
the parties, I make the following findings and recommendations:

I. The contentions of the parties.

The Union argues on remand that the determination of the
NASA Administrator -- "that the unit requested falls within the
meaning of" Section 3(b)(4) of the Executive Order "and that the
petition is * * * denied on the grounds that the Order cannot be
applied in a manner consistent with the internal security of the
agency"-- was made in an arbitrary and capricious manner. "The basis
of this position,” the Union states, "is that the Audit Division does
not perform as a primary function the work described in Section 3(b) (&)
of" the Executive Order. The Union asserts:

* % % The NASA Audit unit does have as a primary function

the examination of NASA activities to determine if they are
being carried out in an economical and efficient manner,

* % % [However,] the work described in Section 3(b)(4) of

the Order is performed as a primary function by the Inspections
Division of NASA.

* ¥ *

NASA argues: "The determination of the Administrator to
exclude the employees of the NASA Management Audit Office [Audit
Division] from coverage of Executive Order 11491 under Section 3(b)(4)
authority is supported by the facts. The testimony and documentary
evidence presented at the hearing demonstrate that the audit office
has as a primary function audit of the work of officials and employees
of NASA for the purpose of ensuring honesty and integrity in the
performance of their official duties, Further, * * * the audit office
is an Integral part of the internal security system of NASA, The
% % % ynion has not carried its burden of proof. The Administrator's
determination cannot be sald to be arbitrary or capricious.™

II. In general; the NASA Audit Division and its relationship
to other NASA operations. 3/

The NASA Audit Division, according to the written instructions

3/ The evidence summarized in this and following sections of the Report
is based upon the essentially uncontradicted testimony of the witnesses
and, written documents adduced by the parties.
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promulgated by the Activity (see Exhibits P-9, N-1, and N-2), "is
primarily concerned with advising and assisting NASA management
officials at headquarters and field installations in achieving
performance of their mislons in an effective and efficient manner.” ﬁ/
The Audit Division (now called "Management Audit Office," see n. 4
sugra) is organized into regional audit offices, the heads of which
report to the Director, Martin Sacks., There are some 76 persons who
report to Director Sacks; Sacks in turn reports to the Associate
Administrator for the QOffice of Organization and Management, Director
Sacks is responsible for, inter alia, conducting or arranging for the
performance of independent reviews and appraisals to "[alscertain

that financial and business management operations are in compliance
with NASA policies, procedures, and Government laws and regulations;"
to "[e]stablish the effectiveness with which resources of manpower,
property and funds are utilized in NASA and in contractor operations;"
to "[d]etermine the effectiveness of safeguards provided over NASA's
assets;” and to "[flollow-up periodically on actions taken by NASA,
DCAH, and other Government audit agency recommendations * ¥ *,"
Director Sacks is also responsible for "[r]eporting audit findings
with recommendations for corrective action to management officials
directly concerned” and referring audit reports directly to the head
of the organization under audit, to officials of other NASA organizations
"whenever they have the authority or responsibility for actions related
to audit findings and recommendations," and to the NASA Administrator
or Deputy Administrator when requested or necessary.

In addition, NASA has an Inspections Division (see Exhibit
N-3). The Director of the Inspections Division, Ralph Winte, also
reports to the Associate Administrator for the Office of Organization
and Management. Director Winte has some 13 persons working under his
direction, His responsibilities include, inter alia, "investigations
to detect unlawful or unethical conduct on the part of NASA employees;"
"investigations to detect fraud or other illegal activity by contractors
or others which affects NASA;” and "inspections for the purpose of
disclosing conditions which might lead to violations of laws and
regulations by NASA employees, contractors and others which affect
NASA."

4/ Exhibit P-9 is the promulgated management instruction effective
on January 24, 1968, Exhibit N-1 is the management instruction
effective on December 3, 1970, cancelling P-9, Exhibit N-2 is the
management instruction effective on April 16, 1971, cancelling N-1,
In brief, Exhibit N-1 deleted paragraphs 4(g) and 4(h) from Exhibit
P-9, Exhibit N-2 changed the name of the Audit Division to the NASA
Management Audit Office. The parties acknowledge that these changes
have had no substantial effect on the role and functions of the Audit
Division as set forth in Exhibit P-9, which was operative when the
Union's representation petition was filed.
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NASA also has a Security Division (see Exhibits N-4 and N-5),
headed up by a Director of Security. The objective of this division
is to "[s]afeguard the property and facilities of NASA and information
in the custody of NASA, which has been assigned a security classifica-
tion in the interests of national defense or national security.” The
Director of Security has some 16 persons working under his direction;
he ordinarily reports to the Director of Headquarters Administration.

Bernard Mortz, Deputy Associate Administrator of the Office
of Organization and Management, 3/ testified that the Audit Division,
the Inspections Division and the Security Division collectively "have
a primary responsibility with respect to internal security” at NASA,
As Moritz explained, "the Inspections Division is responsible for
assur ing that there is adherence to standards of conduct which the
agency believes to be appropriate for employees. It does investigate
the activities of individuals * * * who have been reported in one
way or another as possibly infringing upon the standards that have
been established. The Security Division is concerned with the
safeguarding of property and facilities. It is also concerned with
the safeguarding of classified information. The Audit Division is
charged, as are the other two, with the conduct of inspectionms,
investigations by security people and by inspections people, and
audits to determine whether or not there has been compliance with laws
and regulations. The Audit Division is also charged with responsibility
for conducting reviews and appraisals to determine whether there has
been compliance on the part of NASA personnel with the standards of
work performance that are to be expected."”

Moritz further testified:

* % * In any audit which is conducted, there is a possibility
that there will be identified individuals who have not complied
with established policies, procedures, regulations and laws

% % %, [For example,] Procurement policies and laws,
personnel provisions, standards of conduct, * * * financial
arrangements and transactions * * * [and] falsification or

lack of it in documenting finaneial transactions of the
organization * * ¥,

Moritz acknowledged that "[nJo audit * * * {s initiated for the purpose
of identifying people who have committed errors, but at the same time
we are aware in having an Audit Division function at all that this is
always a possibilfty, and it is why we have audits, as a protective

5/ At the time the Union filed its representsion Petition, Moritz
was the Acting Assoclate Administrator for NASA.
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measure for the agency, to guard against the errors of which humans
are capable.'" Moritz noted:

#* % %* The Audit Division does not get into the matter of

the detailed investigation of people's conduct. The Audit
Division, however, in the course of its audit may surface

the fact that individuals have done certain things which ought
to be examined in detail by an investigative body, * * *

Ralph Winte, Director of the Inspections Division, testified
that his division "is and always has been small" in number and,
consequently, "on a number of occasions * * * would use the people
for the Security Division to investigate,” for example, "thefts of
government property."” Winte, in addition, would "get the assistance
of auditors."” Winte recalled two situations within the last year
requiring the services of a total of three unit auditors, noting "[t]hat
one [such procedure] is going on right now." Winte added, the
"relationship’ between inspectors and auditors "is very informal.

We have a very close relationship with the inspector and the auditor,"

In addition, Winte explained that his division "would get
information from the audit reports, An auditor who discovers a
false billing or these kinds of matters would talk to the inspector
at the center level,” In this manner, during the past year, Winte
received some five or six cases from the Audit Division., In sum,
Winte testified:

The liaison is very close with the Audit Division, both at
headquarters and the centers, Our people know each other
very well and talk frequently, * * * The same thing occurs
here in headquarters. [Audit Division Director] Sacks and
I see each other at least twice a week at staff meetings, and
then we talk on the phone, If I have a matter that I think
should be explored further by the Audit Division, I say

%* % % maybe you ought to take a look at the procedures and
see whether the procedures and responsibilities of the
center management, whether they are doing it properly. And
then, he will take this into consideration and make an
audit of this particular center.

Winte further noted that "his relationship with the Security Division
is similar to [his] relationship to the Audit Division," 6/

g/ Director Sacks, whose testimony is discussed at length infra,
also testified that the Audit and Investigations Divisions "carry
on a continuing exchange of informatiom* * *.," Winte is given a
copy of each audit report,
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The relationship between the Audit Division and Inspections
Division was further delineated in an amendment to the NASA Audit
Manual, which was distributed by Director Sacks to all Audit managers
on March 4, 1962, That document recites, as follows:

* & %

RELATIONSHIPS WITH NASA INSPECTIONS OFFICE

The NASA Inspections Office is responsible for (1) matters
relating to NASA standards of conduct, conflicts of interest,
outside employment and financial interest of NASA employees
and the conduct of NASA employees in the performance of
official duties, and (2) the detection of fraud, violations
of law and regulations by NASA and contractor employees.

The auditor should be alert to conditions that indicate fraud,
illegal acts or conflicts of interest, If noted, these
conditions should be reported immediately, through the
regional audit manager, to the Headquarters Office of the
Audit Division. These conditions should not be discussed
with Center or contractor personnel, Although the auditor
may be requested to provide factual data for use by the
Inspections Division, it is not the responsibility of the
Audit Division to investigate or confirm the existance of
fraud, illegal acts or conflicts of interest on the part of
center or contractor employees.

Director Sacks explained: "“The purpose of this document [quoted above]
is to delineate the responsibilities of the NASA Audit Office and the
NASA Inspections Office. It is also the purpose to alert auditors

not to pursue * * * the confirmation of certain suspicions which may
arise * * * yhich fall properly within the purview of the Inspections
Division,"

III. The work performed by the NASA Audit Division employees,

Audit Division Director Sacks testified at length with
respect to the nature of the work performed by his unit employees.
Sacks explained that there “are two major aspects of * * * a typical
" NASA audit., 0One, determination that the prescribed procedures,
principles, regulations and standards adopted by NASA management are
soundly conceived. * * * [I,e., a] review of the principles themselves,
the regulations themselves, the procedures themselves, to determine
in light of the assigned responsibilities of a particular organizational
element that they appear to be adequate in concept for accomplishing
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their intended purpose."” As for the second major aspect of a typical
audit, Sacks continued:

Now, of equal, if not greater, importance is the review to
determine that those prescribed procedures and policies

are being appropriately, effectively and efficiently carried
out by the assigned individuals who are responsible for the
function

Director Sacks further testified: "* * * [W]e are responsible
for the reviews of NASA Civil Service employees, approximately 30,000
or 29,000 in number * * *," Sacks' office conducts "an audit of [a]
transaction for the purpose of assuring that the procedures, that the
concepts established by NASA, are being complied with, but in reaching
that objective * * *, [the Audit Division reviews] the activities of
specific individuals." Sacks contrasted the work of his office with
the work of Ralph Winte, Director of the Inspections Division, as
follows:

%* % % Ralph Winte performs a review to determine whether
fraud is committed. I perform a review to assure that the
prescribed procedures, policies and so forth are properly
complied with, However, to do that, we in effect both
review the activities of individuals. 7/

In sum, the Audit Division, as Sacks testified, principally
reviews the activities of the 29,000 to 30,000 NASA employees “who
perform procurement functions, * * * property functions, % * * pudgetary
functions, financial [or] accounting functions, payroll functions
#* ¥ %" and related duties, The Audit Division attempts "to cover every
activity in NASA on a reasonably cyclic basis, so that management
will receive adequate assurances that the operations are being conducted
properly * * *." In this manner, Sacks' office reviews “all business
management activities [at NASA], procurement, financial management,
property supply management, construction of facilities, financial or

7/ Sacks also stated: Winte's “objective is different. My objective
is to help management assure that operations are being efficiently,
economically, most effectively and appropriately being carried out.
But in reaching that objective or to secure that assurance, we review
and [Winte] investigates the activities of specific individuals,
Consequently, [Winte] will be exploring fraud. I may come upon fraud,
which I will immediately report to [Winte], or a conflict of interest
or an absolute violation of the Act. But this is a possible
consequence of any audit in which we are involved, * * *,* (Emphasis
added.)
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payroll and accounting activities, all of that which works together
to comprise the NASA organization, as well as the technical and
program side to the extent that they are involved in administrative
operations,"

Thus, for example, Sacks stated: "at one of our major centers,
the in-house activities comprise eight major laboratories. Each
laboratory director operates in effect as an installation director.

* % % [Sacks' Audit Division will review,] does he [the laboratory
director] have sufficient controls to assure these people aren't

taking home colored TV sets or oscilloscopes or whatever. In examining
these controls, [the Audit Division is] examining what his {the laboratory
director's] people do and, unfortunately, from time to time will find
unauthorized use of property * * *," Sacks continued: "we are

auditing to see [that the director] is using the funds in the best
interest of the taxpayer. That brings in efficiency, appropriateness,
legality * * *," 8/

Further, Sacks explained that when performing an audit, his
office is in fact concerned "with the honesty and the integrity of
the employees who are carrying out the process or procedures of an
activity." For, according to Sacks, "honesty and integrity" means
"aything which represents inappropriate action, which would reflect
unfavorably on the reputation, image and well-standing of the agency,
as well as result in inefficient and ineffective and inappropriate
use of Agency assets.” Moreover, although the auditors do not name
the employees involved in their various reports, "the recipients of
audit reports know specifically the individuals within their respective
organizations to whom responsibilities have been entrusted.”

A, The job-descriptions of Audit Division personnel,
The job~descriptions of various personnel in the NASA Audit

Division generally substantiate the testimony of Deputy Associate
Administrator Moritz and Director Sacks as summarized above. Thus,

8/ Sacks acknowledged: "We don’t go about initiating an audit * * *
to discover fraud. This isn't the purpose of an audit * * *,  If
improper conduct and all the other weaknesses and deficiencies which
generally crop up on a daily basis in an organization of our size

are uncovered, these are cited * * * as a frame of reference to
recomwend strengthened controls on a broader basis, * * * [Wle do this
by citing the particular illustrations of what the particular
responsible elements have been doing."
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the description for a "GS 15 Supervisory Auditor” (see Exhibit P-11)
provides, inter alia, as follows:

* * X

Is responsible for managing, directing, programming, and
supervising independent reviews, appraisals, and reporting

of NASA and Manned Spacecraft Center complex programs and
contractors located throughout the seven states which

comprise the audit region, involving independent investigation
into the development, implementation, and supervision of research
and development plans, programs, objectives, funds, manpower
utilization, and the attendant management of staff operations.
Includes the establishment of criteria and objectives for

use by DOD audit agencies providing services for NASA, Works
with latitude under the technical guidance and direction of
the Director, NASA Headquarters Audit Division, who reviews
results of audit operations for accomplishment of audit
mission., More specifically, performs the following:

1. Plans and manages the activities of a group of auditors
(GS-14, GS-13, and GS-12) conducting reviews to determine
that all internal financial controls within the Manned
Spacecraft Center and contractors in the Audit Region
are operating with consistent efficiency and effectiveness
and promoting standard accounting practices that have
been adopted by the Director of Audits, * * *,

2, Plans and supervises the primary phases of program and
mission objectives which include examination of financial
transactions for compliance with policies, procedures,
laws, and regulations; evaluation of reliability and
appraisal of management utility of budgetary, accounting,
and other financial and statistical dataj; appraising the
effectiveness with which resources (manpower, property,
and funds) are utilized; analysis or findings and
preparation of audit reports; furnishing advice and
assistance to Manned Spacecraft Center officials on all
aspects of audits; etc, Observes and comments on
operating practices which influence financial management.
Prepares recommendations for changes in methods and
procedures on the basis of evaluation and observation.

* % &

The description for a "GS 12 Auditor" (see Exhibit P-12)
provides, inter alia, as follows:
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E. MAJOR RESPONSIBILITIES

Reviews and evaluates accounting systems and management
controls to determine the scope of the audit which will

be required to ascertain the reliability and propriety

of statements and records, Determines the degree of
compliance with directives, policies, instructions, and/or
generally accepted accounting principles and practices.
Recommends changes considered necessary to aid in
effective management and to correct any weaknesses or
practices which may adversely affect the interests of

the agency. Based upon the survey of the accounting
system and evaluation of the system of internal controls,
prepares or modifies audit programs which will fix the
scope of the audit required to ascertain the reliability
and propriety of the statements and finanacial records
or other management data. Applies appropriate audit
procedures on a selective basis to the extent necessary

to supply audit recommendations . Appropriate audit procedures
may include examination of basic documents upon which
management decisions are based or from which accounting
records areprepared to determine that such documents
adequately support the resulting data or accounting
entries; ascertaining that all transactions have been
recorded and adequately supported; test checking the
accuracy of computations such as accruals and allocations;
analyzing accounts, statements, or transactions to detect
unusual items or significant trends; test checking
inventory counts to verify the accuracy of recorded
quantities; and analysis and evaluation of forecasts in
light of known or foreseeable factors, Prepares audit
work papers showing the nature and extent of audit work
performed to adequately support opinions reached as a
result of such audit work. Prepares audit reports showing
findings of the audit and recommendations. Participates
in conferences with DOD, NASA, industry, and other Federal
and non-Federal representatives to resolve problems
disclosed by audit, and to furnish recommendations or
advice concerning the financial and other related aspects
of management, Interprets procedures, policies, and
requirements related to the audit operation., Prepares
statistical and other reports reflecting the result of
audit operations. Composes and reviews a wide variety of
correspondence pertaining to the work, * * *
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And see, Exhibit P-13 for the “GS 11 Auditor;'" Exhibit P-14 for the
"GS 9 Auditor;" and Exhibit P-15 for the "GS 6 Secretary." 9/

B. Examples of a program and audits performed by Audit
Division personnel.

Exhibit N-7 contains an audit program for 'Stores Stock
Supply Management." The purpose of this program "is to provide uniform

guidance during scheduled in-house audits of stores stock supply manage-

ment," The program states, inter alia, as follows:

* % %

A5. During the audit be alert for the existence of unrecorded
inventories, and determine whether the installation has given
appropriate emphasis in its internal procedures to the
requirement that all such materials, with certain exceptions,
be placed under continuing physical and finanacial controls,

* % % Be particularly alert for unrecorded scrap, excess

and surplus materials . [p.5]

6, Determine the adequacy of security over material in
storage and in possession of various work shops. * * *
Determine whether highly pilferable materials and other
items of a special nature * * * are kept under lock and key,
Be alert for instances of apparent but non-existent
security., * * % [p,5]

C3b, * * * review and appraise installation procedures and
controls to fix responsibility for shortages between quantities
of material shown as shipped on shipping documents and
quantities actually received, * * * Be particularly alert

for repetitive shortages of pilferable [or] sensitive material
* koK, [p_gj

* k Kk

Dla. Select a representative number of filled requisitions
* % % determine whether such individuals were authorized to
receive material * * *,

Dlb. * * * Be particularly alert for filled requisitions

that are incomplete, vague, or there is some questions as

to the intended use of the items * * *, Be alert for extensive
conditions wherein the priority system is being abused

* % %, [p,11]

9/ Exhibit P-11, unlike the other job-descriptions, concerns a
supervisory position assertedly not within the requested unit.
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D5. Review and evaluate the installation's survey procedures
to determine whether existing controls appear satisfactory

to identify the cause of the loss, fix responsibility, and

to initiate action to prevent reoccurrence wherever possible
* ok ok, [P-12]

% d X

E 2b and 2¢. % * * Be particularly alert for personnel
assigned as inventory takers who are also responsible for
record keeping and storage * * *, Scan count sheets and
tags for evidence of improper alteration, erasures, or
other manipulations to obscure shortages. [p. 15]

% k %

F 4c, * ¥ * be alert for practices that result in requesting
excess material even though a valid need does not exist
* % %, [p, 19] i

x * Kk

G2a., * * * Select a representative number of such

shipments * * *, Investigate the cause of any discrepancies,
and determine whether additional and/or more refined controls
are needed to safeguard the material. Be particularly alert
for pilferable type items * * *, [p, 23]

Exhibits N-8 through N-15 were offered by counsel for NASA
and received into evidence "as some examples of sensitive audit
reports which bear on the internal security of NASA,” lg/ For example,
Exhibit N-8 concerns an audit pertaining to the financial and funding
agpects of a construction program. This report discloses, inter alia
that "several projects approved and in progress at the time of [the
audit * * * would exceed the $250,000 limitation [set by statute] if
they were carried through according to preliminary plans. In
addition, [the audit discloses] one instance where the prescribed
1imit has actually been exceeded when the costs of the collateral
equipment and improvements are considered in the total costs,"

10/ At the request of counsel for NASA, Exhibits N-8 through N-15 will
not be made a part of the formal record because they assertedly contain
sensitive information. They are being transmitted by me directly to
the Assistant Secretary.
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Exhibit N-9 concerns an audit of certain in-house engineering
support activities., This audit ’

% % * disclosed that although the terms and conditions of
[the contract] and the related task orders restricted the
contractor to [certain] work, [the contractor] had performed
in~house engineering support services, totalling at least
$187,710 in a number of other areas, * * * Details of the
unauthorized programs involved * * * are summarized in the
attached Exhibit and supporting schedules,

Exhibit N-10 concerns an audit of administrative and other
aircraft operations., That report reveals, inter alia:

% % % there were no documented explanations or other supporting
back-up material in the transportation files. As a result,
determinations could not be made as to whether the administra-
tive airplanes were used for the purposes intended.

Without adequate documentation and support to indicate
otherwise, a number of the flights appeared questionable,
when considering such factors as the dates,destinations,
arrival and departure hours, sketchy stated purposes,
available commerical services, etc.

Examples are cited in the report.

Exhibit N-11 pertains to an audit of financial and administrative
aspects of a particular event attending a lunar landing. This audit
“was motivated by a * * * review of shortages in" certain accounts.
Involved were, inter alia, discrepancies in financial reports;
deviations from accepted business practices including "preparation
of purchase orders after-the-fact" and "residual items not being
properly accounted for;" and a cash advance issued to an individual
without proper controls,

Exhibit N-12 concerns an audit of travel controls and practices,
The report reveals:

A significant number of vouchers covering travel actions
appeared to be at variance with what a prudent businessman
would authorize,

* ok k
Our review of employee TDY travel controls disclosed a
significant number of vouchers covering travel actions

that appear to be at substantial variance with what a prudent
businessman would authorize.
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Examples are cited in the report, The document also notes:

% % % the large number of vouchers that show a significant
quantity of annual leave relative to the time spent on the
Yofficial"™ part of the trip, together with the results of
our follow-up on specific trips and to general looseness
over travel, leads us to believe that [deleted] management's
permissiveness in this area has led to a practice that
results in ineffective use of its travel funds.

Exhibit N-13 pertains to an audit of the NASA Executive Lunch
Room. The document discloses that the auditors

* % % yere unable to perform an adequate cash count because
the lunch room funds were commingled with the chef's personal
funds.

%k %

[The auditors] also noted that the eash register tapes
supporting food purchases were altered by crossing out
personal purchases,

* % %

Exhibit N-14 pertains to an audit of the imprest fund. It
discloses that "Cash is obtained from the imprest fund by the Employee
Development Branch and delivered to a specific employee in the
organization requesting the lecture who, in turn, makes the actual
payment to the lecturer," The Audit Division recommended that the
center employee "actually making the payment to the lecturer” sign
an appropriate verification form,

Exhibit N-15 concerns property passes. The report "noted
that an oscilloscope was at the home of an employee for personal
purposes., It had been removed from the Center without use of a
property pass. The Branch Head informed [the auditor] that although
he had given verbal approval of the loan of the equipment, he was
unaware of its intended unofficial use,”

Sacks explained that "very few" of the reports issued by his

office within a fiscal year "contain comments which point up acts

of dishonesty," because "most employees perform their duties in an
honest upright fashion * * *," Annually, the Audit Division prepares
well over 50 reports concerning in-house civil service activities
similar to those discussed above. The preparation of such reports
consumes a substantial proportion of unit employee work-tine (see
Exhibits N-16 and N-17),
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C. The testimony of Francis Alexander concerning his duties
in the Audit Division.

Francis Alexander, called by the Union as its witness, was
employed by NASA in the Audit Division from January 1965 to August
1969, 11/ Alexander's job in the Audit Division principally involved
the preparation of monthly reports on the status of audit recommendations.
Alexander prepared no audits himself. The particular job performed
by Alexander in the Audit Division has since been eliminated,

In preparing his reports, Alexander would summarize each audit,
its findings and recommendations, and what action had been taken.
Alexander, on the basis of his experiences, summarized an in-house
audit as follows:

% * % You usually go into a particular function or program
with a view to determining whether or not the particular
program is being carried out by * * * people * ¥ * o see if
the work being done is in accordance with the mandate of
Congress or the Agency or the rules and regulations that
have prescribed and authorized [the particular program],

In Alexander's view, "the primary function of the audit * * * [js]
to determine the efficiency of the operation for management."

Alexander testified that the NASA Inspections Division was
charged with the responsibility of discovering fraud; and that he had
written instructions "to refer any cases that we came across that
‘involved the integrity or dishonesty of any individual to the
Inspections Division." Alexander continued:

We submitted anything that we might have picked up in the
audit that would even indicate there was fraud or dishonesty
or someone doing something they shouldn’t have done, such

as falsification of records, making claims that weren't
proper, anything like that.

Alexander also noted that he would not "come across instances of this
frequently in {his] experience," He added: "Occasionally, you would
run across, well primarily it would be involving something like a travel

11/ The Union's representation petition in this case was filed in
June 1970, some 10 months after Alexander left the Audit Division.
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voucher or misuse of imprest money or something like that.” 12/ However,
Alexander never recalled seeing any audit programs that were "primarily”
concerned with investigating the fraud or dishonesty of any NASA
employees or NASA contract employees. 12/

When asked what he would say was the “primary function" of
the Audit Division, Alexander «nswered:

% % % in my opinion the primary purpose of that audit or

any other audit is to determine how well the operation is

being carried out, the efficiency of the operation, whether

or not there is compliance with laws, rules and regulations. 14/

IV, The decision of the NASA Administrator,

Deputy Associate Administrator Moritz explained how the NASA
Administrator, Dr. Paine, made his determination under Section 3(b)(4)
to deny the Union's petition. Upon receipt of the petition, Moritz
held preliminary discussions with Patrick A, Gavin, Assistant Director
of Personnel; 15/ and David J. Harnett, Assistant Administrator for
Industry Affairs. Moritz then arranged a meeting with Deputy Administrator
Dr. George M, Low, and with Harnett and Gavin. At the meeting, they
discussed "the nature of the petition, the nature of the alternatives

12/ Alexander further testified:

* ¥ # T don't think necessarily that [the audit] employee
would work with the Inspections Division, but we would refer
any information to the Inspections Division, that we were
available to Inspections for consulting with them on this
type of a situation as to what we found. It is possible we
may have been detailed or assigned to Inspections to work
with them, but it would then be an Inspections Division
responsibility, not an Audit Division.

13/ As stated, the Audit Division by-axd-large deals with in-house
activities of NASA employees; audits of external contracts are handled
for the most part by the Department of Defense,

14/ The Union offered into evidence as Exhibits P-2 through P-8
statements assertedly executed by unit employees, generally stating
their duties. Counsel for NASA principally objected to the admission
of these statements as hearsay. I sustained the objection because

the witnesses were not available for cross-examination. No request
was made by the Union for a continuance to bring in any unit employees.
The Union, in its post-hearing brief, does not pursue its offer of
Exhibits P-2 through P-8.

15/ Director Sacks testified that Gavin had extensive discussions
with him concerning the petition,

- 18 -

44

or the manner in which [they] could respond, and secured [Dr, Low's)
agreement that [they] would deny the petition."

Moritz explained:

My decision was based on my knowledge of the issues,
instructions and regulations and procedures of the agency,
which they [the other participants] also were aware of, I
know what the functions and duties and responsibilities of
these offices are and it was based on my knowledge in these
areas when I made the recommendation * * * to the Deputy
Administrator * * *,

Thereupon, Moritz and his associates prepared a denial letter,
which was transmitted to Dr. Low for his concurrence., After Dr, Low
concurred, the letter was transmitted to NASA Administrator Dr. Paine.
Dr. Low personally discussed the matter with Dr. Paine and then
Dr, Paine signed the letter.

Exhibit N-6 is the "briefing memorandum,” initially signed
by Moritz on July 13, 1970, This memorandum was transmitted to the
NASA Administrator through Dr. Low. The memorandum states in part:

FROM: Assistant Administrator for Administration

THRU: Acting Associate Administrator for Organization and
Management

SUBJECT: Petition of AFGE Lodge 2842 - AFL-CIO, Regarding
Audit Division, NASA Headquarters

DISCUSSION

AFGE Lodge 2842 - AFL-CIO, has petitioned the Department

of Labor to conduct an election in order for the Lodge to

gain exclusive recognition of a unit consisting of certain
employees in the Audit Division (Code DU) of NASA Headquarters.

Labor-Management Relations Executive Order 11491, as did
previous Executive Order 10988, does not apply to an office
which has as a primary function audit of the conduct or

work of officials or employees concerning their honesty or
integrity in the discharge of their duties, when the head

of an agency determines, in his sole judgment, that the Order
cannot be applied in a manner consistent with the internal
security of the agency. The reasons for possible exclusion
are readily apparent, and as the unit requested by the union
is engaged in the functions mentioned above we bellieve

the Order should not apply.
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Recommended Action

It is recommended that you deny the petition by signing

the attached memorandum. A copy of the memorandum will

then be transmitted to the local Lodge President and the
Department of Labor.

Thereafter, on July 23, 1970, Dr. Paine wrote Assistant Director
of Personnel Gavin, advising Gavin of the determination to deny the
petition for reasons stated above,

CONCLUSIONS

The narrow issue raised on remand is whether the determination
by the NASA Administrator, that the unit sought to be represented
by the Union "has a primary function related to internal security"
within the meaning of Section 3(b)(4) of the Executive Order, was
made in an “arbitrary or capricious” mamner, Of course, as the
Council made clear in its decision, the "burden of proof"” is on the
"union which claims that the action of the agency head was arbitrary
or capricious,"

It has long been settled in the private sector that "[aJdministra-
tive action may be regarded as arbitrary and capricious only where
it is not supportable on any rational basis;" consequently, 'something
more than error is necessary to spell out arbitrary or capricious
action.," N.L.R.B. v. Jas. H. Matthews & Co,, 342 F, 2d 129, 131-132
(C, A. 3, 1965), cert, denied, 382 U, S. 832 (and cases cited therein);
also see, Carlisle Paper Box Company v. N.L.ReB., 398 F, 2d 1, 5-6
(C.A.3, 1968) (and cases cited therein). In short, “[t]he fact that
a reviewing court could have reached a decision contrary to that
reached by the agency will not support a determination that the
administrative action was arbitrary and capricious.” And see,
Pauley v. United States, 419 F, 2d 1061, 1066 (C.A. 3, 1969; Road
Review League, etc., v. Boyd, 270 F. Supp. 650, 663 (S.D, N.Y., 1967);
Canty v. Board of Education, etc., 312 F, Supp. 254, 256 (S.D. N.Y.,
1970); Motor Freight Lines v. United States, 96 F. Supp. 424, 427
(N, D, Tex., 1951); O’Breirne v. Overholser, 193 F, Supp. 652, 656
(. €., 1961), 16/

;g/ Counsel for both parties have cited cases, noted above, from the
private sector to define the term "arbitrary or capricious,” Although
the cited cases contain language differences, they generally comport
with the language quoted above, No reason has been argued, and I can
perceive of none, why the definition of “arbitrary or capricious”
applied in the private sector should not also be applied under the
Executive Order,
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Reviewing the action of the NASA Administrator in light of
the above, I find that his determination was not arbitrary or capricious.
As the essentially undisputed evidence summarized herein shows, a
unit auditor is chiefly responsible to review the activities of
per sons who are performing the work of NASA to ensure compliance with
laws, regulations and policies. Such a review will, of necessity,
surface facts pertaining to the honesty and integrity of the agency
personnel involved, Examples of such disclosures are found in the
audit reports and related documents produced by NASA, The audits
revealed, inter alia, that a contractor was permitted to exceed the
statutory limitation on certain construction; that a contractor was
permitted to perform unauthorized in-house engineering services; the
questionable use of administrative airplanes on a number of occasions;
shortages in certain accounts and related data; a significant number
of travel vouchers at substantial variance with prudent business
practices; co-mingling of lunch room funds and the related alteration
of a cash register tape; and the personal use of equipment at an
employee's home. These disclosures were contained in typical audit
reports, the preparation of which consumes the major portion of the
unit employees' work time., 17/

The Union argues that the NASA Inspections Division, not the
Audit Division, has as its primary fyunction the responsibility for
ensuring that employees perform their work with honesty and integrity
(Br. pp. 19-21), However, as stated, a major aspect of a typical
audit is to review the activities of NASA civil service employees to
ensure that the prescribed procedures and policies, rules and
regulations, and laws are being complied with. Involved is the
"legality” as well as the "efficiency” and "appropriateness" of
employee activity under audit. And, in my view, the conjunctive
phrase "honesty and integrity," as used in Section 3(b) (4) of the
Executive Order, would seem broad enough to include the types of
indiscretions evidenced by audit reports showing, inter alia, improper

ll/ The Union had requested that NASA produce at the hearing "copies
of all audit programs” and "all audit reports during the past 3 years
which were primarily initiated by the Audit Division to discover fraud
and dishonestyby NASA employees or NASA contract employees" (Exhibit
P-1). NASA's counsel acknowledged that they "have nothing [that]
precisely fits that description * * *," Instead, NASA produced
Exhibits N-7 through N-15, The Union, in its post-hearing brief,
argues that if the eight reports produced by NASA “purport to be the
ones which most vividly illustrate sensitive areas out of" the many
prepared during the past elght or more years, it seems highly doubtful
that the Audit Division employees have as a primary function the audit
of employees to ensure honesty and integrity * * *' (Br., pp. 15-16),

However, the fact that there are relatively few instances of documented

indiscretions and misconduct on the part of audited employees is more
probative of the integrity and honesty of the employees than the primary
function of the auditors,
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use of NASA equipment, falsification of records or documents, co-mingling the representation petition filed herein,

of personal and agency funds, and related activities. For, even the
Webster New International Dictionary (2nd Ed., 1961) definition of
this phrase, as quoted by the Union at p. 5 of its brief, broadly
defines honesty as

% % % characterized by integrity or fairness and straight-
forwardness in conduct, thought and speech, free from fraud,
guile or duplicity * * %

and defines "integrity" as "free from corrupting influence or practice DATED:
* % %" Auditing for the disclosure of criminal conduct or fraud is

not a sine qua non for an audit to ensure "honesty and integrity."

Rather, an audit meets the limitations of Section 3(b)(4) of the

Executive Order if it is principally concerned with, inter alia,

employees' trustworthiness, truthfulness, lack of corruption, straight-

forwardness and related indicia of compliance with laws, regulations,

and established procedures.

Further, the evidence of record summarized above makes clear
that the NASA Management Audit Office or Division is -- with the
Inspections and Security Divisions -- an integral part of the internal
security system of NASA, As shown, the Inspections Division is
responsible for ensuring that there is adherence to standards of
conduct which the Agency believes appropriate for its employees. The
Security Division is concerned with safeguarding property, facilities
and classified information. The Audit Office or Division is charged
with determining whether there has been compliance by NASA personnel
with laws and regulations and expected standards of work. In the
performance of its functions, the Audit Office surfaces problems
and identifies individuals who may be involved in indiscretions or
proscribed conduct. There is a close and consistent interrelationship,
including the exchange of information, between the Audit, Inspections
and Security Divisions. Consequently, I cannot find that the NASA
Administrator was arbitrary or capricious in determining that a
primary function of the Audit Division is the audit of work of officials
or employees for the purpose of ensuring honesty and integrity in the
discharge of their official duties and that the Executive Order
cannot be applied to the requested unit in a manner consistent with
the internal security of NASA,

Recommendation
Upon the basis of the foregoing findings and conclusions,

I recommend that the Assistant Secretary sustain the dismissal of
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November 11, 1971
Washington, D. C.
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Frank H. Itkin
Hearing Examiner



January 24, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION,
HOUSTON AREA OFFICE - SOUTHWEST
REGION, HOUSTON, TEXAS

A/SLMR No. 126

This case involves a complaint filed by Bobby J. Stephens, an
individual, against the Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation
Administration, Houston Area Office - Southwest Region, Houston, Texas
alleging a violation of Section 19(a)(2) of the Executive Order.

The events giving rise to the complaint occurred when the
Complainant was not selected in July 1970 for a position in Austin,
Texas on which he had bid. The Complainant alleged that his non-~
selection was based on his membership in and activities on behalf of
a labor organization, the Professional Air Traffic Controllers
Organization, Inc. (PATCO).

The Complainant, a long-time employee of the FAA, first bid om
a job in the Austin facility in June 1969, at which time he disclosed
his PATCO membership during an interview with the director of that
facility. Following this disclosure, allegedly he was harrassed, and
subsequently, was given a poor "Employee Appraisal Report." However,
this report was revised and a new appraisal finding his work satis-
factory was submitted as part of his employee file when he again
applied for an Austin position in July 1970. Complainant theorized
that his PATCO membership was related to his unsuccessful attempt in
1970 to obtain the appointment and that, therefore, the Activity's
conduct violated the Order.

Under all the circumstances, the Assistant Secretary agreed
with the Hearing Examiner's finding that the Complainant had not
established that his failure to obtain the Austin position was based
on union considerations in violation of Section 19(a)(2). Moreover,
the Assistant Secretary agreed with the Hearing Examiner's determi-
nation not to consider certain conduct of the Respondent under
Section 19(a)(l) of the Order where the complaint did not allege
violation of Section 19(a)(l), the Complainant had failed to amend
his complaint at the hearing to allege a 19(a)(1l) violation, and some
of the conduct in question appeared to be time-barred under the
Assistant Secretary's Regulations.
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A/SLMR No. 126
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION,
HOUSTON AREA QFFICE - SOUTHWEST
REGION, HOUSTON, TEXAS

Respondent
and Case No. 63-2508(CA)
BOBBY J. STEPHENS
Complainant
DECISION AND ORDER

On September 21, 1971, Hearing Examiner Henry L. Segal issued
his Report and Recommendations in the above-entitled proceeding,
finding that the Complainant had not met the burden of proof with
respect to the Section 19(a)(2) allegations contained in the complaint
and recommending that the complaint be dismissed in its entirety. No
exceptions or briefs were filed to the Hearing Examiner's Report and
Recommendations.

The Assistant Secretary has reviewed the rulings of the
Hearing Examiner made at the hearing and finds that no prejudicial
error was committed. The rulings are hereby affirmed, Upon consider-
ation of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations and the
entire record in the subject case, I hereby adopt the findings,
conclusions and recommendations of the Hearing Examiner. 1/

1/ As noted by the Hearing Examiner, the record disclosed certain conduct
by the Respondent which arguably could be viewed as interfering with
employee rights assured by the Order in violation of Sectiom 19(a)(l).
Upon review of the evidence, I find that certain conduct of the Re-
spondent does, in fact, raise substantial questions as to whether
Section 19(a)(1l) was violated. However, in the particular circumstances,
i ing the fact that the complaint—herein did mot atlege violation of
Section 19(a)(l), that the Complainant, when given the opportunity, did
not choose to amend the complaint at the hearing, and that some of the
conduct in question might be time-barred under Sections 203.1 and 203,2
of the Assistant Secretary's Regulations, I agree with the Hearing
Examiner's determination not to consider such conduct under

Section 19(a)(1l) of the Order.



ORDER

Pursuant to Section 6(a)(4) of Executive Order 11491 and
Section 203.25(b) of the Regulations, the Assistant Secretary for
Labor-Management Relations hereby orders that the complaint be,
and it hereby is, dismissed in its entirety.

Dated, Washington, D. C. K (
January 24, 1972 AW /] -’zL/ /
i b L ( !

. Jo Usery, Jr., AssZ:ﬁr‘fSecregLry of
Lalyt f£or Labor-Manag nt Relations
/,
/

e
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL AVIATION AIMINISTRATION
HOUSTON AREA OFFICE-SOUTHWEST REGION
HOUSTON, TEXAS

Respondent
CASE NO. 63-2508(CA)
and

BOBBY J. STEPHENS

Complainant

James E. Gill, Chief, Employee-Management
Relations Branch, Southwest Region,
P.0. Box 1689, Fort Worth, Texas 76101,
for the Respondent

William N, Wheat, Esq., 715 Houston Citizens
Bank Building, Houston, Texas 77002, for
the Complainant

Before: Henry L. Segal, Hearing Examiner

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Statement of the Case

This proceeding, heard at Houston, Texas, on July 13 and 14,
1971, arises under Executive Order 11491 (herein called the Order)
pursvant to a Notice of Hearing issued by the Regional Administrator
of the lebor-Management Services Administration, United States
Department of Labor, Kansas City Region, on March 1, 1971, in
accordance with Section 203.8 of the Regulations of the Assistant
Secretary for lLabor-Mansgement Relations (herein called the Assistant
Secretery). It was initiated by a complaint filed by the Complainant
on December 2, 1970, alleging that Respondent has e ed in and is
engaging in violations of Section 19, subsection (al;?gﬁ of the Order.



Section 19(a)(2) of the Order makes it an unfair labor practice for
agency management to encourage or discourage membership in a labor organi-
zation by discrimination in regard to hiring, tenure, promotion, or other
conditions of employment. The complaint involves the sole allegation that
the Respondent failed to select Complainant for promotion on an announce-
ment of Respondent seeking bids for certain positions which closed on or
about Junme 26, 1970.

At the hearing both parties were represented by counsel who were
afforded full opportunity to adduce evidence, examine and cross-examine
witnesses, argue orally and file briefs. Upon the entire record in this
matter, from observation of the witnesses and after due consideration of
the briefs filed by the parties, on August 23, 1971,.I make the following:

Findings and Conclusions
I. Facilities Involved

The Southwest Region of the Federal Aviation Administration (herein
called the FAA), headed by a Regional Director, includes the Houston Area
headed by an area manager, N.E. Peterson. The facilities in the area
immediately involved herein are the William P, Hobby Airport in Houston,
Houston Intercontinental Airport, and the Austin, Texas airport.

I1. The Issues

The Respondent issued an announcement, identified as FPP-SW-70-297,

on June 12, 1970, of openings for GS-12 air traffic controllers at the
Austin, Texas tower. Bobby Stephens, who bid for the openings, was not
selected. The sole issue presented here is whether the non-selection of
Stephens was based on his membership in and activities on behalf of a

labor organization, Professional Air Traffic Controllers Organization, Inc.,
(herein called PATCO), the Respondent thereby discouraging membership in

a labor organization in violation of Section 19(a)(2) of the Order.

III. The Unfair Labor Practices

A. Complainant's Assignments

After four years as an air traffic.controller in the Air Force, Bobby
Stephens was hired by the FAA as an air traffic controller specialist trainee,
GS-b, at Moisand Tower in New Orleans, Louisiana, in March 1960. He pro-
gressed to a GS-8 air controller specialist classification at Moisand.
In late April 1961, he transferred to Hot Springs, Arkansas as an Air
Traffic controller taking a cut to GS-7. According to Stephens, he made
the change because of climate and because his wife came from Little Rock,
Arkansas. He remained at Hot Springs for the lengthy period of seven and
one-half years because he enrolled in a business course at Henderson College

-2-

49

located at Arkadelphia, Arkansas and it required that time to receive his
B.S. degree. In January 1968, in anticipation of receiving his degree,
Stephens, who had progressed to grade GS-10 at Hot Springs, began to bid

on jobs in order to receive a promotion. He put in bids for jobs at

Little Rock, San Antonio, Houston Intercontinental, and at William P. Hobby
Airport (herein called Hobby) in Houston, Texas. He was successful on his
bid to Hobby and obtained a GS-11 air controller specialist position at
Hobby on September 8, 1968. He reported for duty at Hobby in October 1968,
where he is still employed.

B. Stephens' Activity on Behalf of Professionmal
Air Traffic Controllers Organization, Inc.

At all times material herein while employed at Hobby, Stephens
was a member of the Professional Air Traffic Controllers Organization,
(PATCO). He was also facility director for PATCO at Hobby during most
his career at Hobby until approximately two or three months before the
of the hearing, July 13, 1971. There are approximately 14 air traffic
control employees at Hobby, and according to Stephens, all 14 were members
of PATCO when he arrived at Hobby in October 1968. As will be discussed
later in this report, the membership in PATCO ultimately fell to one mem-
ber, Stephens.

Inc.
of
date

C. Stephens' Earlier Bids for Promotions, 1968 and 1969

While I do not have before me for disposition the issue as to
whether non-selection of Stephens on bids for positions made prior to the
June 1970 bid was violative of the Order, it is necessary to discuss them
inasmuch as Complainant contends that his problems arose after he was
turned down on a bid for a position at the Austin, Texas tower in June 1969,

Preliminarily to a discussion of the bids, the motives for bidding on
new positions should be mentioned. Aside from obvious motives such as
desires for certain geographical locations, it is often necessary to bid on
jobs at different locations in order to obtain a promotion. The facilities
of the FAA are classified into four levels depending on various factors
such as amount of air traffic and instruments used. Each of the levels
have different grade structures. Thus, Hobby is a level II facility where
the journeyman grade is GS-11 and Austin is a level III facility where the
journeyman grade is GS-12. Further, the levels of supervision are dif-
ferent at the various facilities so that at a level III facility it is
possible to promote into a supervisory grade direct from a GS-12 journey-
man grade. Stephens made his various bids in order to seek promotions and
further his career in FAA. 1/

1/ It is interesting to note that early in his career, Stephens bid from
Moisand tower where the journeyman grade was GS-11 to Hot Springs where
the journeyman grade was GS-10, thus moving back. However, as noted

above, Stephens did this for personal reasomns.
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Inasmuch as Complainant alleges that his difficulties commenced with
his June 1969 bid for a position at the Austin, Texas tower, it is essen-
tial to discuss the testimony of Stephens' facility chief at Hot Springs,
Arkansas concerning Stephens' performance there and a bid he previously
made while at Hot Springs for a position at Austin, since Finis Wilcoxson
and Richard Hagans were facility chief and assistant facility chief, res-
pectively, at Austin at that time as well as in June 1969.

Morris S. Gaskill, facility chief at Hot Springs, Arkansas, had
Stephens under his supervision for the seven and one-half years that
Stephens was employed at Hot Springs. Gaskill credibly testified that
while Stephens was technically a good controllexr, he was not a good team-
worker. Stephens was argumentative and lacked tact in his relationships
with his fellow employees. At a level I tower, the journeymen are all
GS-10's, and it was required that journeymen be rotated as watch supervisors.
Stephens always complained about being required to act as a supervisor when
he was not getting supervisor pay. Whenever Gaskill completed annual
Employee Appraisal Reports he would grade Stephens less than the best on
elements relating to teamwork and fairness and impartiality to fellow
employees. Gaskill discussed these faults with Stephens many times, and
Stephens would always argue that Gaskill was wrong. As noted above,
beginning in January 1968, Stephens began to look forward to graduating
from his business course at Henderson College, and to seek promotioms.
Stephens bid for a position in Little Rock, Arkansas and in June or July
he bid for one at Austin tower. Finis Wilcoxsom, Facility Chief at Austin,
called Gaskill from Austin to discuss Stephens' bid. In response to
Wilcoxon's questions Gaskill indicated that Stephens would make a good
controller. However, Wilcoxson asked Gaskill about Stephens' Employee
Appraisal Report and why he was rated low in teamwork, and fair in certain
other elements. Gaskill then explained Stephens' shortcomings to Wilcoxsonm.
Later, Stephens accused Gaskill of deliberately cutting him down for the
Little Rock and Austin jobs. Gaskill explained that he did not talk to the
Little Rock facility chief but that the Austin chief called him, he did
not call the Austin chief.

All of this occurred before PATCO was in the picture, and there is
no evidence in the record that Stephens was active in PATCO at the time he
was stationed at Hot Springs. Complainant did not rebutt the testimony of
Gaskill.

With respect to Stephens' ultimate selection for his present position
at Hobby, Gaskill was not asked for a recommendation on Stephens.

Within a few months after Stephens was transferred with a GS-11 pro-
motion to Hobby he began to bid on other jobs, including promotions avail-
able at Austin tower. On these early bids, Stephens admits that he was
not qualified because he was not “facility rated." He had just moved from
a level I facility at Hot Springs to a level II facility at Hobby in
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October 1968, and it normally takes from three to six months' training to
"check out" on instruments used at a level II facility.

Subsequent to being "facility rated" at Hobby, Stephens bid on jobs
at Dallas and Austin. (Later in this report in my discussion of Stephens'
bid in 1970 for a position at Austin, which is the subject of the complaint,
I will discuss the procedure in detail for processing of bids for promo-
tions. For the present it is clear from the record that the selection of
individuals from eligibility lists provided by the personnel office is in
the discretion solely of the facility chief involved. He has before him for
consideration the applicant's Employee Appraisal Reports and the applicant's
employment profile furnished by the personnel office. No interview is
required, but an applicant may choose to visit the facility chief for an
interview.) In connection with his June 1969 bid for a job at Austin,
Stephens voluntarily visited Austin on June 13, 1969, for an interview.
He was interviewed by Facility Chief Wilcoxson and Assistant Facility
Chief Hagans. Stephens testified that the interview was cordial and that
he thought that he had impressed Wilcoxson. However, during the course of
the interview he was asked if he belonged to any orgamization. Stephens
replied that he belonged to PATCO and before that to the Air Traffic
Controllers Association. Stephens was not selected, and according to
Stephens all of his troubles started after that interview since, he states,
this is the first time the FAA discovered his membership in PATCO.

It is necessary to digress at this point and discuss Respondent's
explanation for the questioning with respect to membership in an organiza-
tion., Several years ago the Civil Service Commission issued an interview
guide with sample questions. These sample questions were distributed by
the FAA to facility chiefs and others involved in interviewing applicants.
Among the sample questions listed was the question "are you active in any
local organization?" There were follow up questions as to what offices the
applicant held and what value the activity had for the applicant. The
purpose of such questions, aside from any possible ulterior motive with
respect to membership in a labor organization, is to develop an idea of
the applicant's interests and his service to the community. Of course,
with the advent of labor organizations in the Federal Government and
Executive Order 10988, succeeded by Executive Order 11491, an employee
applicant could imply from such question that he was being asked about
his union activity, and such general question might be interference with
an employee's rights assured by the Order. Other applicants were asked
the same question, and as will be discussed below, Stephens and others
were asked the same question in connection with the 1970 bid at Austin.
However, I am not called upon to determine here whether such question is
violative of the Order, since the complaint does not allege violations of
Section 19(a)(1) of the Order. In any event, perhaps because of this
case, the Director of the Southwest Region, FAA, issued a memorandum on
January 5, 1971 to all supervisors advising them not to ask the questionm,
which was designed to elicit information on participation in civiec, pro-
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fessional or community sponsored projects, since it could be misinterpreted
by employees as an inquiry into their union membership and activity. 2/

Witnesses presented by the Complainant testified to PATCO animus of
Wilcoxson. Thus, Roger Kennedy, PATCO's facility chief at Houston Inter-
continental Airport, testified that in December 1969 he heard Wilcoxson,
who sometime after June 1969 transferred from Austin to Houston as faci-
lity chief, shout out of his window to the Regional Vice President of
PATCO, "I killed PATCO at Austin and I intend to kill it here. We don't
need you atthis facility." Another witness employed at Houston testified
that in September 1969, Wilcoxson said to him, "Why mess around with
PATCO. I can get you as much or more." 3/

D. Events at Hobby After Jume 13, 1969

Complainant alleges that his problems arose at Hobby after his
June 13, 1969 interview with Wilcoxson when for the first time he disclosed
his membership in PATCO to an official of the FAA., Inasmuch as the com-
plaint is limited to an allegation of failure to promote Stephens on a bid
for a job in June 1970, the following matters will be discussed for the

2/ All of those, including Stephens, that testified with respect to being
questioned upon applications for promotion, stated that they were asked
whether they belonged to any organizations., In cross-examination of
Melvin N. Asher, Chief of Personmnel for the Houston Area, it was elici-
ted that in a report prepared by him in investigating the unfair labor
practices he noted that the question asked was whether the applicant
belonged to any employee organization. Asher testified this was an
error in language. At any rate, I am bound by the testimony at the
hearing, not reports prepared by the Respondent im its investigation of
the unfair labor practices.

3/ Again I am not called upon to make any findings with respect to whether
such statements by Wilcoxson would be violative of Section 19(a)(l) of
the Order since the complaint does not allege any violations of Section
19(a)(1). Moreover, these events would be barred as a basis for a
finding of a violation by Section 203.1 of the Assistant Secretary's
regulations since they occurred prior to January 1, 1970, the effec-
tive date of the Order. I will, however, consider this evidence for
background and relevance to a finding of ‘animus against PATCO by the
Respondent.
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purpose only of ascertaining their possible impact on the motive of Res-
pondent in failing to select Stephens for promotion in 1970. 4/

(1) The Systems Error of Jume 20, 1969 and
Simultaneous Landing Problem

One week after his interview with Wilcoxson on June 13, 1969,
Stephens was charged with his first systems error.

The FAA Handbook which governs the work of the controllers requires
6000 feet separation between landing and departing aircraft. On June 20,
1969, it was reported to Raby Johnson, facility chief at Hobby, that
Stephens had cleared two aircraft without the necessary separation. In
accord with set procedures, Johnson appointed a facility review board con-
sisting of Glen Wittage, Watch Supervisor at Hobby, and two journeymen,
McCorkle and Stinsomn.

The purpose of a review board is to determine the cause of the error
and to seek means of prevention of recurrences. There is no built-in disci-
pline action provided for a systems error.

Raby Johnson testified without contradiction that the witnesses at
the Board all stated that the separation of aircraft involved was 4000 to
4500 feet, and that when he spoke to Stephens about whether there was 6000
feet separation, Stephens replied, "What else can I say, if I say less than
6000 feet, I would be admitting that a systems error occurred."”

McCorkle, a member of the Board testified that both he and Stinson
thought there was no error. When he inferred that there was no democracy
on the Board because of Watch Supervisor Wittage's insistence that there
was an erroy he went to Johnmson and asked to be relieved from making a

4/ Complainant argues in his brief that although he has not alleged vio-
lations of Section 19(a)(l) of the Order, I can find certain events to
be violative on a "derivative" theory. A "derivative" theory merely
means that a violation of other sections of 19(a) may also be violative
of Section 19(a)(l). However, I am not free to find independent viola-
tions of Section 19(a)(l) of the Order unless such violations are
alleged in the complaint. Further, some of these events would be
barred as a basis for a finding of violation by Section 203.1 of
the Assistant Secretary's regulations since they occurred prior to
January 1, 1970, the effective date of the Order, and others would
be barred by Section 203.2 of the Assistant Secretary's regulations
since they occurred more than six months prior to the filing of the
unfair labor practice charge and more than nine months prior to the
filing of the complaint.

-7-



decision and to be excused from the Board. Johnson testified that there
had already been three days of hearing when McCorkle came to him, and that
McCorkle merely stated to him that he could mot arrive at a decision, and
asked to be relieved. Johnson refused, stating that it was McCorkle's
duty to complete his job. 5/

The Board issued a report to Johnson that a systems error had occurred.
The report was signed by the chairman, Wittage. Only the chairman's signa-
ture is required, (At Hobby another systems error has since been called,
involving a watch supervisor, after a hearing by a board of review.).

Stephens also had a problem in mid-1969 with respect to simultaneous
landing of aircraft on two intersecting runways, runways 21 and 17 at
Hobby Field. Stephens thought it was unsafe. The FAA handbook was silent
on the problem. Supervision was of the opinion that it was all right.
While other controllers may have felt the same way as Stephens about the
problem, Stephens was the only one that refused to pemmit such simultaneous
landings and argued with Johnson and his.other supervisors about it.
Johnson was forced to get a ruling from the FAA saying it was permissable,
and Johnson issued a memorandum in August 1969 ordering such simultaneous
landings. Subsequently, the FAA manual was revised to permit simultaneous
landings on such intersecting runways.

(2) Alleged Anti-PATCO Statement of Hobby Facility
Chief Raby Johnson and Special Achievement Awards

According to Stephens, at the time he became PATCO's facility director,
in October, 1969, 100% of the controller's were members of PATCO. In
November, 1969, Stephens discussed with Johnson the possibility of obtain-
ing exclusive recognition for PATCO at Hobby under the then existent Exe-
cutive Order, 10988, According to Stephemns, Johnson indicated PATCO was not
eligible to apply, but if Stephens did, he would throw the application in
the "trash can.”" Johnson, on the other hand, testified that he told
Stephens there was a doubt as to eligibility because instructions from
headquarters denied the eligibility of PATCO at locations where there had
been an organized "sick out."” (Such as occurred at Hobby on June 18 and
19, 1969.) He denied that he told Stephens that he would throw an
application in the "trash can," and actually when Stephens subsequently

5/ McCorkle did not testify that he advised Johnson that there was no
error or that he thought the Board was undemocratic. According to
Johnson, McCorkle did say that this error occurred at a bad time.
Apparently McCorkle was referring to a "sick out" of controllers which
occurred at various facilities of the FAA on June 18, 19 and 20, 1969.
There were controllers at Hobby who reported sick on June 18 and 19,
but by June 20, there was a regular force on duty. Press reports
indicated that the "sick out" was instigated by PATCO.
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applied on behalf of PATCO, the application was transmitted to FAA head-
quarters.

By mid~1970 membership in PATCO dwindled to only ome, Stephens. Com-
plainant attributes this decline in membership to alleged anti-PATCO
statements by Johnson and issuance of Special Achievement Awards to con-
trollers allegedly as rewards for resigning from PATCO.

Boyce McCorkle, an air traffic controller at Hobby testified that in
February 1970, after he came off of a shift, Facility Chief Johnson asked
him to join him for a cup of coffee. During the conversation, Johnson
told McCorkle that it would be better for his career if he would disassociate
from PATCO and the leadership thereof.

Stephens testified that he was called into Johnson's office in
February 1970 and was told by Johnson that it would be to his advantage to
disassociate from PATCO, and its officers Carl Evans, PATCO Regional
President and Mike Rock, PATCO Board Chairman.

In assessing these alleged statements of Johnson, it must be noted
that on June 18, 19 and 20, 1969, there was a "sick out" of controllers
allegedly fostered by PATCO, In a case decided by the Assistant Secretary,
Professional Air Traffic Controllers Orgamization, Inc., A/SLMR No. 10
(January 29, 1971), the Assistant Secretary found that PATCO had violated
Section 19(b)(4) of the Order by engaging in an illegal strike. The reci-
tal of facts in that case indicates that throughout latter 1969 and early
1970 there were press releases and statements by officials of PATCO
indicating that the controllers were going to strike, culminated by an
actual strike by controllers commencing March 25, 1970, and lasting several
days thereafter. (None of the Hobby controllers participated in the strike.)

According to Raby Johnson, Raymond Shaffer, FAA Administrator, issued
a General Notice (GENOT) in March, 1970 to all facilities cautioning
employees not to engage in a strike, that it could jeopardize their
careers, and instructing Facility chiefs to discuss the matter with their
employees. Johnson, credibly testified that, in accordance with Shaffer's
General Notice, he spoke to all the employees in March, 1970, (Johnson
testified that McCorkle and Stephens were probably in error in placing
these statements in February.) He told the employees that they would be
wrong to strike and that they should not be misled by irresponsible PATCO
leadership. He admitted that he did make a special effort to meet McCorkle
early one morning to give him the message because McCorkle was on a night
shift and he did not want to miss passing on Administratoxr Shaffer's
comments. Johnson denied that he specifically told the employees to dis-
associate from PATCO, rather he told them to disassociate from irresponsi-
ble leadership.

There was considerable testimony by Stephens as to controllers

dropping out of PATCO and then receiving Special Achievement Awards. First,
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it should be noted that Stephens was not definite as to times. For
example, he estimated the approximate dates that controllers dropped their
membership in PATCO by referring to machine, listings issued by PATCO,

and concluding that the individual dropped out sometime before the final
listing of that individual's payment of dues. Second, no evidence was
presented to show direct knowledge by the Respondent of drop-outs from
PATCO before granting the awards. Stephens testified as follows with
respect to the experience of certain controllers at Hobby.

Westover disassociated from PATCO in March or April 1970, and
received an award in May 1970. Westover also got a promotion to Dallas
three months later. Magee disassociated from PATCO in March or April
1970, and received an award in April 1970. Magee later was promoted to
GS-12. Ramos disassociated from PATCO in April or May 1970, and received
an award in May 1970. Casford disassociated from PATCO in March, April
or May 1970, and received an award two or three months later. Hill
disassociated from PATCO in July 1970, and received an  award in May 1971.
Sdlter disassociated from PATCO in April or May 1970, and received his award
in July or August. Salter was later promoted to Dallas.

According to Respondent, with respect to the grant of a Special
Achievement Award, a supervisor must first write up the request for such
an award for Johnson's approval. It then must be transmitted to Lewis
Enochs, Chief of the Operations Branch of the Houston Area for approval,
which normally takes another two months. It then requires another 30
days for issuance of the check and the certificate. Thus, according to
Respondent, assuming the validity of Stephens' testimony most all the
awards were initiated before the controllers involved dropped out of
PATCO.

Actually, as of the time of the hearing, nine special achievement
awards were issued, two in 1969, five inm 1970, and two in 1971. One
controller, Caffey, testified that he received his special achievement award
in September 1969, and dropped out of PATCO later in January 1970. Recom-
mendations for awards to controllers' McGee and Westover were initiated
in February 1970, mad they had not dropped out of PATCO until March or April
1970. There was no direct testimony from anybody that they received awards
for dropping out of PATCO or that anybody advised Johnson or other supervi-
sors at Hobby that they dropped out.

With respect to Johnson's alleged discrimination toward PATCO members,
there was considerable evidence to negate such discrimination. For example,
Stephens admitted that two controllers were promoted in 1969 to other
locations while members of PATCO. Johnson hired a supervisor at Hobby who
had noted on his Appraisal Record that he was a member of PATCO and also
hired an ind ividual for a promotion to Hobby notwithstanding thatthis
individual advised him that he was a PATCO leader at the FAA's Albuquerque
facility.
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With respect to the drop in PATCO membership at Hobby, there was no
evidence that the drop was due to Johnson's efforts. In fact, most of the
resignations testified to occurred in the early half of 1970 when there
were rumors of a strike by PATCO and an actual strike by PATCO commencing
March 13, 1970. The two controllers who testified with respect to their
resignation from PATCO testified that they did so because of the irres-
ponsible leadership of PATCO.

(3) Stephens' Employee Appraisal Reports at Hobby

Prior to December 1968, there was only one field at Houston, Hobby.
In December 1968, Houston Intercontinental Airport was opened and Hobby
was made a separate facility. Raby Johnson was made facility chief at
Hobby. Although facility chiefs are given the option of selecting their
own people, since Hobby was a nmew facility, Johnson was handed personnel,
including Stephens.

In early 1969, Stephens indicated that he wanted to bid on the Austin
job, and wanted an up-to-date employee's appraisal for use on the bid.
Accordingly, a special employee appraisal was prepared for Stephens by his
then immediate supervisor, Watch Supervisor Wolraven, covering the period
from February 1, 1969, after Stephens qualified as a level II facility
controller, to June 9, 1969. This was an excellent appraisal which in-
cluded the remarks by Walraven, '"Mr. Stephens is an excellent tower con-
troller, I feel he would also make an excellent radar controller, even
though he has no radar experience. Has an excellent sense of timing and
control ability."” Raby Johnson signed this appraisal as second level
supervisor. Johnson testified that he thought the appraisal was rather
high, but he let it go through.

After Stephens was turned down on his bid for the Austin position
in June 1969, he accused Johnson of preventing him from getting the
position. Stephens said he was discriminated against by his chief at
Hot Springs and that Johnson and other supervisors were discriminating
against him, Johnson told Stephens that his attitude was bad, that he
was constantly complaining. He denied to Stephens that he had anything
to do with Stephens June 1969 turn down. Johnson testified that the only
communication he had with Hagans, Deputy Chief at Austin, and Wilcoxsom,
then Chief at Austin, on the June 13, 1969 bid was a call from them asking
him to rate the three bidders from Hobby for that job. There was no
mention of PATCO during this conversation.

Stephens testified that on three occasions Johnson told Stephens
that his attitude was bad, and as long as it was bal he would never leave
Hobby, Johnson denied that he told Stephens he would never leave Hobby.
Also, Stephens testified that in one of these conversations, Johnson
threatened to take away Stephens' specialty rating. Johnson denies
this. However, admittedly there were many arguments between Johnson and
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Stephens, usually initiated by Stephens' complaints about lack of promo-
tion, FAA policies, etc. In one of these discussions, according to
Johnson, Stephens brought up the relationship of PATCO and the FAA.
Stephens averred that if he belonged to an organization, and its philo-
sophies and requirements conflicted with management, the organization's
requirements should take precedence. Johnson disagreed.

In the meantime, the systems error, discussed above, occurred and the
problem of simultaneous landings on intersecting runways occurred. In
fact, according to Wittage, his then watch supervisor, Wittage relieved
Stephens of duty one day because of his refusal to obey orders and permit
simultaneous landings. Stephens told Wittage the procedure was not cor-
rect regardless of what the supervisors said. Stephens also complained
to Wittage about his progress in the Agency and that things in his record
were hurting his career. Wittage also testified, without rebuttal by
Stephens, that on one occasion Stephens lost five planes.

Subsequently, on August 31, 1969, Wittage prepared Stephens' next regular
Employee's Appraisal to cover the period from September 7, 1968 to
September 7, 1969. Stephens was radically marked down from his previous
Special Appraisal given him by Walraven. In the remarks section, Wittage
stated:

"Mr. Stephens has a very undesirable attitude.
This is expressed through his comments and actions
in the presence of his co-workers. These comments
tend to create dissension among his co-workers. He
has the knowledge and capability to perform his
duties in an effective manner, but displays an atti-
tude which indicates he will not use his initiative,
and that he intends only to do his job and no more.

Following are some comments made by Mr. Stephens
in the presence of his co-workers:

He would not work Local Control for a total of
three hours in one day.

He would not do anything unless the Watch Super-
visor told him to.

He should receive hazardous duty pay for working
local control.

Mr. Stephens has expressed a desire to 'get ahead'
but has dome nothing to impress his supervisors that he

-12-

34

has the potential. He appears very self-centered,
with only his own interest in mind, not those of
the FAA." B/

After this appraisal, Stephens complained to Johnson that the rating
was unfair, and he especially disagreed with Wittage's remarks. Johnson
explained that if he improved, under FAA procedures, he could be given a
new appraisal after 90 days. Johnson-instructed his supervisors té watch
Stephens for improvement with a view to upgrading Stephens' appraisal.

He did this because he knew that Stephens wanted to bid out of Hobby, and
he would not have much of a change with the August 31, 1969 appraisal. 7/

Accordingly, approximately 90 days later, Stephens was given a new
employee appraisal covering the period from September 7, 1969 to January
16, 1970. His rating was improved on most elements over the August 31,
1969 appraisal, and there were no remarks of supervisors.

(4) Johnson's Suggestion that Stephens visit
the Flight Surgeon

In November, 1970, after the unfair labor practice charges herein
were filed with the agency, and after Stephens was turned down for the
June, 1970 vacancy {(the subject of the complaint herein) discussed below,
Johnson suggested that Stephens visit a flight surgeon to discuss his
problems. This meeting with the flight surgeon never was arranged. Ac-
cording to Johnson, he thought that Stephens had maty problems evidenced
by Stephens' many complaints and his feelings of being discriminated
against in many ways by the Respondent, and he felt a discussion with a
flight surgeon would help Stephens.

It may well be that Johnson made the suggestion to Stephens because
Stephens filed the unfair labor practice charges. However, again under
the complaint filed herein, I am not called upon to make a finding as to
whether the suggestion of an appointment with the flight surgeon is vie-
lative of the Order, or whether Johmson's difficulties with Stephens, which
I find below were not attributable to Stephens' membership in PATCQ justi-
fied Johnson's idea that a visit to a doctor might help Stephens in his
career. At any rate, the impact of this incident on the non-selection of
Stephens in June 1970, occurring after the non-selection, is highly remote.

6/ Stephens did not deny that he made remarks to employees such as noted
in the appraisal. Employees testified that Stephens constantly com-
plained about promotions work policies, and the way he was being
treated.

Stephens appealed the August 31, 1969 appraisal to Lewis Enochs,
Chief, Air Traffic Operation Branch, Houston Area, who denied the

appeal.
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D. The June 1970 Austin Bid

The processing of the vacancies at Austin was in accord with normal
FAA procedure, described herein.

When a facility chief has vacancies he turns in a request to the
Regional Office, in this case located at Fort Worth, Texas. The person-
nel office then issues advertisements for jobs. The advertisement of the
jobs in question was designated FPP-SW-70~297, and Ft. Worth issued the
notice on June 13, 1970 listing the requirements and seeking bids. It
was posted throughout the five state Southwest Region providing that bids
could be filed anytime before the closing date, June 26, 1970. Normally,
the Persomnel Office provides a listing of three to five eligibles for
each job involved to the facility chief. There were 17 applicants for the
jobs in issue, and since there were five jobs to be filled all 17 applicants
were listed as "best qualified." Sixteen applicants, including Stephens,
were from the Southwest Region, and one was from the Southern Region.
(There is a procedure for bidding across regional lines.) The Personnel
Office submitted to the facility chief each applicant's employee apprais-
al (in Stephen's case his January 22, 1970 special appraisal) and his
employee profile, a machine listing of experience, places of service,
education, past awards, and any other training.

The selections from the list of eligibles is at the sole discretion
of the Facility Chief. No interviews are required of applicants, but
applicants may choose to set up interviews with the Facility Chief involved.

The Facility Chief at Austin, who had replaced Wilcoxson, was
Raymond Sherfy. The Deputy Facility Chief was still Richard A. Hagans.

There was no communication between Sherfy and/or Hagans and Johnson
concerning the qualifications of any of the applicants for the five jobs
involved. Johnson's only role was one requested by Stephens. Stephens
wanted to be certain that his latest employee appraisal would be considered.
Johnson and Stephens visited Lewis Enochs, Chief of the Operations Branch
in Houston on June 24, 1970, to request that the latest appraisal be submit-
ted to Sherfy and to request of Enochs that he set up an interview with
Sherfy for Stephens. Enochs subsequently called Sherfy and Hagans and
told them that Stephens would be calling for an interview. Enochs made
no recommendations with respect to Stephens except to ask Sherfy and Hagans
to take a good look at him.

Sherfy made his five selections on July 20, 1970. He only interviewed
one of the applicants prior to the selections, Armando Ramos of Hobby,
who had requested the interview. The other four were not interviewed.
His five selections were James W, Caffey from Hobby, Armando R. Ramos from
Hobby, Eugene Jeffus from Chattanooga, Reuben Gonzalez from Abilene, and
James C. Kelly from Beaumont-Port Arthur. Sherfy and Hagans testified
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that the five selected had better appraisals than Stephens, one had an
outstanding performance rating, and three had received special achievement
awards.

According to Sherfy, Stephens called for an interview after he had
already made the selections. Stephens was interviewed by Sherfy and
Hagans in mid-August 1970, Sherfy testified that he told Stephens that
all five selections were already made. Stephens testified that Sherfy
told him that four of the five selections were already made. 8/

During the course of the interview, in accordance with the
suggested questions for interviewers discussed above, Sherfy asked
Stephens what organizations he belonged to. Stephens replied PATCO and
the Methodist Church. 9/ Ramos, who was interviewed previously was
asked the same question. Ramos mentioned certain organizations and
volunteered that he had been a member of PATCO. 10/

Apparently, Stephens considered himself better qualified for selection
than some of those selected because of his long seniority with FAA,
According to the Respondent, seniority is not the dispositive factor in
making selections for promotions. However, while Stephens had a long
tenure with FAA, he was in grade as a GS-11 and had experience at a level
IT facility such as Hobby for only one and one-half years. The two
selections made from Hobby, Ramos and Caffey, had equal or longer service
at Hobby. 11/

Both Caffey and Ramos, who were selected from Hobby had received
Special Achievement Awards, and had better appraisals than Stephens.

The fact that Stephens had bid two times for the Austin job is not
significant since the record reveals that Austin is considered a desirable

8/ Melvin Asher, Chief of Personnel for the Houston Area testified that
Sherfy's list of five selections was received at the personnel office
on July 24, 1970

9/ Hagans, who was present at Stephens' interview with Wilcoxson in
June 1969, when Stephens, in response to Wilcoxson's question concern-
ing membership in organizations replied PATCO, testified that he did
not tell Sherfy prior to the interview or the selections that
Stephens was a member of PATCO.

10/ Although Ramos dropped out of PATCO in 1970 (he testified that he
was disgusted with the way PATCO was operating), he has rejoined
PATCO since his employment at Austin.

11/ As noted above, most of Stephens' experience as a journeyman was at

a level I facility, Hot Springs. Austin is a level III facility.
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location at the FAA, and there are many repetitive bids for Austin. Caffey,
a successful candidate, testified that he had bid five times for a job at
Austin,

With respect to the allegation of discrimination against PATCO members
for selection, selectee Jeffus was a member of PATCO and, in fact, was
facility director for PATCO at his previous station, Chattanocoga. Another
selectee, Gonzalez may have also been a member of PATCO.

Conclusions

As previously noted the sole issue before me is whether Bobby Stephens
was denied his bid on vacancies announced in June 1970 for a position at
_the Austin tower because of his membership in and activity on behalf of
PATCO.

Admittedly, the selection of controllers for the five vacancies
involved was completely within the discretion of Raymond Sherfy, the faci-
lity chief at Austin, However, the record reveals that his assistant,
Richard Hagans, had a role in the selection process. Hagans was involved
with Wilcoxson, then facility chief at Austin, in the 1969 interview of
Stephens for previous vacancies at Austin when Stephens disclosed his
membership in PATCO. Accordingly, it is clear that at least one of those
officials was involved when the selection was made. However, mere knowledge
of Stephens membership in PATCO is not conclusive that the reason he was
not selected was such membership., To sustain his burden, the Complainant
must show by a preponderance of the evidence that he would have been
selected had it not been for his membership in PATCO.

The theory of the Complainant is that after he was interviewed by
Wilcoxson and Hagans in June 1969, and disclosed his membership in PATCO,
he was coerced in various ways at his job at Hobby because of his member-
ship in PATCO; that this coercion was transmitted in some manner to Sherfy,
who made the appointments on the June 1970 bids at Austin, and that a basis
for Sherfy's denial of an appointment to Stephens was his PATCO membership
and activity.

Although there is no evidence of any communication between Sherfy and
other officials of FAA concerning any problems of Stephens that may have
arisen because of Stephens' membership in PATCO, and although I am not
called upon under the complaint herein to reach any conclusions as to
whether any of the Respondent's actions at Hobby were violative of the
Order, it is necessary for me to determine whether Stephens' problems
were related to his membership in PATCO for any impact they may have had
on the failure to select Stephens for the vacancies in question,
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That there was animus against PATCO during the times material herein
on the part of Raby Johnson, Facility Chief at Hobby, and other officials
and supervisors 6f the FAA must be conceded. But, such animus was a natural
response in view of PATCO's activities with respect to "sick-outs,” public
pronouncements indicating strike activity, and a strike in violation of the
Order. These activities are substantially set forth in the Assistant
Secretary's decision in which he found the strike to be violative of the
Order. 12/ Thus, it was not coercive for Johmson, in compliance with a
directive from his superioy to advise his employees, including Stephens, of
the consequences of following the leadership of PATCO and engaging in
activity which would be illegal. 13/

With respect to the resignations of employees from PATCO membership,
there is no evidence that these resulted directly from the activity of the
Respondent. It is reasonable to make the assumption that some govermnment
employees would want to leave an organization that was advocating and did
participate in a strike proscribed by the Order. In fact, those that testi-
fied with respect to their reasons for leaving PATCO stated that they did
so on their own volition because they disagreed with PATCO's actions. In
the same vein, I cannot agree with the contention that special achivement
awards were given as a reward for dropping out of PATCO. There is no
evidence that Respondent knew who dropped out of PATCO when the awards were
given. There is evidence that many of the awards were initiated before the
individuals concerned dropped out, and some were actually presented to
employees at a time that they were members.

Turning now to Stephens' personal problems, there is no basis for me
to conclude that the systems error was called on Stephens because of his
PATCO affiliation. It was reported to management that Stephens failed
to allow the proper FAA Handbook separation for departing and landing
aircrafts. Johnson followed the established procedure for alling a board
of review, the purpose of which was to ascertain if the error occurred, and
methods of prevention in the future., There is no disciplinary action taken
against a controller guilty of an error. While there is evidence that two
members of the Board of Review were reluctant to make a decision and one
testified at the hearing herein that he did not think there was an error,
the supervisory member of the review board did and signed the report of the
inquiry. It is inconceivable that the supervisory member found as he did
because of Stephens' PATCO affiliation, especially where witnesses of the
incident reported that there was an inadequate separation,

lZ/ Professional Air Traffic Controllers Orgamization, Inc., A/SLMR No. 10.
13/ I credit Johnson's version of his conversations with his employees
that he suggested that they disassociate from irresponsible leader-
ship at PATCO and that he did not suggest that they leave PATCO. It
is understandable how some employees might conclude from his statements
that he was suggesting they drop out of PATCO.
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Stephens had many arguments with Johnson and other supervisors as to
FAA procedures, methods of promotion, and supervision. He heatedly accused
Johnson of throttling his promotion to Austin in June 1969, and complained
that there were things in his file which prevented his promotions. He
argued with Johnson and other supervisors over the simultaneous landing
issue and refused orders to follow procedures desired by supervisors. He
often complained to fellow employees about the work, supervision and
policies of management. Stephens had the same problems with supervisors
and employees at Hot Springs before he came to Hobby and before any issue
of PATCO membership was in the picture.

The poor appraisal rating he received in August 1969, cannot be attri-
buted to his membership in PATCO. An appraisal is a subjective evaluation
of a supervisor. It is not in my purview to determine whether the appraisal
was too harsh, and there is no evidence which could lead to the conclusion
that the supervisor who prepared the appraisal was influenced by Stephens'
PATCO affiliation rather than by Stephens' performance and attitude between
June 1969, and the date of the appraisal. Significantly, when Stephens
complained to Johnson about this rating, Johnson promised to watch Stephens'
performance and have his supervisors also watch his performance with a
view toward giving him a special appraisal in 90 days if he improved.
Consequently, an up-graded appraisal was given Stephens in January 1970.
Such action is inconsistent with the contention that Johnson was discri-
minating against Stephens because of his union activity and was attempting
to keep Stephens from obtaining a promotion. 14/

Finally, we came to the sole issue before me for determination,
whether Stephens' non-selection on his June 1970, Austin bid was violative
of Section 19(a)(2) of the Order. Apparently Stephens' only basis for
justifying his selection over those selected was his seniority. But
seniority at the FAA is not dispositive. Further, his experience at a
level II facility such as Hobby, the level below the Austin facility, was
not extensive (for example, it was no greater than that of the two employ-
ees from Hobby who were selected). While Stephens had bid twice for a
job at Austin and had been turned down, repetitive bids are not extradordi-
nary in the FAA. One of the successful applicants on the bid in issue, had
bid five times previously for a position at Austin.

The selection of individuals for promotions is in many respects a
subjective process on the part of the selecting official. Sherfy and
Hagans testified that those selected had better appraisals than Stephens,
three had received special achievement awards, and one had an outstanding
performance rating.

Admittedly Sherfy had the sole authority to make the selections.
There is no evidence that he discussed Stephens' attributes with Johnson

14/ 1In fact there is evidence in the record that Johnson selected some
personnel for Hobby with knowledge that they were members of PATCO,
and that personnel from Hobby were promoted while they were members.
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or any other official. The record does not establish by a preponderance of
the evidence any good reason to discredit Sherfy and Hagans as to their
basis for the selections and their assurance that membership in PATCO was
no consideration. 15/

In view of the above, I conclude that the Complainant has not met the
burden of establishing by a preponderance of the evidence that the failure
to select Bobby J. Stephens for a position at Austin was discriminatory
with respect to hiring, tenure, promotions, or other conditions of employ-
ment in order to encourage or discourage membership in a labor organiza-
tion within the meaning of Section 19(a)(2) of the Order.

RECOMMENDATION

Upon the basis of the foregoing findings and conclusions it is recom-
mended that the complaint against Respondent, Department of Transportation,
Federal Aviation Administration, Houston area office, Southwest Region,
Houston, Texas, be dismissed in its entirety.

Dated at Washington, D.C.
September 21, 1971

foiy ) gl

Henry L. Segal
Hearing Examiner

15/ As noted above one of the selectees was a member of PATCO and a
Facility Director for PATCO at Chattanocoga and one other may have
been a member of PATCO.
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January 235, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTION OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

NAVAL UNDERWATER SYSTEMS CENTER,
NEWPORT LABORATORY,

NEWPORT, RHODE ISLAND

A/SLMR No, 127

This case involves a representation petition filed on July 16, 1971,
by the National Association of Government Employees, Local R1-134 (NAGE),
for a unit of all Wage Board employees of the Activity. The Intervenor,
Lodge 119, International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers,
AFL-CIO (IAM), which currently is the exclusive representative of the
claimed employees, and the Activity asserted that the petition filed by
NAGE was filed untimely,

The Activity and the IAM were parties to a negotiated agreement which
expired on April 20, 1971, On February 22, 1971, NAGE filed a representation
petition seeking an election in the unit represented by the IAM. The NAGE's
petition was dismissed as untimely by the Regional Administrator on
March 16, 1971, The dismissal was appealed to the Assistant Secretary who,
on May 27, 1971, upheld the Regional Administrator's action. The Activity
and the IAM had refrained from bargaining pending resolution of the appeal
but, subsequent to the Assistant Secretary's action, they entered into
negotiations. During these negotiations, the NAGE filed a second petition
for the same unit. Thereafter, despite the pendency of the NAGE's second
petition, the IAM and the Activity executed a collective bargaining agreement.

The Activity and IAM contend that the second NAGE petition was
untimely because under Section 202.3(d) of the Assistant Secretary's
Regulations, after the dismissal of the NAGE's first petition they should
have been afforded a ninety (90) day period free from rival claim within
which to consummate an agreement and the second NAGE petition came within
that ninety (90) day period.

The Assistant Secretary found that the second petition filed by NAGE
was timely. He noted that the ninety (90) day period prescribed in Section
202,3(d) of the Regulations is granted only upon the withdrawal or dismissal
of a petition filed not more than minety (90) and not less than sixty (60)
days prior to the terminal date of an agreement. Because the original
NAGE petition was not filed in the ninety (90) to sixty (60) day period,
the Regulation cited by the Activity and the IAM was found to be inappli-
cable., Accordingly, as the Assistant Secretary found there was no bar
to the processing of the petition of the NAGE, he dizected an election
in the claimed unit which he found to be appropriate.
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A/SLMR NO, 127
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

NAVAL UNDERWATER SYSTEMS CENTER,
NEWPORT LABORATORY
NEWPORT, RHODE ISLAND 1/

Activity

and Case No. 31-5222(EO)
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, LOCAL R1-134

Petitioner
and

LODGE 119, INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF
MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS, AFL-CIO

Intervenor
DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTION

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, a hearing was held before Hearing Officer
Thomas W, Campbell. The Hearing Officer's rulings made at
the hearing are free from prejudicial error and are hereby
affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties'
briefs, the Assistant Secretary finds:

1, The labor organizations involved claim to represent
certain employees of the Activity.

2. Petitiomer, the National Association of Government
Employees, Local R1-134, herein called NAGE, seeks an election
in a unit of all Wage Board employees of the Activity. The
parties are in agreement as to the appropriateness of the
claimed unit.

1/ The name of the Activity appears as corrected at the hearing.



The Activity and the Intervenor, Lodge 119, Internationmal
Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-CLO, herein
called IAM, have a collective bargaining history with respect
to the claimed unit which commenced in 1963. In 1969, the
Activity and the IAM entered into a two year agreement which
was to expire on April 20, 1971. On January 4, 1971, the
IAM notified the Activity of its desire to begin negotiating for
a new agreement, By letter dated January 19, 1971, the Activity
declined to begin negotiations, suggesting that negotiations
not commence until after the expiration of the ninety (90)
to sixty (60) day challenge period. On February 22, 1971, the
NAGE filed a petition in Case No. 31-4388(E0) seeking an
election in the unit represented by the IAM, Thereafter, the
Activity advised the IAM that 'because of this challenge ny the
NAGE/ it would not be permissable to proceed with the negotiation
process at this time,"

The Regional Administrator dismissed the NAGE's petition
on March 16, 1971, as being untimely, based on the view that
because the Activity-IAM agreement had an expiration date
of April 20, 1971, a petition, to be filed timely, would have been
filed no later than February 19, 1971, inasmuch as February 20,
1971, the sixtieth day prior to the terminal date of the agreement,
fell on a Saturday. On March 26, 1971, the NAGE appealed the
dismissal of its petition to the Assistant Secretary, contending
that in the circumstances its petition should have been considered
timely.

On May 27, 1971, the Assistant Secretary denied the NAGE's
appeal. By letter to the Activity dated Jume 7, 1971, the IAM
sought to commence negotiations, and on Jume 17, 1971, negoti-
ations began., Thereafter, on July 16, 1971, the NAGE filed its
representation petition in the subject case. Despite the
pendency of the NAGE's petition, an agreement was executed by
the Activity and the IAM on August 6, 1971, and submitted to
the Activity's Office of Civilian Manpower Management on
August 16, 1971,

The Activity and the IAM contend that, consistent with the
Assistant Secretary's Regulations, for a period of ninety (90)
days subsequent to the dismissal of its first petition, the NAGE
was precluded from filing a second petition and that, therefore,
the NAGE's July 16, 1971 petition, filed within ninety (90)
days of the Assistant Secretary's action om its first petition,
should be dismissed as untimely. In support of this contention,
they rely on Section 202.3(d) of the Assistant Secretary's
Regulations, which provides for a ninety (90) day period for
an incumbent exclusive representative and an Activity to
consummate an agreement free from rival claim upon the dismissal
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or withdrawal of a timely challenge. 2/ On the other hand,
the NAGE contends its July 16, 1971 petition was timely
inasmuch as there was neither an agreement nor a ninety

(90) day period free from rival claim in effect at the time

of filing. In this regard, the NAGE notes that the provisions
of Section 202,3(d) of the Regulations, relied upon by the IAM
and the Activity, are not applicable in this situation because
its earlier petition was not timely filed and that Section
expressly applies only to petitions filed within the ninety
(90) to sixty (60) day challenge period,

Based on the foregoing, I find that there is no bar to the
processing of the NAGE's petition in the subject case. Thus,
it is undisputed that there was no agreement in effect at the
time of filing of the petition. 1In addition, it is clear that
the ninety (90) day period provided for under Section 202.3(d)
is applicable only upon the withdrawal or dismissal of a
petition "filed mot more than nminety (90) days and not less than
sixty (60) days prior to the terminal date of an agreement..."
Therefore, inasmuch as the original NAGE petition was not
filed during the prescribed ninety (90) to sixty (60) day
period, I find that the Activity and the IAM were not entitled
to a ninety (90) day period free from rival claim within which
to consummate an agreement after the dismissal of the NAGE's
injtial petition and that, therefore, the NAGE's petition in
the subject case was filed timely, In these circumstances, I
shall direct an election in the petitioned for unit. 2/

I find that the following employees of the Activity
constitute a unit appropriate for the mrpose of exclusive
recognition under Executive Order 11491:

All Wage Board employees of the Naval Underwater
Systems Center, Newport Laboratory, Newport, Rhode
Island, excluding all General Schedule employees,
professional employees, employees engaged in Federal
personnel work in other than a purely clerical
capacity, management officials, and supervisors

and guards as defined in the Order,

2/ Section 202.3(d) states: "When a challenge to the

representation status of an incumbent exclusive repre-
sentative has been filed not more than ninety (90) days

and not less than sixty (60) days prior to the terminal

date of an agreement, and such challenge is subsequently
dismissed or withdrawn, the Activity and incumbent exclusive
representative shall be afforded a ninety (90) day period

free from rival claim within which to consummate an agreement."

3/ The evidence reveals that all General Schedule employees

of the Activity currently are represented by the NAGE in a
separate unit.



DIRECTION OF ELECTION

An election by secret ballot shall be conducted among the
employees in the unit found appropriate as early as possible,
but not later than 45 days from the date below. The appropriate
Area Administrator shall supervise the election, subject to the
Assistant Secretary's Regulatioms. Eligible to vote are all
those in the unit who were employed during the payroll period
immediately preceding the date below, including employees who
did not work during that period because they were out ill, or
on furlough including those in the military service who appear
in person at the polls. 1Imeligible to vote are employees who
quit or were discharged for cause since the designated payroll
period and who have not been rehired or reinstated before the
election date. Those eligible shall vote whether they desire
to be represented for the purpose of exclusive recognition by
the National Association of Government Employees, Local R1-134;
or by Lodge 119, International Association of Machinists and
Aerospace Workers, AFL-CIO; or by neither.

\ |
Dated, Washington, D.C. :
January 25, 1972 y / A7, /.\
) Zéhre/ B [

W. J. Bdety, Jr.,/Assisfant Secretary of

Labor/flor Labor~Management Relations
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January 28, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY,

UNITED STATES NAVAL WEAPONS CENTER,
CHINA LAKE, CALIFORNIA

A/SLMR No. 128

This case involved a unit clarification petition filed by the
International Association of Fire Fighters, Local F=-32, AFL-CIO, (IAFF)
seeking clarification of the status of two employee classifications
located in an exclusive bargaining unit at the United States Naval
Weapons Center, China Lake, California. Contrary to the view of the
IAFF, the Activity contended that the disputed classifications should
be excluded as supervisory.

With respect to the Fire Captains, GS-7, the Assistant Secretary
found that they were not "supervisors" within the meaning of Executive
Order 11491 and that this classification should be included in the unit.
In this respect, he found that all of the Fire Captains' actions were
subject to the close scrutiny and review of their immediate supervisors,
the Assistant Chiefs., 1In addition, he noted that established practices,
written procedures and regulations further restricted the Captains'
exercise of independent authority and that while the Captains have some
functions and responsibilities that set them apart from other Fire-
fighters, any authority vested in them was of a routine or clerical
nature not requiring the use of independent judgment. Moreover, he noted
that Captains have no authority to hire, discharge, or lay off employees,
have little control over assignments and in fire emergencies their actions
were controlled by established routinized procedures dictated by the
exigencies of the situation., With respect to personnel evaluatioms, the
Assistant Secretary noted that while the Captains have evaluation and
recommendation functions, they do not make "effective' recommendations
in that there are always higher layers of review for all important
evaluations.

With respect to the Fire Protection Inspector, GS-7, the Assistant

Secretary noted that the GS-7 Fire Protection Inspector spent a substantial

portion of his work time performing duties similar to those of the GS-6
Fire Protection Inspector who was included in the unit; that the GS-7
Inspector's authority was generally of a routine or clerical nature not
requiring the use of independent judgment; and that he did not make
effective recommendations with regard to persomnel actions. Moreover, he
noted that the authority exercised by the GS-7 Fire Protection Inspector
was limited to one employee, Accordingly, the Assistant Secretary found
that the employee in this classification was not a supervisor and, there-
fore, should be included in the unit.



A/SIMR No. 128
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY,
UNITED STATES NAVAL WEAPONS CENTER,
CHINA LAKE, CALIFORNIA

Activity
and Case No. 72-2238(CU)

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE
FIGHTERS, LOCAL F-32, AFL-CIO,
RIDGECREST, CALIFORNIA

Petitioner

DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive Order 11491,
a hearing was held before Hearing Officer Tom R. Wilson. The Hearing
Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from prejudicial error
and are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties' briefs,
the Assistant Secretary finds:

The International Association of Fire Fighters, Local F-32,
AFL-CIO, herein called IAFF, is the exclusive representative of certain
employees of the Activity, In this proceeding, it seeks to clarify the
status of 2 employee classifications, (Fire Captain, GS-7 and Fire
Protection Inspector, GS-7), requesting that they be included in its ex-
clusively recognized unit located at the U, S, Naval Weapons Center,
China Lake, California. The Activity contends that the employees in each
of the disputed classifications are supervisors within the meaning of
Section 2(c) of the Order and that, therefore, they should be excluded
from the exclusively recognized unit.

Historically, the IAFF has represented all Firefighters of the
Fire Division of the Naval Weapons Center, excluding the Fire Chief,
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Deputy Chief, Assistant Chiefs, and Fire Protection Inspectors, GS=7
and GS-8. Subsequent to the 1970 renegotiation of the parties' col-
lective bargaining agreement, the Activity unilaterally removed Fire
Captains, GS=7 from the unit on the ground that they were supervisors
within the meaning of Section 2(c) of the Executive Order. The IAFF
contends that neither the Fire Captains, GS-7, nor the Fire Protection
Inspector, GS~7 1/, are supervisors within the meaning and intent of
the Executive Order.

As an alternative position, the IAFF urges that in the event the
Assistant Secretary finds that the Fire Captains and Fire Protection
Inspector, GS-7, are supervisors, they should still be given the oppor-
tunity to select the IAFF as their bargaining representative pursuant to
the provisions of Section 24(a)(2) of the Executive Order. The Activity
contends that Section 24(a)(2) is inapplicable to the facts of the
subject case.

The Naval Weapons Center at China Lake, California, is engaged
in the research, manufacture, testing and storage of explosives and
weaponry. The Fire Division, a component of the Security Department of
the Naval Weapons Center, is responsible for all the fire protection at
the Center.

The Fire Division at the Naval Weapons Center has a total
complement of approximately 95 persons. The Division is headed by a
Fire Chief (GS-11). The Deputy Chief (GS-9) is his administrative
aide. Working under the Chief are 2 Assistant Fire Chiefs (GS-9), 1 Fire
Protection Inspector (GS-8),6 Fire Captains (GS-7), 1 Fire Protection In-
spector (GS=7), 1 Fire Protection Inspector (GS=6), 14 Crew Chiefs (GS-6),
12 Driver Operators (GS-5), 48 Firefighters (GS-5 and GS-4) and 8 trainees
(Gs-3). The Fire Protection Inspectors, GS-6 and GS-7, are under the
direct supervision of the Fire Protection Inspector,(GS-8).

The fire fighting personnel are divided into two shifts =- one
shift is on duty for 24 hours while the other is off-duty, and vice versa.
On these shifts are the Assistant Chiefs, Captains, Crew Chiefs, Driver
Operators and Firefighters. The Chief works four 8-hour days and one
24=hour shift, for a total of 56 hours per week. The Fire Protection
Inspectors work five 8-hour.days, for a total of 40 hours per week,

2/

The Firefighters are each assigned to one of three fire stations,
Fire Station No. 1 is directly responsible for the fire protection of
the housing area at the Naval Weapons Center and the China Lake Pro-
pulsion Laboratory. Its equipment consists of two pumpers and a rescue

1/ The record revealed that the Fire Protection lnspector, GS~/ classifi-
cation has never been included in the exclusively recognized unit., At the
hearing, the IAFF indicated that it also sought clarification with respect
to this classification.

2/ Fire Stations Nos. 1, 3 or 4. There is no Station No. 2.
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vehicle., In the station itself, there is a large dommitory in which
each fire fighting employee, including the Captain, has a bed and locker.
There is also a lavatory and shower, as well as a recreation room and
galley which are used by all employees, The Captain's desk is situated
in a large open area which houses the fire fighting equipment., A
separate office, partitioned off from the rest of the statiomn, is for
the exclusive use of the Fire Chief, his Secretary, the Deputy Chief,
the Assistant Chiefs and the Fire Protection Inspector, GS-8. Outside
of Station No. 1 is a small building containing the quarters for the
Assistant Chief, This building also is used as a rest area by the Fire
Chief when he is on duty. The fire fighting complement for each shift at
Station No, 1 consists of 1 house Captain, two Crew Chiefs, 13 Fire-
fighters and a Fire Communications Operator.

Fire Station No. 3 is a combination structural and crash fire-
house which covers part of the range areas and handles both aircraft
and structural emergencies at the Naval Air Facility. Station No. 3's
equipment consists of one pumper, one pickup truck, 2 MB-1 Foam Crash
Trucks and a cardox crash truck. The £ire fighting complement consists
of 2 Captains, 5 Crew chiefs, and 16 Firefighters. One Captain at
Station No. 3 is designated as Structural Captain, responsible for
structural fire emergencies, while the second Captain is designated as
Crash Captain, responsible for emergencies involving aircraft. In the
station itself, there is a large dormitory in which each employee has
his bed and locker. The main floor also has a dining and galley area
and a lavatory used by all employets. On the second floor, above the
area which houses the fire fighting vehicles and equipment, is a recre-
ation room, a lavatory and shower used by all employees. 1In a partitioned
area of the room housing the equipment and vehicles, there are two desks
used by the Captains as well as other employees who have a need therefor.

Fire Station No. 4 is in a classified area located approximately
25 miles from Station No. 1. Only one Firefighter, a GS=3 Driver
Operator is assigned to this station. In the event of a fire emergency,
Pire Station No. 1 responds with assistance.

The Fire Chief is both the administrative and the techmical head
of the Fire Division., As the shift supervisor, the Assistant Chief on
duty is responsible for the efficient operation and management of the
fire stations. The Assistant Chief prepares a daily duty roster listing
all personnel available., He has the authority to transfer employees
from one station to another and may overrule the actions of the Captains
with respect to employee transfers. The Assistant Chief visits each
station twice daily and responds to all fire alarms, if possible. At
a fire emergency, he is usually the superior officer present and all
decisions are subject to his review.

3
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DISPUTED JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Fire Captain (GS-7)

Pire Captains are in charge of a fire station or a portion of its
operation, 3/ In directing their respective fire companies, they are
responsible for effectuating all fire prevention and protection policies.
With respect to job assignments, the record reveals that annually, each
Firefighter is given the opportunity, according to.semiority, to pick
his station assignment and his weekly day off. Once the station and
crews are established, apparatus assignments are essentially fixed.
However, the Captains may shift their personnel on a daily basis to
balance manpower needs. The record reflects also that odd jobs are either
rotated by schedules or equitably assigned by the Captains.

The evidence discloses that overtime assignments are distributed
equally and are limited to unforeseen and emergency situations. 1In
addition, the Commanding Officer at a fire emergency may call in indi-
viduals with specialized skills, i.e., electrician, plumber, as the
situation warrants.

In responding to fire emergencies, the fire fighting companies
react in accordance with published "running" schedules in the majority
of cases. These schedules indicate the apparatus that is to respond
to alarms in various locations and the backup emergency operations- to be
utilized at each fire station. When responding to an impending crash
alarm, the Crew Chiefs &/ place their apparatus and crews at predeter=-
mined runway standby points.

The Captains involved in a fire emergency accompany their vehicles
to the site of the alarm, generally along prearranged routes. The
evidence reflects that the Captains' duty at a fire emergency is essen-
tially to oversee operations before the Assistant Chief arrives. 1In
this regard, the record also reveals that the Firefighters are trained
and experienced in performing their assignments and that published
regulations and manuals determine their actions, Moreover, decisions at
a fire emergency are most often dictated by the exigencies of the situationm,
and leave little room for individual discretionary judgments.

The evidence discloses that Captains may suspend an employee for
up to one hour for an infraction such as drunkenness, or they may

3/ As noted above, there is a Captain in charge of Station No. 1 and
Structural and Crash Captains in charge of Station No. 3.

4/ The GS-6 Crew Chiefs are each in charge of a particular fire fighting
vehicle and are the immediate superior officers for the 3-5 Firefighters
assigned to their piece of apparatus.
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recommend more severe discipline subject to the review of the Chief or
the Assistant Chief, Captains also participate in the handling of
employee grievances at the first discussion level where they attempt to
reconcile employee dissatisfactions. If the employee is not satisfied
with the decision made by the Captain, he may then file a formal
grievance with the Fire Chief. 1In this connection, the evidence estab-
lishes that the Captains have never resolved any formal grievances.

The training of the Firefighters is conducted primarily by the Crew
Chiefs, GS-6, and sometimes by the Firefighters, GS-5 and GS-4., Captains
take no part in preparing the training program and generally are not
present at the training sessions,

With respect to personnel evaluations, the record reveals that
all persomnel at or above the GS-6 level are responsible for appraising
the performance of subordinates and such appraisals are reviewed by the
Assistant Chief and the Chief. The evidence discloses that the Captains,
as well as other employees having evaluation responsibilities, routinely
certify that the performance of newly hired employees is satisfactory
which assures that they can be retained subsequent to the probationary
periods. In addition, in-grade step increases are approved routinely
each year for the Firefighters and the Personnel Services Division of the
Security Department automatically institutes the salary increases.
Further, the evidence establishes that recommendations for quality step
increases can be initiated by any Firefighter, GS-6 or above, and that
these recommendations are passed upward through the chain of command for
each superior officer's personal comments and signature. The recommenda-
tions are then passed to the quality step increase panel 5/ for a final
review and decision, This panel is composed of the Fire Chief and other
division heads of the Naval Weapons Center.

With respect to grade level promotions, the evidence shows that
promotions from the GS=3 to the GS-4 level generally are automatic.
Candidates for promotion to the GS-5 level and above are subject to a
practical performance test and an oral interview which together account
for 80 percent of their evaluation. While the record reveals that an
evaluation of potential performance for each applicant is prepared by a
superior officer, such as a Fire Captain, the evidence establishes that
performance appraisals constitute 10 percent or less of the total
evaluation of candidates for promotion.

Based on the foregoing, I find that the employees herein classified
as Fire Captains are not supervisors within the meaning of Section 2(c)
of the Order, Thus, the evidence establishes that their influence over
the job assignments of Firefighters is minimal and that their activities
are supervised closely by the Assistant Chief who visits each station at
least twice daily, Further, in fire emergencies the response of each
station is largely determined by routinized procedures in accordance with
published schedules and manuals with the Assistant Chief generally in
overall command of all fire fighting.

5/ A component of the Personnel Services Division of the Security
Department.
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With respect to working conditions, it is clear that Captains
not only interact continually with other Firefighters, but also share
all living facilities with them. While the evidence indicates that
Captains have some functions and responsibilities which distinguish
them from other Firefighters, the authority vested in the Captains
generally is of a routine or clerical nature not requiring the use of
independent judgment. Thus, the Captains clearly have no authority
to hire, discharge, or lay off employees and the extent of their
capacity to discipline employees is limited to one hour suspensions for
infractions which mandate automatic punishment, As to the Captains'
role in the grievance procedure, they have no authority to resolve formal
grievances and their decisions as a result of preliminary discussions
with aggrieved employees are not determinative, but are subject to mul-
tiple levels of appeal.

With respect to personnel evaluations, the evidencé does not
establish that Captains have the authority "effectively to recommend"
personnel action. In this regard, in-grade step increases are
automatically approved each year and the Captains' recommendations
regarding quality salary increases are subject to at least two levels of
review before final scrutiny by a panel of the Security Department.,
Moreover, it appears that the Captains' performance evaluations for
probationary employees are completed routinely and that performance
appraisals for employees seeking promotion have minimal importance in
the evaluation of these employees.

In these circumstances, and noting also that Captains have histori=
cally been included in the unit involved herein and covered by negotiated
agreements under Executive Order 10988, I find that the employees
classified as Fire Captain (GS-7) are not supervisors within the meaning
of the Order and should be included in the unit. 6/

6/ Inasmuch as I have concluded that the Fire Captains, GS-7, are not
supervisors within the meaning of Section 2(c) of the Executive Order,
it was considered unnecessary to decide the IAFF's alternative theory
concerning the application of Section 24(a)(2) of the Executive Order.
However, it should be noted that Section 24(a)(2) by its terms refers

to units of supervisors rather than to the mixing of supervisors in units
appropriate pursuant to Section 10 of the Order, Moreover, the Study
Committee's Report and Recommendations on Labor-Management Relations

in the Federal Service, the 'legislative history" of the Executive
Order, also indicates that Section 24(a)(2) refers to supervisors being
represented in separate units by labor organizations which traditionally
represent such supervisors in the private sector. In this regard, see
United States Department of the Navy, United States Naval Weapons
Station, Yorktown, Virginia, A/SILMR No. 30.
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Fire Protection Inspector (GS-7) January 28, 1972

The evidence establishes that the employee in this job classification
is responsible for making continuous inspections of buildings, their con-

tents, utilities and surrounding areas. In this regard, all routine UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
inspections, personnel instructions and local correction of fire hazards ASSTSTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANACEMENT RELATIONS
are carried out within detailed instructions and guidelines. SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY

All three Fire Protection Inspectors, GS-8, GS-7, and GS-6, are PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXE E ER 1
under the direct command of the Fire Chief., The evidence establishes ° 10 CUTIVE ORDER 11491
that they occupy positions outside of the authority structure of the DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
Firefighters, While the GS-7 Inspector may instruct the GS-6 Inspector MARE ISLAND NAVAL SHIP;ARD
regarding his inspection area and the type and frequency of inspection, A/SIMR No. 129

it is the Fire Protection Inspector, GS-8 who makes assigmments and
supervises the activities of both the GS-7 and.GS-6 Inspectors. The This case involved a unit clarification petition filed by the
record also reveals that the GS-8 Inspectors fill out personnel International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO, Local F-48 (IAFF),
evaluations for both the GS-7 and the GS-6 Lnspectors and that the GS-7 seeking clarification of the status of two categories of employees
Inspector can recommend persomnel actions, which are subject to review by located in an exclusive bargaining unit at Mare Island Naval Shipyard,
the GS-8 inspector. Vallejo, California. Contrary to the view of the IAFF, the Activity
contended that Supervisory Firefighter (Structural), GS-081-7, and
Supervisory Firefighter (Structural), GS-081-6 classifications should be
excluded as supervisory.

Based on the foregoing,I find that an employee classified as a
Fire Protection Inspector (GS-7) is not a supervisor within the meaning
of the Order and, therefore, should be included in the unit. In this
regard, it is clear that the duties of an employee in this classification
generally do not require the use of independent judgment; that a sub-
stantial portion of his work time involves the same duties as are performed
by the GS-6 Fire Protection Inspector who is in the unit and that a GS-7
Fire Protection Inspector does not make effective recommendations with
respect to personnel actions. Moreover, the evidence establishes that the
authority exercised by the GS-7 Fire Protection Inspector is limited to
one employee. 7/

The Assistant Secretary found that employees in both disputed
classifications were not "supervisors” within the meaning of Executive
Order 11491, and that such classifications, therefore, should be included
in the unit. 1In this respect, he noted, among other things, that they
had no authority to hire, permanently transfer, suspend, lay off, recall,
promote or discharge employees, and that they followed rotational rosters
in making work assignments. Moreover, they cannot dispose of formal
grievances and their preparation of annual performance appraisals was

ORDER routine and perfunctory.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the unit sought to be clarified herein
in which exclusive recognition was granted on February 6, 1963 to Inter-
national Association of Fire Fighters, Local F-32, AFL-CIO, located at
the United States Naval Weapons Center, China Lake, California, be, and
hereby is, clarified by including in the said unit the employee classifi~
cations Fire Captain, GS-7 and Fire Protection Inspector, GS-7.

Dated, Washington, D,.C. %/ . 94&4&4(/ ,g»,

January 28, 1972 7 We Je y Jr., Assista égyéretary of
Laborfor Labor-Manageme lations

7/ See United States Department of Agriculture, Northern Marketi and
Nutrition Research Division, Peoria, Illinois, A/SIMR No., 120,
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A/SLMR No. 129
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY,
MARE ISLAND NAVAL SHIPYARD,
VALLEJO, CALIFORNIA

Activity
and Case No. 70-1876

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE FIGHTERS,
AFL-CIO, LOCAL F-48
VALLEJO, CALIFORNIA

Petitioner
DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive Order 11491,
8 hearing was held before Hearing Officer Carol A. Philipps. The Hearing
Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from prejudicial error and
are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties’ briefs,
the Assistant Secretary finds:

The Petitioner, International Association of Fire Fighters, AFL-CIO,
Local F-48, herein called IAFF, is the exclusive representative of certain
employees of the Activity. 1/ 1In this proceeding, it seeks to clarify the
status of 2 employee classifications (Supervisory Fire Fighter Structural,
GS-7 and Supervisory Fire Fighter Structural, GS-6) requesting that they
be included in its exclusively recognized unit located at Mare Island
Naval Shipyard, Vallejo, California. The Activity contends that the
employees in each of the disputed classifications are supervisorswithin

1/ The IAFF was granted exclusive recognition on March 23, 1964,
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the meaning of Section 2(c) of the Order and that, therefore, they should
be excluded from the exclusively recognized unit. As an alternative, the
IAFF urges that, in the event the Assistant Secretary finds that the
individuals in the disputed classifications are supervisors, they should
still be given the opportunity to select the IAFF as their bargaining
representative pursuant to the provisions of Section 24(a)(2) of the
Executive Order.

The Mare Island Naval Shipyard complex is four miles long and one
and one-half miles wide and contains dry docks, building ways, loading
piers, schools, operations centers, reserve fleet ships, and numerous
tenant and satellite commands. The Activity provides support for assigned
ships and service craft, including nuclear vessels, performing authorized
work in connection with construction, conversiom, overhaul, repair, alter-
ation, dry docking, and outfitting of ships and craft. The industrial
portion of Mare Island contains approximately 900 combustible buildings,
relatively few of which are equipped with sprinklingsystems. Operations
such as welding, lead burning, painting, annealing, ship refueling,
industrial testing with radioactive materials, ammunition, and explosives
handling, etc., continually present a high degree of fire expectancy and
severity. In this connection, the Fire Branch, a component of the
Security Division, is responsible for all fire protection at the Activity.

Fire Branch personnel are based at three fire stations -~ Central
Fire Station, South Fire Station, and North Fire Station -- located about
one mile apart from each other. The Fire Branch is headed by a Fire Chief,
GS-11. Reporting directly to him are two Assistant Fire Chiefs, GS-9, and
one Fire Prevention Chief, GS-8 (chief fire inspector). 2/ 1In addition,
the fire fighting complement includes: two Senior (Shift) Captains, GS-7;
six Station Captains, GS-6; ten Driver Operators, GS-5; thirty Hosemen,
GS-4,two Alarm Operators, GS-4; and five Fire Protection Inspectors, GS-7.
The Chief works a 56-hour week -- four eight-hour days and one 24-hour
shift. The Fire Inspectors work a 40-hour week .and all other personnel
work a 72-hour week -- three shifts; 24 hours on; 24 hours off.

The Chief, the two Assistant Chiefs, and the Chief Inspector have
offices in "building 235", adjacént to Central Station. The Chief visits
North and South Stations at least once a week and visits Central Station

2/ These individuals are excluded from the existing exclusively recognized
unit,
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considerably more often. The Assistant Chiefs, who are also designated
"Shift Supervisors,’ visit North and South Stations anywhere from two or
three times a day to once a week. The Chief and the Assistant Chief sleep
at Central Station on their 24-hour duty shifts.

DISPUTED JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Supervisory Fire Fighter (Structural) (GS-6) and Supervisory Fire Fighter
(Structural)(GS-7) 3/

When answering alarms, a chain of command is followed in directing
the activities of Fire Branch personnel. The Assistant Chief on duty
answers all but a small percentage of fires occurring on his duty watch.
When he arrives at a fire, he takes over from the Captain in charge, and
the attack of the Firefighters on the fire is subject to his review and
revision.

In effectuating work assigmnments in the stations, the Captains
follow an established rotation system. Similarly, positions on equipment,
housekeeping chores and regular maintenance are all routinized by the use
of rosters.

The uniforms of the Chief and the Assistant Chiefs are distinguished
from the other personnel by white hats and white shirts. Captains, who
wear blue hats and blue shirts, are distinguished from the other Fire-
fighters only by their badges which are inscribed with the word ''CAPTAIN,"
while Driver Operators and Hosemen alike are designated "MEMBER" of the
Fire Branch by the inscription on their badges. Captains have sleeping
rooms, separate from the dormitory arrangements of the other Firefighters. 4/

One Assistant Chief is the Chief Training Officer. He orders
Saturday morning drills, attends and critiques them. While some other
training exercises are handled by the Captains, their plans are prepared
from published manuals, and the Assistant Chief reviews these formats and
makes suggestions. Moreover, some training is also performed by GS-4's
and GS-5's, who have special expertise in certain areas.

3/ Both classifications are commonly referred to as 'Captains.'" Senior

T (Shift) Captains, (GS-7) are distinguished from Station Captains and
Company Captains (GS-6) only in that: (1) they may assign approved
leave; (2) they have authority to transfer employees for the period of
one 24-hour shift; and, (3) they make out reports after fires occur.
The Senior Captains are also regarded as higher in the chain of command
at a fire. Otherwise the duties of the GS5-6 and GS-7 Captains are the
same.

4/ At North Station, only the Pumper Captain has this distinction. The
Aerial Ladder Captain sleeps in the dormitory room with the others.
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The authority of a Captain to discipline extends only to oral
reprimands. Captains make written recommendations to their superiors who
may, at their discretion, initiate further measures. Formal grievances
are required to be submitted to the Assistant Chief in writing. There
is no evidence that any formal grievance has ever been filed. Although
Captains are designated the first stage of the grievance procedure, the
evidence reveals that this consists merely of informal discussions of
minor problems and complaints.

Captains are responsible for certain administrative duties in-
volving the completion of various forms. Many of these are routine
inspection reports. In this regard, the record discloses that GS-4 and
GS=-5 level Firefighters perform many of these inspections and have, on
occasion, entered data onto forms to which the Captain merely affixed
his signature. While the Captains exercise certain independent judgment
in issuing weld/burn permits and fire hazard notices and in completing
certain test records, the record indicates that this judgment is based
on the Captain's greater experience and superior skill, and mot on his
supervision of personnel. Moreover, the evidence establishes that a
Captain's judgment in this respect is subject to review and revision
by the Chief and the Assistant Chiefs.

With respect to employee evaluatiomns, the record revealed that one
of the Activity's Captains prepared an annual performance rating. However,
the evidence shows that the annual rating consisted solely of an oral
notification of "satisfactory" performance.

Based on the foregoing, I find that the employees in the disputed
job classifications are not supervisors within the meaning of Section
2(c) of the Order. Thus, the record shows that Captains have no authority
to hire or discharge or impose formal discipline; make permanent transfers;
suspend, lay off, recall, or promote; dispose of formal grievances; and
they may not grant leave, except in emergencies. Further, annual perfor-
mance ratings which are prepared are perfunctory in that employees are
always rated "'satisfactory" and in effectuating work assignments the
Captains follow an established roster system.

In all these circumstances, I find that, while Fire Captains at
Mare Island Naval Shipyard may be distinguished from other positions,
by certain duties, responsibilities and perquisites, they do not exercise
sufficient authority requiring the use of independent judgment, which
is necessary to satisfy the Section 2(c) definitiom of supervisor. I
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shall, therefore, order that employees in the disputed classifications
be included in the unit. 5/

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the unit sought to be clarified herein,
in which exclusive recognition was granted to the International Brother-
hood of Firefighters, AFL-CIO, Local F-48, on March 23, 1964, be, and it
hereby is, clarified by including in said unit the employee classifications
Supervisory Firefighter (Structural), GS-6 and Supervisory Firefighter
(Structural), GS-7.

Dated, Washington, D.C.
January 28, 1972

2/ Dby

AW, J. Usexy, ., Assistant ?Ziséary of
Labor §6r or-Managemen e 1ons

5/ Inasmuch as I have concluded that the Captains are not supervisors

~  within the meaning of Section 2(c) of the Executive Order, it was
considered unnecessary to pass upon the IAFF's alternative theory
concerning the application of Section 24(a)(2) of the Executive
Order. In this regard, however, see United States Navy Department,
United States Naval Weapons Station, Yorktown, Virginia, A/SLMR No. 30;
Federal Aviation Administration, Bureau of National Capitol Airports,
A/SLMR No. 91; and Department of Navy, United States Naval Weapons
Center, China Lake, California, A/SLMR No. 128.
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January 31, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRERARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

UNLTED STATES NAVAL AIR STATION,
MOFFET FIELD, CALIFORNIA
A/SLMR No. 130

This case involves a severance request by the International
Association of Fire Fighters, AFL-CIO, CLC, Local F-162, (IAFF), for
a unit of fire fighters currently represented in an Activity-wide
unit by the National Federation of Federal Employees, Local 759,
(NFFE). The Intervenor, NFFE, has been the exclusive representative
for the requested unit since 1967.

In the circumstances of this case, the Assistant Secretary,
applying the policy emunciated in United States Naval Construction
Battalion Center, A/SLMR No. 8, denied the severance request and,
therefore, dismissed the IAFF's petition. In this regard, he noted
the absence of any evidence that the NFFE had failed, in any way, to
represent fire fighters fairly and effectively., Thus, the record
revealed that fire fighters have served as officers of the NFFE, as
well as shop stewards, and that the NFFE had processed a formal
grievance on behalf of a fire fighter.




A/SLMR No. 130
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

UNITED STATES NAVAL AIR STATION,
MOFFET FIELD, CALIFORNIA 1/

Activity
and Case No., 70-1882

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE
FIGHTERS, AFL-CIO, CLC, LOCAL F-162 2/

Petitioner
and

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF FEDERAL
EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 759

Intervenor

DECISION AND ORDER

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive Order 11491,
a hearing was held before Hearing Officer George R. Sakanari. The Hearing
Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from prejudicial error and
are hereby affirmed.

1/ The name of the Activity appears as amended at the hearing.

2/ The name of the Petitioner appears as amended at the hearing.
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Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties' briefs,
the Assistant Secretary finds:

1. The labor organizations involved claim to represent certain
employees of the Activity.

2, The Petitioner, International Association of Fire Fighters, AFL-
CI10, CLC, Local F=-162, herein called IAFF, seeks to sever all fire
fighters, including six Supervisory (General) GS-6 Fire Fighters (Fire
Captains), employed at the U, S. Naval Air Station at Moffet Field,
California from an Activity-wide unit of employees currently represented
on an exclusive basis by the Intervenor, the National Federation of
Federal Employees, Local 759, herein called NFFE. 3/

Under Executive Order 10988, the NFFE was granted a formal recog-
nition on June 20, 1962 and exclusive recognition on November 13, 1967.
The parties' first negotiated agreement, executed on June 5, 1969, had a
two=year duration, On June 4, 1971, this agreement was extended for a
period of three months. 4/

The Activity contends that the petitioned for unit is inappropriate
because it would fragment an existing unit and would not promote effec-
tive dealings and efficiency of agency operations. In this regard, it
asserts that the fire fighters have been part of an Activity-wide unit
which has had a stable history of labor relations and its bargaining agent
has provided proper representation to all of the employees included there-
in. The Activity also contends that the proposed unit is inappropriate
because it would include the six Fire Captains whom the Activity claims are
supervisors within the meaning of the Executive Order., The NFFE agrees
with the Activity that the petitioned for unit is inappropriate because it
would fragment an existing unit,

Located at Sunnyvale, California, the Activity employs a total of
425 civilians in many different capacities, The responsibility for fire
fighting ordinarily is divided between the Structural Station and the
Crash Division. The Structural Station employs only civilian fire fighters
who are charged with responsibility for fighting building fires (as opposed
to air crash fires), training and inspections. In this regard, the
Activity employs 30 civilian fire fighters, including one Chief and two
Assistant Chiefs. Located on the runway, the Crash Division employs only
military personnel and is charged with responsibility to fight air crash
fires. These active duty military persomnel are under the immediate
authority of a civilian Fire Captain when performing their duties associated
with air crash fires.

3/ The claimed unit description was amended at the hearing.
4/ The evidence reveals that the petition herein was filed timely.
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The record shows that the Activity's fire fighters, all of whom wear ORDER
uni forms, are in a job category separate from other Activity employees
and have distinctive job responsibilities, knowledge and skills which IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petition in Case No, 70-1882 be,
require specific and continuous training., While reduction-in-force bid- and it hereby is, dismissed.
ding is Activity-wide and new hires are secured from the Civil Service
Commission list of eligibles, there is no evidence of transfer or inter-
change of fire fighters with other Activity employees without the individual

involved undergoing specific-training,-When on duty, only fire fighters

occupy Building No, 15, in which they eat and sleep, Moreover, fifé ~~ -~ ———--—pated, Washington, D. C.
fighters work three 24-hour shifts a week, including holidays and Sundays January 31, 1972 R
and, in return, receive a 22 to 25 percent pay differential, which,

generally, is not received by other Activity employees.

A LA

Jr., Assistant

The record reveals also that, while the parties' most recent agree-
ment contains no special provisions with respect to fire fighters, in the
past, fire fighters have served as officers of the NFFE, as well as shop
stewards, Moreover, there is evidence of the processing of a formal
grievance by the NFFE on behalf of a fire fighter, 5/

Based on the foregoing, I find that the petitioned for unit of fire
fighters is inappropriate in the absence of evidence that the NFFE has
failed to represent such employees fairly and effectively. As I stated in
the United States Naval Construction Battalion Center, A/SLMR No. 8, "where
the evidence shows that an established, effective and fair collective bar-
gaining relationship is in existence, a separate unit carved out of the
existing unit will not be found appropriate except in unusual circumstances,"

Accordingly, and in the absence of any unusual circumstances, I find
that the unit sought by the IAFF is inappropriate for the purpose of
exclusive recognition, 6/ I shall, therefore, order that its petition be
dismissed. 7/

5/ 1In this regard, there is no record evidence that the NFFE failed to
process any other grievances filed by fire fighter employees or, in
any way, failed to represent them fairly and effectively.

6/ 1In the circumstances of this case, the fact that the IAFF is a labor
organization which represents employees associated with fire fighting
functions was not considered to require a contrary result, Cf.
Veterans Administration Center, Togus, Maine, A/SLMR No, 84,

7/ In view of the disposition herein, it was considered unnecessary to
decide the eligibility question concerning the six Fire Captains
included in the claimed unit.
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January 31, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTION
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF THE EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE,
UNITED STATES ARMY,

UNITED STATES MATERIAL COMMAND,

RED RIVER ARMY DEPOT

A/SLMR No. 131

The Petitioner, Region 14, Local 52 National Association
of Government Employees, (NAGE) sought an election in a unit com-
posed of the Activity's Wage Board employees assigned to jobs in
the 5700, 4100 and 6000 job classification series. The Intervenor,
Local 750, International Chemical Workers Union, AFL-CIO (ICWU)
contested the appropriateness of the proposed unit.

The Assistant Secretary determined that the proposed
unit was not appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition.
The Assistant Secretary noted that notwithstanding the fact that
the three groups of employees were part of the same Acticity and
worked at the same facilities, such factors were off-set by
the substantial differences in their job functions; the lack of
common immediate supervision; the lack of tramsfer or interchange;
the almost total lack of work related contacts; differences in job
skills; and the fact that each of the groups had been separately
represented on an exclusive basis by the ICWU.

The Assistant Secretary found also that encompassed
within the unit petitioned for was an appropriate unit of employees
assigned to the 4100 job classification series which was comprised
of employees who were engaged in a common mission and functionms,
and who shared common supervision, common skills and common working
conditions. In these circumstances, the Assistant Secretary directed
an election be held in the 4100 job classification series unit.

In addition, because the unit found appropriate was substantially

different than that sought initially, the Assistant Secretary directed

the Activity to post copies of a Notice of Unit Determination in
order to ascertain the existence of any additional intervenors in the
unit found appropriate.

Inasmuch as the NAGE did not have the requisite thirty
percent showing of interest among the employees in either the 5700
job classification series or the 6000 job classification series,
the Assistant Secretary made no findings as to the appropriateness
of such units.

A/SLMR No. 131

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE,
UNITED STATES ARMY,
UNITED STATES MATERIAL COMMAND,
RED RIVER ARMY DEPOT

Activity 1/

and Case No. 63-2534(R0O)

REGION 14, LOCAL 52,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES

Petitioner 2/
and
LOCAL 750, INTERNATIONAL CHEMICAL WORKERS UNION, AFL-CIO
Intexvenor 3/
DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTION
Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, a hearing was held before Hearing Officer Hugh B. Price.

The Hearing Officer's rulings are free from prejudicial error and
are hereby affirmed.

_1/ The name of the Activity appears as amended at the hearing.
_2/ The name of the Petitionmer appears as amended at the hearing.

_3/ The name of the Intervenor appears as amended at the hearing.



Upon the entire record in this case, the Assistant job classification series consists of 22 engineers, brakemen
Secretary finds: and conductors, who are engaged in operating trains ..thin the

area covered by the Activity.
1. The labor organizations involved claim to repre-

sent certain employees of the Activity. The record reveals that the work stations of the
mobile equipment operators and the painters and paint preparation
2. The Petitioner, Region 14, Local 52, National workers are located at a number of sites throughout the facility.
Association of Government Employees, herein called NAGE, seeks While a majority of the mobile equipment operators are assigned
sn-election in @ unit consisting of all of the Activity's Wage to the Directorate for Transportation and Distribution, the
Board employees, assigned to jobs within the %100, 5700; amd— — - — — - — — _ _ _ Birectorate for Maintenance, and the Directorate for Services,
6000 job classification series, excluding management officials, and a majority of the painters and paint preparatiom workers — — —————— — — — _ _
employees engaged in Federal persomnel work, except in a purely are assigned to the Directorate for Maintenance, the evidence
clerical capacity, guards and supervisors as defined in Executive establishes that certain employees from both job classification
Order 11491, and employees in other units presently represented series are assigned to other directorates, as their assignments
under exclusive recognition. The Intervenor, Local 750, Inter- depend upon where their services are needed rather than upon
national Chemical Workers Union, AFL-CIO, herein called ICWU, the Activity's administrative structure. Moreover, the locations
which currently represents the petitioned for employees in three at which the mobile equipment operators, painters and paint
separate units based on the above noted job classification series, preparation workers work normally are shared by employees in
contends that the community of interest among the employees is other job classifications who are mnot involved herein. ﬁ/
limited to each job classification and that a unit which combines
the three job classification series is inappropriate. The Activity The evidence establishes also that the employees in
stated that, in its view, exclusive recognition would be appropriate the claimed unit in different job classification series, e.g.,
in either three separate units or a single overall unmit. painters, mobile equipment operators and train crewmen--do not
share common skills and that, normally, the train crewmen do not
The Activity covers an area of about 36,000 acres and have any work related contacts with either the painters or mobile
employs approximately 5,600 civilian employees, two-thirds of equipment operators. While some of the painters and the mobile
whom are classified as Wage Board. It is engaged primarily in equipment operators work in common locations they work independently
storing, maintaining and distributing general supplies for the of each other, and they do not form common work crews. Also, while
Armed Forces and its operations are under the direction of a some employees assigned to the three groups share supervision at
military officer, who is designated as the Depot Commander. The the directorate and division levels, they do not share common
Activity is divided into 9 functional and administrative sub- immediate supervision. Although the employees in the three job
divisions called directorates. Each of the directorates is classification series in question have access to the same facilities
headed by a directorate chief, who is responsible for a particular such as lunch rooms, rest rooms, and parking lots and at times may
facet of the Activity's operations. The directorates are subdivided share such facilities, the record reveals that such sharing of
into divisions which, in turn, are divided into sections. Adminis- facilities depends upon the location of the work stations involved
trative and supervisory authority flows from the Depot Commander and not upon the assigned jobs. Moreover, other employees of the
through the directorate chiefs, division chiefs and section Activity not covered by the NAGE's petition share these same
supervisors to the employees. facilities.

The Activity's Wage Board employees are divided into
a number of job classification series, each of which includes a

number of related jobs. Thus, with respect to the claimed emplo- 4/ All of the train crewmen are assigned to the Directorate for
yees, the 5700 job classification series includes 336 mobile - Transportation and Distribution and they spend substantially
equipment operators who are engaged in operating fork lifts, cranes, all of their work time aboard trains apart from the Activity's
crane shovels, road sweepers, tractors, trucks, and similar mobile other employees.

equipment; the 4100 job classification series includes 100 -painters,
paint preparation workers, and leadmen who are engaged in painting
military equipment such as tanks and motor vehicles; and the 6000
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The history of bargaining on an exclusive basis
involving the employees sought in the claimed unit commenced on
or about July 23, 1964, at which time the Activity extended the
ICWU exclusive recognition for a group of mobile equipment operators
in the 5700 job classification series. This bargaining unit was
amended on February 12, 1968, to include all employees in the 5700
job classifications series. On November 27, 1967, the ICWU was
accorded exclusive recognition covering the employees in the 4100
job classification series and on or about April 29, 1968, it was
accorded exclusive recognition for the employees in the 6000 series.
In 1964, the Activity and the ICWU entered into a negotiated agree-
ment covering the employees in the 5700 job classification series.
Thereafter, a succession of agreements were negotiated covering
such employees. On February 19, 1969, the parties' most recent
agreement was executed. It covered employees in the three job
classification series sought by the NAGE, In this latter regard,
the record reveals that during the negotiations which resulted in
the parties' most recent agreement the ICWU and the Activity first
negotiated separate agreements for each of the three job classifi-
cation series, and that subsequent to the negotiation of the three
agreements, they were combined into a single agreement by officials
of the Activity and the ICWU at the national level. The evidence
establishes that at the time the agreements were combined, the
Activity and the ICWU agreed that, despite being covered under one
agreement, the three separately recognized units would remain
separate and there is no evidence that this position changed or
that the parties, at any time, intended to merge the units. 5/

Based on the foregoing, I find that a single unit
encompassing employees in the 5700, 4100 and 6000 job classification
series is not appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recognition.
While some of the employees in the three job series work at common
locations and have common supervision at the directorate and
division levels, the evidence establishes that the claimed employees
have a substantial variance in job functions; do not have common
immediate supervision; do not transfer or interchange; do not form
common work crews; and normally have no job contacts. In addition,
the employees in the three job classification series covered by
the petition herein have been represented in the past in three

_5/ The evidence reveals that the petition in the subject case was
filed timely.
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separate units, and the evidence establishes that such units have

retained their separate identities.

In these circumstances, I

find that the employees in the unit sought by the NAGE do not
possess a clear and identifiable community of interest. Moreover,
I find that the claimed unit will not necessarily promote effective
dealings particularly where, as here, the history of successful
bargaining covering separate units, discussed above, indicates

that there have been effective dealings on that basis.

I find further that encompassed within the petitioned

for unit is an appropriate unit comprised of the Activity's Wage
Board employees in the 4100 job classification series. 6/ Thus,

the evidence establishes that such employees have a common mission
and common skills, and that they share common immediate supervision
and working conditions and do not interchange with any other employ-
ees of the Activity. Also, as noted above, the evidence establishes
that the employees in the 4100 job classification series have been
represented separately on an exclusive basis since 1967.

Accordingly, I find that the following employees

constituted a unit appropriate for the purpose of exclusive
recognition under Executive Order 11491:

All Wage Board employees, including leaders,
helpers, and apprentices, assigned to jobs
in the 4100 job classification series at

the United States Material Command, Red
River Army Depot, excluding employees in
other units presently represented under
exclusive recognition, Genmeral Schedule
employees, professional employees, employees
engaged in Federal personnel work

in other than a purely clerical capacity,
management officials, and supervisors and
guards as defined in the Order. 7/

6/

_1

As I have been advised administratively that the NAGE has not sub-
mitted to the appropriate Area Administrator the required thirty
percent showing of interest which would warrant an election at
this time in either a unit of the Activity's 5700 series employees
or a unit of its 6000 series employees, I find it unnecessary to
determine the appropriateness of such units for the purpose of
exclusive recognition.

I am advised administratively that the NAGE has submitted a showing
of interest which is in excess of thirty percent of the unit found
appropriate. If the NAGE does not wish to proceed to an electiom in
the unit found appropriate, I shall permit it to withdraw its petition
upon notice to the appropriate Area Administrator within 10 days of
the issuance of this Decision.
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" the unit who were employed during

DIRECTION OF ELECTION

In the circumstances set forth below, an election by
secret ballot shall be conducted among the employees in the unit
found appropriate not later than 45 days from the date upon which
the appropriate Area Administrator issues his determination with
respect to any intervention in this matter. The appropriate Area
Administrator shall supervise the election, subject to the
Assistant Secretary's Regulations. Eligible to vote are those in

“the payroti-peri
preceding the date below, including employees who did not work
during that period because they were out ill, or om vacation or
on furlough, including those in the military services who appear
in person at the polls. Ineligible to vote are employees who
quit or were discharged for cause since the designated payroll
period amd were not rehiréd or reinstated before the election
date. Those eligible shall vote whether or not they desire to be
represented for the purpose of exclusive recognition by Region 14,
Local 52, National Association of Government Employees; or Local
750, International Chemical Workers Union, AFL-CIO; or by any
other labor organization which, as discussed below, intervenes
in this preceeding on a timely basis.

Inasmuch as the unit found appropriate is substantially
different from that which was petitioned for, I direct that the
Activity post copies of a Notice of Unit Determination, as soon
as possible, in places where notices are normally posted affecting
the employees in the unit I have found appropriate. Such Notice
shall conform in all respects to the requirements of Section 202.4(c)
and (d) of the Assistant Secretary's Regulations. Further, any
labor organization which seeks to intervene in this matter must do
so in accordance with the requirements of Section 202.5 of the
Assistant Secretary's Regulations. Any intervention, otherwise
timely, will be granted solely for the purpose of appearing on
the ballot in the election among all the employees in the unit
found appropriate.

Dated, Washington, D.C.
January 31,1972

il

W. J./Usery, Jr/, Asgistant Secretary of
ﬁ;yﬁ for Labo, 1& gement Relations

L
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February 9, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTIONS
OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL,

ATLANTA, GEORGIA

A/SIMR No. 132

The subject case, involving representation petitions filed
by two labor organizations, the American Federation of Government Em-
ployees, Local 2883, AFL-CIO (AFGE) and the National Alliance of
Postal and Federal Employees, Local 303 (NAPFE), presented the
question whether a separate unit consisting of employees working in
the glassware and animal laboratory situation (NAPFE) or an Activity-
wide unit of all employees (AFGE) was appropriate.

In all the circumstances, the Assistant Secretary concluded
‘that both petitioned for units may be appropriate and, accordingly,
he directed that self-determination elections be held., He provided
that if a majority of the employees petitioned for by the NAPFE
select that labor organization, a separate unit would be appropriate
and that an Activity-wide unit, excluding those employees in the
NAPFE unit, also would be appropriate. If, however, a majority of

‘the employees petitioned for by the NAPFE did not select that labor

organization, their votes would be pooled with the ballots of the
employees voting in the Activity-wide election and an Activity-wide
nonsupervisory unit would be appropriate.

With respect to the appropriateness of the units, the
Assistant Secretary found that while all employees of the Activity
were subject to centralized personnel policies and practices and

‘certain working conditions, such as eating and parking facilities,

he noted that supervision was set up along functional lines, there
was limited interchange and transfer between the employees petitioned
for by NAPFE and the employees petitioned for by the AFGE, and there
were no temporary assignments between the employees of the two
petitioned for units., Additionally, while the employees of both
units worked in the same buildings, there was virtually no day-to-
day work contact as employees in the unit petitioned for by the
NAPFE were the only nonprofessional employees of the Activity who
worked in the laboratory or with animals in animal breeding or
holding areas,



A/SLMR No. 132

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL,
ATLANTA, GEORGIA

Activity

and Case No. 40-2312(R0O-32)

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2883, AFL-CIO

Petitioner

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL,
ATLANTA, GEORGIA

Activity
and Case No. 40-2338

NATIONAL ALLIANCE OF POSTAL AND
FEDERAL EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 303 1/

Petitioner
SUPPLEMENTAL DECISION AND DIRECTION OF ELECTIONS

Upon petitions duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, a consolidated hearing was held before Hearing Officer
Thomas J. Sheehan. Thereafter, on July 12, 1971, I issued a
Decision and Remand 2/ in which I remanded the cases to the
appropriate Regional Administrator to reopen the record for the
purpose of securing additional evidence concerning the appropriateness
of the units sought. On August 16 and 17, 1971, a further hearing

_1/ The name of this Petitioner appears as amended.

_2/ A/SLMR No. 76
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was held before Hearing Officer Renee B, Rux. The Hearing Officer's
rulings made at the reopened hearing are free from prejudicial
error and are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this matter, including the
facts developed at the hearings held both prior and subsequent to
the remand, I find:

1. The labor organizations involved claim to represent
certain employees of the Activity.

2. The Petitioner in Case No. 40-2312(R0-32), American
Federation of Government Employees, Local 2883, AFL-CIO, herein
called AFGE, seeks an election in a unit of all eligible nonsuper-
visory employees of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare,
Center for Disease Control, Atlanta, Georgia, who work at the fol-
lowing locations: Clifton Road, Lawrenceville, Chamblee and
Buckhead, excluding management officials, professional employees,
employees engaged in Federal personnel work in other than a purely
clerical capacity and supervisors and guards as defined in
Executive Order 11491. 3/

The Petitioner, in Case No., 40-2338, National Alliance
of Postal and Federal Employees, Local 303, herein called NAPFE,
seeks an election in a unit of all nonsupervisory and nonprofessional
employees of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare,
Center for Disease Control, Atlanta, Georgia, who occupy positions
in the GS-400-0, GS-600-0, and GS-1300-0 classification series and
all Wage Board employees working in laboratories, laboratory glass-
ware activities and/or laboratory animal activities, who are located
in the Atlanta, Georgia Metropolitan Area, including Lawrenceville,
excluding managerial officials, professional employees, employees
engaged in Federal personnel work in other than a purely clerical
capacity, and supervisors and guards as defined in the Order. &4/

The Activity, herein called CDC, takes a neutral position,
acknowledging that it will work with any organization or organizations
certified, and asserts also that working with either labor organization,
or both, will not adversely affect the efficiency of its operatioms.

_4/ The unit appears as amended.

_3/ The unit appears as amended.

The evidence establishes that the
unit sought by the AFGE encompasses the employees sought by
the NAPFE.
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The CDC, originally known as the Communicable Disease
Center until June 1, 1970, is one of approximately 10 compomnents
of Health Service and Mental Health Administration, an agency of
the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, and is respon-
gible for coordinating the disease control functions of the Pub-
lic Health Service for the purpose of centralizing a national
attack on disease. In carrying out its mission, the CDC operates
laboratories and other disease control facilities, both in
Atlanta and field statioms 1 as in Puerto
Rico and foreign countries. The CDC performs research and provides
aid to both local and state governments and foreign countries. 1In
addition to the above, the CDC protects the United States from
importation of disease, develops new and better health services,
is engaged in a program eradicating smallpox and measles in 22
countries of West Africa, operates a malaria control program in
over 20 countries around the world, provides technical assistance
to various Federal agencies, and provides training for health
workers from both the United States and foreign countries.

The CDC is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia at its
Clifton Road complex and employs approximately 3,600 employees,
of whom about 1,855 are located in the Atlanta area. The remaining
CDC employees work at several field stations located around the
world, including foreign quarantine stations, major ports of
entry in the United States and at all State Health Departments in
the United States. In addition to Clifton Road, the CDC in
Atlanta includes three other locations: Chamblee, a combination
of laboratories and offices similar to Clifton Road; Buckhead,
a leased office facility; and Lawrenceville, located approximately
25 miles northeast of Atlanta, consisting of 85 acres of land,
and referred to as the "farm."

Organizationally, the Center Director is located at
Clifton Road. Reporting directly to him are several staff
services, 2/ some of which are located at Clifton Road and some
at Buckhead, but all of which centrally serve all four Atlanta
area facilities. Below these staff services, in a direct line from
the Director are 7 programs and 2 divisions, 6/ so designated because

_5/ Management Analysis Branch, Computer Systems Branch, Financial
Management Branch, Administrative Services Branch, Engineering
Services Branch, Library and Personnel Management Branch.

_6/ The Ecological Investigations Program, Epidémiology Program,

Foreign Quarantine Program, Malaria Program, Smallpox Eradication
Program, Nutrition Program, Training Program, Laboratory Division

and State and Community ServicesDivision.

~3-
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of their size. 7/ All of the programs and divisions are head-
quartered in Atlanta, except for the Ecological Investigations
Program, located in Kansas City, Kansas, which controls several
field operations. The heads of all programs and divisions are
designated as Directors and all are located at Clifton Road,
except for the Directors of the Ecological Investigations Program,
noted above, and the Training Program, which is located at
Buckhead.

nel actions is vested in
either the Center Director or the personnel officer, except tha —_—

the authority to approve overtime is delegated to program and
division directors. Such personnel actions include appointments,
action on reprimands, appeals and grievances, 8/ classification
of jobs, action onin-grade and quality increases, and setting
the workweek. Additionally, the Activity's personmel office
handles actions concerning the filling of vacancies throughout
the Atlanta area at all four locations.

The evidence discloses that there are 87 separate
classifications of employees included in the unit sought by the
AFGE 9/. As noted above, the AFGE's claimed unit would include
the six classifications of employees petitioned for by the NAPFE.
At the Clifton Road location there are a total of 726 employees
covered by both petitions, of whom 181 are in classifications
petitioned for by the NAPFE, At Chamblee there are a total of
64, of whom 13 are included in the NAPFE's proposed unit, and
at Lawrenceville there are 44, of whom 24 are in the NAPFE's
proposed unit. There are 90 employees at Buckhead, but because
of the administrative nature of its operation, no employees in
the proposed NAPFE unit are employed at that facility. In sum-
mary, of the total of 924 employees in the unit sought by the
AFGE, 218 are also in the unit petitioned for by the NAPFE. The
six classifications of employees in the NAPFE's claimed unit are

_7/ A division is composed of from 500 to 700 employees, while a

program will range from 40 (Nutrition) to over 300 (Foreign
Quarantine).

_8/ Under the existing Activity grievance procedure, an aggrieved

employee would discuss informally his grievance with the in-
dividuals at the two supervisory levels above him and then
put his appeal in writing to the Center Director.

_9/ These classifications include general clerical and adminis-

trative as well as technical, craft, laborer, etc.
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as follows: Biological Laboratory Aid/Technician; Pathology
Technician; Health Aid/Technician; Physical Science Technician;
Truck Driver; and Laboratory Worker. As indicated above, employ-
ees in these classifications are found at Clifton Road, Chamblee
and Lawrenceville, and work in the Epidemiology Program, State and
Community Services Division and Laboratory Division. 10/

The record reveals that the Laboratory Worker works
with expensive glassware and related equipment, cleaning, sterilizing,

sorting and storing it, as well as inspecting it under special lighting.

Additionally, an employee in this classification operates an auto-
clave machine and steam and hot air sterilizers and delivers glass-
ware to and from laboratories. The Biological Laboratory Aid
Technician (microbiology) works under a Microbiologist and assists

in the preparation of bacterial diagnostic antisera, innoculates
laboratory animals with proper antigens,bleeds animals, grows
bacterial cells, performs routine serological tests, and maintains
records of laboratory and animal work. Virtually all other
technicians in the NAPFE's claimed unit are directly involved with
animals, which are an integral part of the CDC function. Such
technicians are responsible for the care of the animals in their
breeding or holding areas, feeding and watering germ-free animals

that require special care, and cleaning the cages or stalls that
house them. 1In addition to collecting various blood, tissue, or
other specimens as required by the unit chief and performing autop-
sies, these technicians are responsible for the maintaining of a
high quality breeding program so as to maintain a pure strain among
the animals. In performing his duties, the technician works entirely
in the animal area, maintaining animals under very strict conditions.
The animal Aid is responsible for a number of animal rooms and the
care of the animals confined therein. The Aid insures that animals
are properly fed and watered and makes certain that watering systems,
heating systems, lighting systems, etc., are functioning adequately.
Further, the Aid assists in testing non-human primates for diseases,
assists in setting up and carrying out research experiments, collects
blood or tissue specimens, performs autopsies, and is responsible
for proper disposal of animals when experimentation is concluded.

Generally, there are no temporary assignments of
employees either from jobs in the unit petitioned for by the NAPFE
to other jobs in the AFGE's claimed unit or vice versa. Although
the record reveals that employees of both proposed umnits may work
in the same buildings, and even on the same floors, they do not
work in the same rooms. Moreover, they are separated by the very

_10/ Over 80 percent of the employees are employed in the Laboratory
Division.
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nature of their work because, due to space and safety requirements,
only employees in the classifications sought by the NAPFE work in
the laboratories. Similarly, there are some buildings where only
the NAPFE classified employees are allowed to work or enter and
‘working in certain laboratories is restricted to those who have
received immunization shots.

The evidence discloses that in the laboratories, the
employees covered by the NAPFE petition come into work contact
either with other employees sought by the NAPFE or with employees
excluded from both claimed units, such as professionals. The
only employees sought by the AFGE having more than an occasional
work contact with the employees covered by the NAPFE petition
are the clerical employees located in an office adjacent to the
laboratories, who usually serve about three laboratories,

In addition, supervision is established along functional
lines rather than by facility or location, and there is no one
supervisor or superintendent of a facility. Thus, employees of
the NAPFE proposed unit working in laboratory or animal-holding
units report to professional employees who, in turn, report to
higher grade professionals, who report to branch or unit chiefs.
The chiefs report to division or program heads, who report directly
to the Center Director. Other classifications, such as the craft
employees, report to supervisors of their functions, such as
engineering service supervisors, who, in turn, report to the chief
of engineering services who reports to the Center Director.

The record reveals also that all employees share
working conditions, such as parking and eating facilities, social
organizations, credit unions, and hours of work, except that some
employees who operate the boiler plant and some who care for
animals work a seven-day week schedule. Only a few classifications
of employees in the AFGE's claimed unit wear uniforms, such as
janitors and maintenance men, while it appears that laboratory
personnel and employees who work with animals covered by the
NAPFE's petition are supplied various types of uniforms depending
upon the type of work involved.

Based on the foregoing, I find that the unit petitioned
for by the NAPFE is appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recog-
nition. under Executive Order 11491. The record discloses that
although all nonsupervisory, nonprofessional employees are covered
by a centralized personnel program and staff services, and all share
certain conditions of employment such as parking and eating facilities,
there is very little actual day-to-day contact between the employees
of the proposed NAPFE unit and other classifications petitioned for

—6-
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in the AFGE unit. Further, employees in the NAPFE proposed unit
are physically separated from those of the AFGE's proposed unit,
there are no temporary assignments from one group to another
and the evidence reveals minimal job transfer or interchange.
Additionally, the employees petitioned for by the NAPFE are the
only employees, other than professionals, who regularly work in
the laboratory situation and who work with animals. As a result
different job functions, employees in the two claimed
units generally have different backgroundy, imterests-
In these circumstances, and noting the fact that Section 10(b) of
the Order specifically provides, imn part, that a unit may be estab-
lished on a craft, functional, or other basis, I find that a
self-determination election in the unit sought by the NAPFE is
warranted because, in my view, the employees involved constitute
a functionally distinct group of employees with a clear and
identifiable community of interest. ll/ In reaching this conclu-
sion, I have considered also the Activity's position that dealing
with the NAPFE in a separate unit would not adversely affect the
efficiency of its operatioms,

Also, I find that the unit petitioned for by the
AFGE constitutes a unit appropriate for the purpose of exclusive
recognition. Thus, this group includes all of the nonsupervisory
and nonprofessional employees of the Activity, all of whom
generally have the same terms and conditions of employment. In
these circumstances, I find that the unit sought by the AFGE is
appropriate,

Based on the foregoing, I also find that the unit
sought by the AFGE, but excluding those classifications sought by
the NAPFE, may be an appropriate umit.,

3. Having found that the employees petitioned for by
the NAPFE may, if they so desire, constitute a separate appropriate
unit, I shall not make any final determination at this time, but
shall first ascertain the desire of the employees by directing
elections in the following groups:

Voting Group (a): All employees of the Center for
Disease Control who occupy positions in the GS-400, G5~600 and

11/ Although there is little evidence as to the job duties of the
nine employees in the remaining four categories petitioned for
by NAPFE, in the absence of any dispute as to their community
of interest with the other employees of the NAPFE unit, their

inclusion in the unit sought by the NAPFE was concluded to be
warranted,
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GS-1300 classification series and all Wage Board employees working
in laboratories, laboratory glassware activities and laboratory
animal activities who are located in the Atlanta, Georgia Metropoli-
tan Area, including Lawrenceville, excluding employees engaged in
Federal personnel work in other than a purely clerical capacity,
professional employees, management officials, and supervisors and
guards as defined in the Order.

Voting Group (b): All employees of the Center

for Disease Co 3 5 rk at the facilities
at Clifton Road, Lawrenceville, Chamblee and Buckhead, excluding=~ —7 77— ———-—

all employees voting in group (a), employees engaged in Federal
personnel work in other than a purely clerical capacity, professional
employees, management officials, and supervisors and guards as
defined in the Order.

If a majority of the employees voting in group (a)
select the labor organization (NAPFE) seeking to represent them
separately, they will be taken to have indicated their desire to
constitute a separate appropriate unit and the Area Administrator
supervising the election is instructed to issue a certification
of representative to the labor organization (NAPFE) seeking to
represent them separately. In such event, the Area Administrator
is instructed to issue either a certification of the results of
the election or a certification of representative for voting
group (b) which I find also to be an appropriate unit for the
purpose of exclusive recognition. However, if a majority of the
employees voting in group (a) do not vote for the labor organization
(NAPFE) which is seeking to represent them in a separate unit,
the ballots of the employees in such voting group will be pooled
with those of the employees voting in group (b).12 / If a majority
of the valid votes of voting group (b), including any votes pooled
from voting group (a), are cast for the AFGE, that labor organization
shall be certified as the representative of employees in groups (a)
and (b) which, under the circumstances, I find to be an appropriate
unit for the purpose of exclusive recognition.

_12/ 1f the votes of voting groups (a) and (b) are pooled, they are to
be tallied in the following manner: The votes for the NAPFE, the

labor organization seeking a separate unit in group (a), shall
be counted as part of the total number of valid votes cast but
neither for nor against AFGE, the labor organization seeking to
represent the Activity-wide unit. All other votes are to be
accorded their face value.
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DIRECTION OF ELECTIONS

Elections by secret ballot shall be conducted among
employees in the voting groups described above, as early as possible,
but not later than 45 days from the date below. The appropriate
Area Administrator shall supervise the elections, subject to the
Assistant Secretary's Regulations. Eligible to vote are those in
the voting groups who were employed during the payroll period
immediately preceding the date below, including employees who
did not work during that period because they were out ill, or on
vacation or on furlough including those in the military service
who appear in person at the polls. Ineligible to vote are employ-
ees who have quit or were discharged for cause since the designated
payroll period and who have not been rehired or reinstated before
the election date. Those eligible in voting group (a) shall vote
whether they desire to be represented for the purpose of exclusive
recognition by National Alliance of Postal and Federal Employees,
Local 303; or by American Federation of Government Employees,

Local 2883, AFL-CIO; or by neither. Those eligible in voting
group (b) shall vote whether or not they desire to be represented
for the purpose of exclusive recognition by American Federation
of Government Employees, Local 2883, AFL-CIO.

Dated, Washington, D.C.
February 9, 1972

Use T., A551stant e ary of
Labor abor -Manageme tions
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February 28, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY,

UNITED STATES MILITARY ACADEMY,
WEST POLNT, NEW YORK

A/SIMR No. 133

This representation proceeding involves a petition by Local
R2-102, National Association of Government Employees, (NAGE) for a unit
of all nonsupervisory Wage Board employees of the Activity. The peti-
tioned for employees were part of an exclusively recognized unit of
General Schedule and Wage Board employees, who had been represented
since September 1966 by the Intervenor, Local 2367, American Federation
of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (AFGE). In the alternative, the NAGE
sought a unit of all Wage Board employees and all those General Schedule
employees who work in a clerical capacity in direct support of the Wage
Board employees.

The Activity took no position with regard to either of the proposed
units. The AFGE contended that the units sought were inappropriate
because: (1) the employees in question did not possess a community of
interest separate and apart from the existing unit of General Schedule
and Wage Board employees; (2) mneither of the proposed units would
promote effective dealings and efficiency of operations; and (3) the
NAGE's request was based solely upon its extent of organization.

The Assistant Secretary decided that neither of the requested
units were appropriate. He noted that in United States Naval Construc-
tion Battalion Center, A/SIMR No. 8, he had stated "that where the
evidence shows that an established, effective, and fair collective
bargaining relationship is in existence, a separate unit carved out of the
existing unit will not be found appropriate except in unusual circum-
stances.”" He found no such "unusual circumstances" in this case. In
this connection, he noted that the petitioned for employees have been
included in the bargaining unit since 1966, and that there is in
effect an established, effective, and fair collective bargaining rela-
tionship between the AFGE and the Activity. Moreover, he found that
severance of either of the claimed units from the established unit
would not serve to promote effective dealings and efficiency of Activ-
ity operations. In these circumstances, the Assistant Secretary di-
rected that the NAGE's petition be dismissed.




Upon the entire record in this case,
briefs, 3/ the Assistant Secretary finds:

A/SLMR No. 133 including the parties'
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

1. The labor organizations involved
employees of the Activity.

claim to represent certain
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

2. The Petitioner, Local R2-102, National Association of Govern-
ment Employees, herein called NAGE, seeks an election in a unit of all

DEPARTMENT . OF ARMY,
UNITED STATES MILITARY ACADEMY,

T WEST POINT, W YORK )/ — — — o nonsupervisor Wage Board employees of the Activity, excluding all

manag 5 deral persomnel work in
other then a purely clerical capacity, professional employees, supervisors, —  ——
General Schedule employees, guards, employees who are members of a unit
at the Activity for which the International Association of Firefighters,
AFL-CIO, holds exclusive recognition, and all employees paid from non-
appropriated funds. In the alternative, the NAGE seeks a unit of all
Wage Board employees and all General Schedule employees who work in a
clerical capacity in direct support of the Wage Board employees. 5/

The Activity takes no position with regard to either of the proposed
units. The AFGE asserts that the proposed units are inappropriate
because: (1) the employees in question do mot possess a community of
interest separate and apart from the existing unit at the Activity which
consists of Wage Board and General Schedule employees; (2) mneither of
the proposed units would promote effective dealings and efficiency of
‘operations; and (3) the NAGE's request herein is based solely on

extent of organization. 6/

Activity

and Case No. 30-2547(E0)

LOCAL R2-102, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES 2/

Petitioner
and

LOCAL 2367, AMERICAN FEDERATION
OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO

Intervenor

The record shows that in September 1966, the AFGE was granted exclu-
sive recognition in a unit of civilian Wage Board and General Schedule
employees of the Activity. Thereafter, the parties entered into a
negotiated agreement, effective November 21, 1968, which has continued
in effect on a year-to-year basis. 7/

DECISION AND ORDER

Pursuant to a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, a hearing was held before Hearing Officer Louis A. Schneider.
The Hearing Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from
prejudicial error and are hereby affirmed. 3/

4/
1/ The Activity's name sppears as amended at the, hearing.
g/ The Petitioner's name appears as amended at the hearing. 5/
3/ The Intervenor, Local 2367, American Federation of Government 6/

Employees, AFL-CIO, herein called AFGE, objected to the Hearing
Officer's permitting testimony relating to the number of its dues-
paying members at the Activity. Although not prejudicial to the
ultimate determination in this case, I find that the Hearing Officer
was in error in admitting such evidence into the record. However,

I do not consider the admission of such evidence to constitute bias
by the Hearing Officer warranting his disqualification as urged by
the AFGE.

79

The AFGE's motion that Petitioner's brief be rejected as a reply
brief is hereby denied.

The alternative units appear as amended at the hearing.

The AFGE also moved that the NAGE's petition be dismissed on the
grounds that it was "defective" and barred by laches. In view of
the disposition herein with respect to the subject petition, 1
find it unnecessary to rule on these contentions.

There is no contention that the current negotiated agreement

between the Activity and the AFGE constitutes a bar to the petition
in this matter.
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The mission of the Activity is to train an officer corps for the
United States Army. It is organized into 55 components known as agencies,
each of which functions to accomplish or support a particular phase of
its academic programs or its non-academic operations. The Activity employs
approximately 2650 civilian employees. The unit for which the AFGE holds
exclusive recognition encompasses about 1848 of these employees, of whom
about 1318 are Wage Board employees and 530 are General Schedule employees.

The record reveals that there is relatively little interchange or
transfer between General Schedule employees and Wage Board employees.
The latter group reflects a wide range of skills such as those utilized
by electricians, carpenters, machinists, food service workers, truck
drivers, and barbers. This diversity of skills is found in many of the
agencies within the Activity. Furthermore, both General Schedule and
Wage Board skills are found to exist in the various academic departments.
Thus, record testimony reveals that certain Wage Board employees in the
Department of Electrical Engineering maintain the equipment and assemble
the apparatus used in experiments, while othem, working as classroom
aides, are responsible for the upkeep of classrooms as well as assisting
General Schedule clerk-typists in operating mimeograph machines and
procuring office supplies and mail. In this way, Wage Board and General
Schedule employees support academic instructors in carrying out their
duties.

The record discloses that throughout the period of its bargaining
relationship with the Activity, the AFGE, as the exclusively recognized
bargaining representative, has represented the interests of both Wage
Board and General Schedule employees in the recognized unit. Thus, the
AFGE has commented on numerous agency regulations relating to General
Schedule and Wage Board employees' development and training, merit
promotion, equal employment opportunity and operation of motor vehicles.
Also, it has discussed parking problems, environmental pay differentials,
and specific grievances with the Activity concerning all unit employees.
Further, the record reveals that, at present, all of the 30 to 40 AFGE
shop stewards of the exclusively recognized unit, as well as the president
of the AFGE, are Wage Board employees and that most of the grievances
processed by the AFGE on behalf of unit employees have involved Wage
Board employees. 1In this latter regard, the evidence establishes that
the AFGE represented approximately 19 Wage Board employees in grievance
proceedings during the period January 1970 to March 1971, approximately
six of which reached the formal stage. Moreover, the record shows that
the AFGE has represented all employees in its recognized unit on a number
of joint labor-management committees, including the Equal Employment
Opportunity Advisory Committee, the Post Parking Committee, and the
Safety Committee.
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In United States Naval Conmstruction Battalion Center, A/SLMR No. 8,
I stated that, "where the evidence shows that an established, effective,
and fair collective bargaining relationship is in existence, a separate
unit carved out of the existing unit will not be found to be appropriate
except in unusual circumstances.” The record in the instant case reveals
that there is in effect an established, effective, and fair collective
bargaining relationship between the AFGE and the Activity and there does
not exist any unusual circumstances which would justify the severance of
either of the units sought by the NAGE from the existing exclusively
recognized unit. Moreover, severance of either of the claimed units
from the established unit would not, in my view, serve to promote effective
dealings and efficiency of operations within the Activity. Accordingly,
I find that neither the initially sought unit nor the alternate unit
requested by the NAGE is appropriate for the purpose of exclusive recog-
nition, and I shall, therefore, dismiss the petition. 8/

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petition in Case No. 30-2547(EO) be,
and it hereby is, dismissed.

Dated, Washington, D.C.
February 28, 1972

o Ql., ]

. J%/H’éry, T., Assista Sezé!%ary of
Labof for -Eabor-Managemept Relations

manded "... to clear up the clouded portions fof the record/ covering
the final two days and to secure additional evidence." On the basis
of the affirmative evidence contained in the record and in the
absence of specific exceptions having been filed by the NAGE to the
proposed corrections of the record by the Hearing Officer, which
corrected record I have relied on in reaching my decision, the

motion is hereby denied.

§_/ I have considered carefully the NAGE's motion that the case_be re-

b=
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February 28, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE,
McCONNELL AIR FORCE BASE, KANSAS
A/SLMR No. 134

This case involved a upit clarification petition filed by Local 1737,
American Federation of Government BEmployees, AFL-CIO, (AFGE) seeking to
include in its existing exclusively recognized unit at McComnell Air Force
Base, Kansas, 6 individuals in the following four job classifications:
Clothing Sales Store Manager; Supervisory Fire Fighter; Pest Controller
Foreman; and Supervisory Fire Protection Inspector. During the hearing,
the parties stipulated that the employees in these positions perform
supervisory duties as defined in Section 2(c) of the Executive Order.
Nevertheless, the AFGE contended that these employees were not supervisors
inasmuch as they did not discharge their supervisory duties over "employees"”
as defined in Section 2(b) of the Order.

The record reflected that the employees in question exercised their
supervisory authority only with respect to military personnel who were
engaged in the performance of their military duties.

The Assistant Secretary noted that Section 10(b)(l) of the Order
provides, in part, that units should not be established including management
officials or supervisors and that the Report and Recommendations of the Study
Committee indicated that employees having supervisory authority have interests
and responsibilities different from nonsupervisors and are part of agency
management., In these circumstances, the Assistant Secretary found that,
consistent with the policies of the Order, individuals exercising supervisory
authority over two or more employees may not be included in bargaining units.
He noted that it is immaterial whether the supervisory authority involved is
exercised over unit employees, non-unit employees, or persons who, as in the
subject case, may not be "employees" as defined in Section 2(b) of the Order.
In determining supervisory status, the Assistant Secretary stated that he
viewed as determinative the duties performed by the alleged supervisor and
not the type of personnel who are working under the alleged supervision.

Based on his finding that the employees in the four disputed job
classifications perform supervisory functions over two or more persons, the
Assistant Secretary ordered that the umnit be clarified by excluding em=
ployees within these classifications,
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A/SLMR No. 134
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE,
McCONNELL AIR FORCE BASE, KANSAS l/

Activity
and Case No. 60-2312(CU)

LOCAL 1737, AMERICAN FEDERATION
OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO

Petitioner

DECISION AND ORDER CLARIFYING UNIT

Upon a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive Order 11491,
a hearing was held before Hearing Officer Marvin R. Wesley. The Hearing
Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free from prejudicial error
and are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including the parties’ briefs,
the Assistant Secretary finds:

The Petitioner, Local 1737, American Federation of Government Em-
ployees, AFL-CIO, herein called AFGE, is the current exclusive bargaining
representative of a unit composed of all employees serviced by the
Central Civilian Personnel Office of McConmell Air Force Base, Kansas,
excluding (1) any managerial executive, (2) employees engaged in Federal
personnel work, in other than a purely clerical capacity, (3) supervisors
who officially evaluate the performance of employees, and (4) employees
whose positions require the performing of work of a professional nature.2/

1/ The name of the Activity appears as amended at the hearing.

2/ Exclusive recognition was granted on July 13, 1967.



The AFGE seeks to clarify the status of the following four job
classifications: Clothing Sales Store Manager, Supervisory Fire Fighter,
Pest Controller Foreman and Supervisory Fire Protection Inspector. Six
employees are included in these classifications,

During the hearing, the parties stipulated that the duties performed
by the incumbents in the four positions noted above were supervisory in
nature within the meaning of Section 2(c¢) of the Executive Order., How-
ever, the record indicates that all the employees subordinate to these
alleged supervisors are in the military services and are engaged in
military duties when "supervised" by the employees in the four classifi-
cations involved herein. Moreover, the record shows that employees in
these classifications perform no supervisory functions with respect to
nonmilitary personnel, The AFGE maintains that inasmuch as the personnel
"supervised" by the incumbents in the four classifications are not
"employees" within the meaning of Section 2(b) of the Order, 3/ it follows
that the incumbents are not "supervisors" within the meaning of Section 2(c)
of the Order 4/ and, therefore, properly may be included in the unit despite
their undisputed supervisory functions.

On the other hand, the Activity contends, that the inclusion of the
employees in the disputed classifications in the existing unit is unwar-
ranted because these employees are, in fact, "supervisors' within the
meaning of Section 2(c) and are, therefore, expressly excluded from employee
bargaining units by Section 10(b)(1l) of the Order. In this regard, the
Activity urges that the determination of an individual's supervisory status
requires consideration of the supervisory responsibilities to which he is
assigned and the supervisory functions he performs, rather than considera-
tion of the type of personmel who are under his supervision.

Section 10(b)(1) of the Orxder provides, in part, that a unit shall not
be established if it includes any management official or supervisor. In
this connection, the Report and Recommendations of the Study Committee,
which preceded the Executive Order, clearly indicated the Study Committee's
view that in the Federal service employees having supervisory authority
have interests and responsibilities which are substentially different from

3/ section 2(b) provides, "'Employee’' means an employee of an agency and an
employee of a nonappropriated fund instrumentality of the United States
but does not include, for the purpose of exclusive recognition or national
consultation rights, a supervisor, except as provided in section 24 of
this Order;”

Section 2(c) provides, "'Supervisor' means an employee having authority,
in the interest of an agency, to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall,
promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other employees,or
responsibly to direct them, or to evaluate their performance,or to adjust
their grievances, or effectively to recommend such action, if in con-
nection with the foregoing the exercise of authority is not of a merely
routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment;"

2=
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nonsupervisory individuals. Thus, the Study Committee stated:
"We view supervisors as a part of management,
responsible for participating in and contributing
to the formulation of agency policies and pro-
cedures and contributing to the negotiation of
agreements with employees. Supervisors should be
responsible for representing management in the
administration of agency policy and labor-
management agreements, including negotiated
grievance systems, and for expression of manage-
ment viewpoints in daily communication with
employees, In short, they should be and are

part of agency management and should be
integrated fully into that management.'
added).

(emphasis

In these circumstances, I find that consistent with the purposes and
policies of the Executive Order, individuals exercising supervisory
authority over two or more employees may not be included in bargaining
units. In this regard, I find that it is immaterial whether the super-
visory authority involved is exercised over unit employees, non-unit
employees, or persons who, as in the subject case, may not be "employees"
as defined by Section 2(b) of the Order. 5/ Furthermore, as the above-
quoted language indicates, the exercise of this supervisory authority
identifies the interests of individuals in these job classifications
with those of management, Thus, in determining supervisory status, I
view as determinative the duties performed by the alleged supervisor and
not the type of personnel who are working under the alleged supervision. g/

Accordingly, because the record in the subject case establishes that
the employees in the four job classifications noted above perform super=

5/ This is not to say that members of the military services may never be
considered "employees" within the contemplation of the Order. Thus,
off-duty military personnel may be considered to be "employees." See e.g.
Department of the Navy, Navy Exchange, Mayport, Florida, A/SLMR No. 24,
and Army and Air Force Exchange Service, White Sands Missile Range
Exchange, White Sands Missile Range, New Mexico, A/SLMR No. 25.

6/ My decision in United States Department of Agriculture, Northern
Marketing and Nutrition Research Division, Peoria, Illinois, A/SLMR No.120,
would not require a contrary result. In that decision, I found merely
that under Section 2(c) of the Order, as written, for an individual to
qualify for consideration as a "supervisor," he must exercise the alleged
supervisory authority over two or more employees. Thus, before reaching
any question as to whether the alleged supervisor's authority comes
within the criteria established by Section 2(c), it must be shown initially
that he, in fact, exercises authority over two or more unit employees,
non-unit employees, or persons who may not be "employees" as defined by
Section 2(b) of the Order. In the instant case, the record is clear
that the alleged supervisors met this prerequisite.
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visory functioms within the meaning of Section 2(c¢) of the Executive Order
over two or more persons, I shall exclude them from the exclusively
recognized unit.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the unit sought to be clarified herein,
in which exclusive recognition was granted on July 13, 1967, to Local 1737,
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, be, and it hereby is,
clarified by excluding from the unit all employees in the job classifica-
tions of Clothing Sales Store Manager; Supervisory Fire Fighter; Pest
Controller Foreman; and Supervisory Fire Protection Inspector.

Ul 4

v, J. Us:fzé/di., Assistant 2§fétary of
Labor fo bor=Management Reltdtions

Dated, Washington, D. C.
February 28, 1972
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February 28, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE,

ARNOLD ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT CENTER,
AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND,

ARNOLD AIR FORCE STATION, TENNESSEE
A/SIMR No., 135

In seeking a unit of all professional and nonprofessional employees
at the Arnold Engineering Development Center in Tennessee (Arnold
Engineering), the Arnold Air Force Station Local No. 3218, American
Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (AFGE Local) and Arnold
Engineering could not reach agreement on three issues.

First, Arnold Engineering alleged that the president of the AFGE
Local and signer of the representation petition was a management official
and, therefore, ineligible to be included in the requested unit or to
act in an official capacity pertaining to its recognition, thereby rend-
ering the petition itself null and void. Second, the petition was also
contended defective as a result of an additional deficiency in the AFGE
Local's organization because its secretary-treasurer was likewise a
management official, Finally, and in the alternative, should the
petition be found valid, Arnold Engineering argued that certain named
individuals, considered by the AFGE Local to be part of the unit, were
not because they, too, were management officials. One of these was also
contended excludable as a supervisor.

The Assistant Secretary dismissed the representation petitiom, in
agreement with Arnold Engineering on the first issue - namely, that the
petition signer is a management official and, under Section 10(b)(l) of
the Executive Order, such a petition is defective. In view of this deter-
mination, no consideration of the latter two issues was necessary.

Noting that the Executive Order does not contain, in its Section 2
definitions of various temms when used in the Order, one for "management
official," the Assistant Secretary concluded that the following
definition should be applied in this case, as well as future cases,
because he found it to be consistent with the underlying policy of
Executive Order 11491 and Executive Order 11491, as amended.

When used in connection with the Executive Order,
the term 'management official' means an employee
having authority to make, or to influence
effectively the making of, policy necessary to the
agency or activity with respect to personnel,
procedures, or programs, In determining whether



a given individual influences effectively
policy decisions in this context, consideration
should be concentrated on whether his role is
that of an expert or professional rendering
resource information or recommendations with
respect to the policy in question, or whether
his role extends beyond this to the point of
active participation in the ultimate deter-
mination as to what the policy in fact will be.

Application of the above definition to this case demonstrated that
Safety Engineer Williams was a management official because he was an
employee having authority to influence effectively the making of
policy necessary to the Activity with respect to certain kinds of
safety procedures and programs. He was Arnold Engineering's sole
civilian employee, a nonsupervisor and stipulated professional, acting
in this particular capacity. He reported directly to only the Director
of Support Services and the installation's Vice Commander. They testi-
fied to substantial reliance on Williams' safety advice and
recommendations, based on his own independent judgment, which were
almost "invariably"” followed in formulating Arnold Engineering's
safety policies in areas of Williams' expertise. Thus, his role as an
"effective influencer," was proven as more than just that of an expert
or professional rendering resource material for decision-making, but it
reached the required point of active participation in ultimate policy
determinations., The Assistant Secretary noted also that the inclusion
of Williams in an employee bargaining unit would result in a conflict of
interest within the meaning of Section 1(b) of the Order in that his
participation in the management of the AFGE local representing such unit
would be incompatible with his management functions on behalf of the
activity,.
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A/SLMR No. 135
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE,
ARNOLD ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT CENTER,
AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND,
ARNOLD AIR FORCE STATION, TENNESSEE l/

Activity
and Case No. 41-2101 (RO)

ARNOLD ATIR FORCE STATION LOCAL 3218,
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO 2/

Petitioner

DECISION AND ORDER

Pursuant to a petition duly filed under Section 6 of Executive
Order 11491, 3/ a hearing was held before Hearing Officer Albert W.
Stockell, The Hearing Officer's rulings made at the hearing are free
from prejudicial error and are hereby affirmed.

Upon the entire record in this case, including a brief submitted
by the Activity, the Assistant Secretary finds:

1, The labor organization involved claims to represent certain
employees of the Activity.

l/ The name of the Activity appears as amended at the hearing.
2/ The name of the Petitioner appears as amended at the hearing.

3/ During the course of this proceeding, Executive Order 11491 was

amended by a new Executive Order, No. 11616, which the President

issued on August 26, 1971, effective November 24, 1971, Notwith=-
standing that this case is governed by Executive Order 11491, it

should be noted that Executive Order 11491, as amended, contains

no relevant revisions of any Executive Order sections applicable

herein., Therefore, the instant discussion and conclusions may be
regarded in terms of future applicability under Executive

Order 11491, as amended.



2, The Petitioner, Arnold Air Force Station Local No. 3218,
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL~CIO, 4/ seeks an
election in the following unit:

All professional and nonprofessional employees

at Arnold Engineering Development Center, Air
Force Systems Command, Arnold Air Force Station,
Tennessee, excluding all employees engaged in
Federal personnel work in other than a purely
clerical capacity, management officials, and
supervisors and guards as defined in the Executive
Order. 5/

The Activity, Department of the Air Force, Arnold Engineering
Development Center, Air Force Systems Command, Arnold Air Force Station,
Tennessee, 6/ raises three issues in this case: (1) the AFGE Local's
president and signer of the representation petition, Arvis G, Williams,
is a management official and, hence, ineligible to be included in the
requested unit l/ or to act in an official capacity pertaining to its
recognition as required by Section 10(b)(1l) of the Order 8/ with the
result of rendering the petition itself null and void; (2) the petition
is likewise defective because of an additional deficiency in the AFGE
Local's organization since its secretary-treasurer, Mrs. Jerry H. Comly,
although not a petition signer, is also a management official; and, in
the alternative, (3) should the representation petition be found valid,
17 named individuals, considered by the AFGE Local to be part of the
requested unit, are not because they are management officials. One indi-
vidual in the latter group also is alleged excludable from the unit
because he is a supervisor,

I find merit in the position taken by Arnold Engineering as to the
managerial status of the petition signer, Arvis G. Williams, and, there-
fore, the instant representation petition is invalid. For this reason,
I find it unnecessary to consider the remaining two issues.

4/ Herein called the AFGE Local.

5/ The unit appears as amended at the hearing.

6/ Herein called Arnold Engineering,

7/ The unit, as originally sought, consists of approximately 139 employees.
During the hearing, the parties stipulated that 36 individuals should
be excluded as either management officials and/or supervisors thereby
reducing the proposed unit to 103 employees.

8/ Section 10(b)(1l) provides, in pertinent part, that "a unit Z;hall nq£7

be established if it includes -- (1) any management official or
supervisor, . « o."
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Although the Executive Order provides, in Section 2, definitions
of various terms when used in the Order, 9/ it does not so provide for
the term "management official." This is the core problem before me
now, and it is obviously one which will continue to reoccur in public
sector labor-management relations representation situations in the
Federal Service. In order to not only determine the problem herein,
but also to provide future guidance, I conclude that the following
definition of management official is dictated by and consistent with
the underlying policies and ultimate purpose of the Executive Order:

When used in conmection with the Executive Order,
the term 'management official’' means an employee
having authority to make, or to influence ef-
fectively the making of, policy necessary to the
agency or activity with respect to personnel,
procedures, or programs, In determining whether
a given individual influences effectively policy
decisions in this context, consideration should
be concentrated on whether his role is that of
an expert or professional rendering resource
information or recommendations with respect to
the policy in question, or whether his role
extends beyond this to the point of active
participation in the ultimate determination as
to what the policy in fact will be. 10/

The record in this case demonstrates that Arvis G, Williams is an
Arnold Engineering management official within the meaning of the pre-
ceding definition because he is an employee having authority to
influence effectively the making of policy necessary to the activity
with respect to certain kinds of safety procedures and programs.

Williams is the sole civilian safety engineer directly connected
with the Air Force at Arnold Engineering, although there are various
Air Force flying safety officers and several safety engineers employed
by a private contractor associated with Arnold Engineering's overall
operations. His safety responsibilities do not significantly overlap
those of the Air Force safety officers and, as shown below, he exercises
some limited authority in relation to the private contractor's safety
activities irrespective of its own safety persomnel, Of course, neither
the flying safety officers nor the private contractor's safety engineers
are included in the unit as proposed.

9/ See, €.8., the Section 2(c) definition of supervisor.

10/ Accord, Virginia National Guard Headquarters, 4th Battalion, 11llth
Artillery, A/SLMR No. 69; Veterens Administration Regional Office,
Newark, New Jersey, A/SLMR No. 38; and The Veterans Administration
Hospital, Augusta, A/SLMR No. 3.
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There is no dispute to the conclusion that Williams does not
supervise any employees and he is directly responsible to Colonel
N. T. Patterson, the Director of Support Services. There are four
other Support Services Divisions in addition to the Safety Office
held by Williams., They are the Personnel and Administrative
Division; Services Division; Aircraft Operations Division; and
Security Division. Williams and Patterson are, in turn, respomsible
to Arnold Engineering's vice commander, Colonel Roy Re. Croy, Jr.,
who acts as the immediate assistant to the installation's commander,
Brigadier General Jessup D. Lowe.

In relation to these two officers who unquestionably qualify,
on the basis of the developed record, as management officials under
the first aspect of the definition stated above, Williams' function
is to render advice and recommendations according to his own inde-
pendent judgment and expertise (He was stipulated at the hearing as a
professional.), on certain kinds of safety problems, The "Introduction'
to his official position description (He is classified as a GS-14.)
reads, in part:

» « » The purpose of this position is to

(a) implement the HQ AEDC aspects of the

overall Center safety program and provide

advice to the Director of Engineering pertaining
thereto and (b) monitor the Contractor's safety
programs and provide advice and assistance to
the Administrative Contracting Officer in ad-
ministration of the safety aspects of the
Operating Contract. These safety programs
involve ground, explosive, toxic, and nuclear
radiation safety. Incumbent renders advice and
consultation in coordinating a planned operational
safety program for AEDC.

Coordination of all Arnold Engineering safety matters is through
a Safety Council composed of the Commander (Lowe), Staff Surgeon,
Director of Engineering, Director of Support Services (Patterson), a
representative from the Directorate of Contract Management, Security
Officer, Emergency Plans Officer, Flying Safety Officer, Aircraft Oper-
ations Officer, and Safety Engineer (Williams). Williams' role om the
Council is likewise advisory in nature, but testimony was given that in
his more immediate contact with Patterson and Croy, his opinions are
almost "invariably” followed by them in carrying out Armold Engineering's
safety programs and in formulating its policies in the area of Williams'
particular competence. This is apparently true notwithstanding
Patterson's additional testimony that he would not hesitate to reject a
recommendation by Williams which he felt was not feasible.
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Thus, while at some point in Arnold Engineering's higher level
organizational structure, all of Williams' safety advice and recom~
mendations is subject to approval, this approval is usually given,
and, in some instances, the final proposal is circulated over his
signature as safety engineer.

The foregoing facts convince me that Williams' role as an
"effective influencer" in this context is more than just that of an
expert or professional rendering resource material, and that his role
has been proven to reach the required point of "active participation
in the_ultimate determination as to what the /Arnold Engineering
safetx? policy in fact will be."” 1In such a situation, it is my view
that the inclusion of Williams in an employee bargaining unit would
result in a conflict of interest within the meaning of Section 1(b)
of the Order in that his participation in the management of the AFGE
local representing such unit would be incompatible with his management
functions on behalf of the activity.

I, therefore, shall dismiss the representation petition.
ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the petition in Case No. 41-2101 (RO)
be, and it hereby is, dismissed.

Dated, Washington, D. C. , '
February 28, 1972 / K
(aliLy i

-
W. J./ﬂséry Jr., Assistany’ S tary of
Labor’ £ abor-Management Relations
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February 29, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION AND ORDER OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY,
PERRINE PRIMATE LABORATORY
A/SLMR No. 136

This case involves a complaint filed by the American Federation
of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 3162 (AFGE) against the Environ-
mental Protection Agency, Perrine Primate Laboratory. Although the
AFGE originally alleged violations of Section 19(a)(l), (2), (4) and
(6) of the Order,it subsequently amended its complaint to allege violations
of Section 19(a)(1l) and (2).

The complaint stems basically from certain actions taken by a
supervisor of the Respondent against an employee who also held the position
of President of AFGE, Local 3162. While the complaint was based initially
on events which occurred prior to October 8, 1970 (date of unfair labor
practice charge) the AFGE filed a post hearing motion to amend its
complaint to include subsequent threats and acts of harassment, which
motion was granted by the Hearing Examiner, In affirming such motionm,
the Hearing Examiner noted that all matters alleged in the complaint, as
amended, were litigated at the hearing.

Prior to the hearing, the Respondent filed a motion to dismiss the
complaint on the basis of (1) lack of specificity and (2) that Complainant
had failed to file an investigative report with the complainant as required
under Section 203.3(e) of the Assistant Secretary's Regulations. The
Hearing Examiner rejected both grounds and demied the motion.

The Assistant Secretary adopted the findings, conclusions and
recommendations of the Hearing Examiner who held (1) that actions taken
by the Respondent's supervisor against employee Jones were prompted by
Jones' activity as president of the AFGE Local and, therefore, such con-
duct interfered with, restrained or coerced Jones in viclation of Section
19(a)(1) of the Order and (2) that certain actions, (i.e., the unjustified
docking of her pay and her low performance appraisal) constituted dis-
crimination against employee Jonmes with respect to her opportunities for
promotion and other working conditions in violationm of Section 19(a)(2).
In finding a 19(a)(2) violation, the Assistant Secretary adopted the
Hearing Examiner's conclusion that in such circumstances the aforementioned

actions inherently would tend to discourage membership in a labor organization

and that there is no need to prove actual discouragement.
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As part of the remedy in this case, the Assistant Secretary
ordered the Respondent to expunge from Jones' personnel records an
unsatisfactory performance appraisal and any discriminatory dis-
ciplinary warnings and memoranda discriminatorily restricting her
freedom of movement in the laboratory on nonworking time. Additionally,
the Assistant Secretary ordered that the Respondent make the necessary
adjustment to compensate Jones for the three hours pay withheld as a
result of discriminatorily placing her on leave without pay status.
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A/SLMR No. 136

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR~-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY,
PERRINE PRIMATE LABORATORY

Respondent

and Case No. 42-1450 (CA)

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL UNION 3162

Complainant
DECISION AND ORDER

On November 23, 1971, Hearing Examiner Henry L, Segal issued
his Report and Recommendations in the above-entitled proceeding,
finding that the Respondent had engaged in certain unfair labor
practices and recommending that it take certain affirmative actiom
as set forth in the attached Hearing Examiner's Report and Recom-
mendations. Thereafter, the Respondent filed timely exceptions
and supporting brief with respect to the Hearing Examiner's Report
and Recommendations. 1/

The Assistant Secretary has reviewed the rulings of the
Hearing Examiner made at the hearing and finds that no prejudicial
error was committed., The rulings are hereby affirmed. Upon consi-
deration of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations and
the entire record in the subject case, including the Complainant's

1/ The Complainant also filed a timely post-hearing brief.
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exceptions 2/ and the parties' statement of position and briefs, I
hereby adopt the findings, conclusions and recommendations of the
Hearing Examiner.3/

ORDER

Pursuant to Sectior 6(b) of Executive Order 11491 and
Section 203.25(a) of the Regulations, the Assistant Secretary of
Labor for Labor-Management Relations hereby orders that the Perrine
Primate Laboratory, Environmental Protection Agency, shall:

1. Cease and desist from:

(a) Discouraging membership in the American Federation
of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 3162, or any other labor
organization, by discriminatorily issuing unsatisfactory performance
appraisals to employees and by discriminatorily placing employees on
leave without pay status, or otherwise discriminating in regard to
hire, tenure, promotion or other conditions of employment.

(b) Issuing discriminatory disciplinary warnings to
employees.

(c) Issuing discriminatory memoranda restricting privileges
of employees with respect to freedom of movement within the laboratory
on nonworking time,

g/ In its exceptions and accompanying brief, the Complainant questioned
the Hearing Examiner's finding of a 19(a)(2) violation where he con-
cluded that the evidence of actual discouragement of membership in a
labor organization was "inconclusive.' In agreement with the Hearing
Examiner, I find that those acts of discrimination found herein, by
their very nature, inheremntly would tend to discourage membership in
a labor organization. In such circumstances, proof of actual dis-
couragement is not required in order to find a violation of Section
19(a)(2) of the Executive Order.

3/ In the circumstances of this case, including particularly the fact
that both parties were in doubt as to whether there was an estab-
lished agency grievance procedure in existence at the time Mrs. Jones
filed her grievances because of the pending transfer of the laboratory
to the Environmental Protection Agency, I find, in agreement with the
Hearing Examiner, that the Respondent's failure to process her
grievances was not violative of the Order. Im view of the foregoing
conclusion, I find it unnecessary to pass upon the Hearing Examiner's
additional finding in this respect, i.e., that the Respondent's fail-
ure to act on Mrs. Jones' grievances was privileged in the absence of
a negotiated grievance procedure.
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(d) 1In any like or related manner interfering with, re-
straining, or coercing its employees in the exercise of rights
assured by Section 1(a) of Executive Order 11491,

2. Take the following affirmative action in order to effectuate
the purposes and provisions of the Order:

(a) Make the necessary adjustment to compensate Mrs. Phyllis
A. Jones for three hours pay withheld as a result of discriminatorily

placing her on leave without pay status on October 1 and October 20, 1970.

(b) Expunge from Mrs. Phyllis A. Jones' personmel records
the unsatisfactory performance appraisal given her in November 1970.

(c) Expunge from Mrs. Phyllis A. Jones' personmel records
discriminatory disciplinary warnings and memoranda discriminatorily
restricting her freedom of movement in the laboratory on nonworking
time.

(d) Post at its facility at the Perrine Primate Laboratory,
Perrine, Florida, copies of the attached notice marked "Appendix" on
forms to be furnished by the Assistant Secretary for Labor-Management
Relations. Upon receipt of such forms they shall be signed by the
Director of the Perrine Primate Laboratory and shall be posted and
maintained by him for sixty (60) consecutive days thereafter, in con-
spicuous places, including all places where notices to employees are
customarily posted. The Laboratory Director shall take reasonable
steps to insure that such notices are not altered, defaced, or covered
by any other material.

(e) Pursuant to Section 203.26 of the Regulations, notify
the Assistant Secretary in writing within ten (10) days from the date of
this Order as to what steps have been taken to comply herewith.

Dated, Washington, D. C.
Februray 29, 1972

- W.J. g;gﬁ;f,Jr., Assistant Sefre of
LaborZ#6r Labor-Management Rel s
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APPENDIX A

ALL EMPLOYEES

NOTICE TO
PURSUANT TO
A DECISION AND ORDER OF THE
ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LABOR FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
and in order to effectuate the policies of
EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491
LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS IN THE FEDERAL SERVICE
We hereby notify our employees that:

WE WILL NOT discourage membership in the AMERICAN FEDERATION OF
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 3162, or any other labor
organization, by discriminatorily issuing to employees unsatis=-
factory performance appraisals and by discriminatorily placing
employees on leave without pay status, or otherwise discriminating
in regard to hire, tenure, promotion or other conditions of employ-
ment,

WE WILL NOT issue discriminatory disciplinary warnings to employees,
and discriminatory memoramda restricting privileges of employees
with respect to freedom of movement in the laboratory on nonworking
time.

WE WILL make the necessary adjustment to compensate Mrs. Phyllis A.
Jones for three hours withheld as a result of discriminatorily
placing her on leave without pay status on October 1 and October 20,
1970.

WE WILL expunge from Mrs. Phyllis A, Jones' persomnel records the unsat-
isfactory performance appraisals given her in November 1970.

WE WILL expunge from Mrs. Phyllis A. Jomes' personnel records discrimina-
tory disciplinary warnings and memoranda discriminatorily restricting
her freedom of movement in the laboratory on nonworking time.



WE WILL NOT in any like or related manner interfere with, restrain or
coerce our employees in the exercise of their rights assured by
Section 1(a) of Executive Order 11491.

PERRINE PRIMATE LABORATORY
Perrine, Florida
(Agency or Activity)

DATED By

(Signature)

This Notice must remain posted for 60 consecutive days from the date
of posting, and must not be altered, defaced, or covered by any other
material.

If employees have any question concerning this Notice of compliance
with its provisions, they may communicate directly with the Regional
Administrator of the Labor-Management Services Administration, U.S.
Department of Labor, whose address is Room 300, 1371 Peachtree Street,
N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30309
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR IABOR-~MANAGEMENT RETATIONS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
PERRINE PRIMATE IABORATORY 1/

Respondent
CASE NO. 42-1450 (CA)

and

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 3162

Complainant

Robert J. McManus, Staff Attorney,
Office of the General Counsel,
Environmental Protection Agency,
1626 K Street, N. W., Washington,
D. C. 20460, for the Respondent

Real Fine, Assistant to the Staff Counsel,
American Federation of Government Employees,
400 First Street, N. W., Washington, D. C.
20001, for the Complainant

Before: Henry L. Segal, Hearing Examiner
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Statement of the Case

This proceeding, heard at Miami, Florida, on August 17 and
18, 1971, arises under Executive Order 11491 (herein called the Order)
pursvant to a Notice of Hearing issued by the Regional Administrator

;/ The name of the Respondent appears as amended at the hearing.



of the lLabor-Management Services Administration, United States
Department of Labor, Atlanta Region, on June 10, 1971, in accord-
ance with Section 203.8 of the Regulations of the Assistant Secre-
tary for Iabor-Management Relations (herein called the Assistant
Secretary). It was initiated by a compleint filed by the Complainant
on Japuary 25, 1971, alleging that Respondent has engeged in and is
engaged in violations of Section 19(a), subsections (1), (2), (L) and
(6) of the Order. By letter dated February 8, 1971, to the Area
Administrator of the Department of Iabor in Miami, Florida, the
Respondent amended its complaint to delete the references in the
original complaint to Section 19(a), subsections (%) and (6). Accord-
ingly, the Notice of Hearing directed a hearing with reference only
to alleged violations of Sections 19(a)(1) and (2) of the Order.

At the hearing both parties were represented by counsel who
were afforded full opportunity to adduce evidence, examine and cross-
examine witnesses, argue orally and file briefs. Upon the entire
record in this matter, from observation of the witnesses and after due
consideration of the briefs filed by the parties, I make the following:

Findings and Conclusions

I. The Substantive Issues

Basically involved in this proceeding are certain actions
taken by Dr. Morris Cranmer, a supervisor of the Respondent, against
Mrs. Phyllis Jones, an employee of the Respondent and president of
Complainant, which the Complainant alleges were acts of harassment and
intimidation engaged in because of Mrs. Jones' activity as president
of Complsinant.

The issues before me are whether the Respondent, by the
actions of Dr. Cranmer, interfered with, restrained, or coerced an
employee in the exercise of the rights assured by the Order within the
peaning of Section 19(a)(l) of the Order and/or encouraged or dis-
couraged membership in a labor organization by discrimination in regard
to hiring, tenure, promotion, or other conditions of employment within
the meaning of Section 19(a)(2) of the Order.

500-836 O - T3 -7
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II. Procedural Issues

Before a discussion of the substantive issues is appropriate
it is necessary to dispose of certain procedural matters raised by the
Respondent and the Complainant.

On July 20, 1971, Respondent filed a motion to dismiss the
complaint with the Regional Administrator, Atlante region, on two
grounds:

l. Complainant has failed to comply with Section

203.3(c) of the Regulations of the Assistant
Secretary in that the Complaint does not contain
"a clear and concise statement of the
facts constituting the alleged unfair
lsbor practices, including the time and
place of occurrence of the particular

acts. + . "

2. Complainant has failed to comply with Section
203.3(e) of the Regulations in that it has failed
to file an investigative report with the complaint.

The Regionel Administrator referred the motion to me pursuant
to Section 203.18(b) of the Assistant Secretary's Regulations on
July 23, 1971. Thereafter, on July 27, 1971, I issued an "Order To
Show Cause" on the Complainant as to why the Respondent's motions should
not be grantel. Complainant duly responded to my Order. By teletype
dated Auvgust 9, 1971, I advised the parties that I was withholding
ruling on Respondent's motion to dismiss and that the hearing would
proceed as scheduled on August 17, 1971. At the hearing, T advised
the parties that I would make recommendations to the Assistant Secretary
with respect to Respondent's pre-hearing motion to dismiss the complaint
in my post hearing “"Report and Recommendations."

With respect to the Respondent's pre-hearing contention that
the complaint should be dismissed because of the failure of Complainant
to comply with Section 203.3(e) of the Assistant Secretary's Regula-
tions in that it failed to file an investigative report with the -
complaint, I conclude that this contention was untimely raised. In a .
recent case, the Assistant Secretary held that a similar contention must
be made to the Area Administrator during the investigation period
provided for in Section 203.5 of the Regulations and certainly prior to
the time the Regional Administrator issues the Notice of Hearing. g/

g/ Veterans Administration Hospital, Charleston, South Carolina,
A/SIMR No. BT.




With respect to the contention that the complaint lacked
sufficient specificity to meet the requirements of Section 203.3(c)
of the Assistant Secretary's Regulations, I conclude that the
content of the complaint meets the requirements of Section 203.3 of
the Regulations. As amended by Complainant's letter of February 8,
1971, the complaint clearly alleges a violation of Section 19(a)(1)
and (2) of the Order because of "continued harassment and intimi-
dation of Mrs. Phyliss W. Jones as a federal employee and President
of American Federation of Government Employees (AFGE) Local 3162 )
thereby interfering with her rights afforded by E. O. 11Lk91."

The complaint also alleges that Mrs. Jones filed two griev-
ances with Dr. Cranmer on November 1 and 10 which were not responded
to, and that he gave her an unsatisfactory performance rating on
November 12, 1970. Further, the complaint includes a general
allegation, "In his every day actions, expressed either verbally or
through written memorandums (sic), he [Dr. Crammer]} has continually
attempted to harass and intimidate Mrs. Jones. . . ." The complaint
incorporates by reference the unfair labor practice charge which was
filed on October .5, 1970. The unfair labor practice charge contained
specific incidents and dates. .,

One of the functions of a complaint is to put the Respondent

on notice as to what allegations it must defend against. A%t the
hearing there was no indicaticn that the Respondent had any miscon-
ceptions as to the allegations it would have to defend against, and
there was no request for additional time to prepare a defense for any
"surprise" testimony. The Respondent was given full opportunity to
present its witnesses and contentions. Accordingly, I will recommend
to the Assistant Secretary that he deny the Respondent's pre-hearing
motion to dismiss. 3/

Along the same line as its pre-hearing motion to dismiss,
the Respondent, at the hearing, moved to restrict the hearing to the

incidents set forth in the complaint and unfair labor practice charge.

It made this contention because in Complainant's response to my show
cause order issued in connection with the Respondent's motion to

dismiss, Complainant referred to other alleged instances of harassment

of Mrs. Jones. Actually, the complaint did contain a general alle-
gation of harassment and intimidation of Mrs. Jones in violation of

3/ eof. Veterans Administration Hospital, Charleston, South Caroclina,

supra.
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the Order. The additional matters litigated at the hearing were
merely extensions of the allegations in the complaint, and as noted
above, the Respondent fully defended against all contentions and

did not request additional time to prepare a defense for additional
incidents. Accordingly, I will consider all material incidents
vwhich, in fact, fall within the general allegations of the complaint,
and will recommend that the Assistant Secretary deny Respondent's
partial motion to dismiss made at the hearing. (It is noted that
Respondent, in its post~hearing brief, makes no reference to its
various procedural motions to dismiss the complaint.)

The Complainant, as part of its post-hearing brief, moved
to amend the complaint to include all threats and acts of harassment
and intimidation made by management against Mrs. Jones on and subse-
quent to September 25, 1970. Section 203.15(5) of the Assistant
Secretary's Regulations empowers the Hearing Examiner to rule on
motions to amend pleadings prior to transfer of the case to the
Assistant Secretary. In view of my discussion sbove, bearing in mind
that all matters were fully litigated, it is appropriate to grant tihe
motion to amend where the amendment conforms the complaint to the
evidence adduced with respect to specific incidents of alleged
harassment and intimidation which are extensions of the general alle-
gations in the complaint. 5_/ Accordingly, Complainant's motion to
amend the complaint is granted.

III. The Unfair Labor Practices

A. The Respondent's Operations

The mission of the Perrine Primate laboratory, located
approximately ten miles south of Coral Gables, Florida, is to study
the potential health effects of pesticide chemicals. This is done

primarily by laboratory studies on monkeys. It also engages in related

activities dealing with the pesticide problem.

_57 The Assistant Secretary will teke into account experience in the
private sector. Charleston Naval Shipyard, A/SIMR No. 1. The
" National Labor Relations Board has permitted amendments to
pleadings in similar circumstances. See, e.g., The Lion

Knitting Company, 160 NIRB 801.




The laboratory was started in the latter part of 1964 when
it was part of the U. S. Public Health Service. later it was trans-
ferred to the Food and Drug Administration of the Department of
Health, Education and Welfare. Finally, with the inception of the
Environmental Protection Agency in December 1970, the laboratory
became part of that agency.

There are approximately 68 employees at the laboratory of
which half are professionals.

B. Work Assicnments of Mrs. Jones

Jones started her career at the leboratory on May 10, 1966.
She had previously been employed for ten years by the Department of
the Air Force. There, at various times, she received a superior
performance award, letters of commendation, and an outstanding per-
formance rating. Her first job at the laboratory was as a clerk in
personnel.

In September or October 1968, Jones was elected president
of a local affiliated with National Federation of Federal Employees
which was predecessor of the Complainant. (Compleinant received its
certification as exclusive representative under Executive Order
11491 on May 5, 1970, 2/ Jones continued as president of the
Complainant.) Ten days after her election to the presidency of the
predecessor labor organization in 1968 she vas transferred from her
Job as a personnel clerk to the library as a librarian technician,
GS-4. Dr. Williem Durham, director of the laboratory, testified that
when Jones was elected president of the local, he was of the opinion
that the presidency was not compatible with her job as a personnel
clerk. He checked with his personnel people in Washington and was
advised that it was not contrary to regulations for an officer of a
labor organization to hold a position as a clerk in personnel.

During this time, the laboratory was in process of being transferred
to the Food and Drug Administration from the Public Health Service.
Durham received a direct order from his "boss" at Public Health Service

5/ The unit for which it received exclusive recognition is "all
non-supervisory, non-professional employees of the Perrine
Primate Research Branch who hold appointments not limited as
£0 time, excluding all professional employees, management
officials, supervisors, guards and employees engaged in federal
personnel work in other than a purely clerical capacity."
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to transfer Jones from the personnel office. The reason given was
that she was meking telephone calls direct to the personnel people
at Food and Drug (it was during this time that the laboratory

was being transferred to Food and Drug from the Public Health
Service) rather than to the Communicsble Disease Center in Atlante
to which the laboratory reported directly while under the Public
Health Service. Durham 4id not know what the subject of the calls
was or whether they involved union matters. 6/ Hence Jones was
transferred to her present job.

C. Supervision of Jones

From October 1968, when she was transferred to the library,
until April 1970, Jones was principally under the direct supervision
of laboratory Director Durham. In April 1970, the library was
placed under the supervision of Dr. Morris Cranmer.

Jones worked in the library by herself during the time she
was under Durham's supervislon and at the time of the change to
Cranmer. She had no training in library sciences and no substantial
experience in library work. It must be remembered that the library
was & technlical library very important to the type of work being
performed by the professionzls at the laboratory.

There were many things wrong with the library. Durham
testified that while he supervised the library he received complaints
from some of the professionals with respect to neatness and inability
to find desired materials.

Significant along this line is the testimony of Dr. Henry
Enos, Chief of the Chemistry Branch. Enos and the chemists under his
supervision are steady users of the library. On two occasions he
complained to Durham about the library at staff conferences. In
response 10 & question as to what was unaccepiable about the library,
he stated:

"Well, there was, first of all, in the normal
management of & library, there didn't seem to
be any consistent system for cataloging books,
for making sure that books were being
purchased as they were available on the market,

6/ Of course, there was no explanation given as to how a transfer
would cause a discontinuance of the telephone calls.



for updating and maintaining the library,
and Just keeping the library in some
semblance of order, to keep the journsals
in order, et cetera."

Of course, Mrs. Jones was the only employee in the library. Enos's
desires as to how a library should be run, to say the least, vas
much to expect from a GS-4 clerk with no library training. In fact,
Enos recommended that Durham should prevail on his superiors to
permit the hiring of & full-time trained librarian.

With these complaints in mind, Durham realized that with
all his duties as laboratory director plus extra curricwlar teaching
duties, he could not give the library the attention it required. He
asked Enos to take over the supervision of the library. Enos "begged
off" because of the volume of his work. Finally, Dr. Morris Cranmer
agreed to take over the supervision of the library, end he was so
assigned in April 1970. It must be realized that Dr. Cranmer was
already chief of the Pharmscology Brunch. As such, he supervised the
pharmacology section, as well as the physiology section, the services
sections and the biochemistry and metabolism section. Supervision
of the library was an additional duty.

With respect to trained personrel, sometime subsequent to
Crammer assuming the library, Mr. Richard Cook, who has a master's
degree in library science, was hired on a part-time basis. More
about Mr. Cook later.

D. Alleged Harassment and Intimidation of President Jones

(1) The Administrative Leave Incident. This incident is basic
to the Complainant's theory. It reasons that because of Jones'®
intervention &s president of the local, Cranmer engaged in the
various acts against Jones discussed below.

According to the record, the problem of allegedly improper
leave granted to certain employees had been a concern of the local
for the past two years. Jones testified that in September 1970,
Stella Hickerson, who is Cranmer's secretary and who keeps the time
and attendance cards for employees under Cranmer's supervision,
complained to Jones that'she was required by Cranmer to show an
employee, a Miss Spiegel, as being present when Spiegel was actually
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not present, and that she was afraid of getting in trouble for
falsifying a time card. She requested that Jones do something

about it. (Hickerson was not a member of the union, but she was
included in the appropriate unit.) Jones told Hickerson to put the
complaint in writing, but she did not do so. However, Jones did
raise the problem with Mr. Kenny, the laboratory administrative
officer. On September 25, 1970, Jones was off sick when she got a
call from a union member, apparently Mrs. Barbara Elwert, who advised
thet Hickerson was upset because Cranmer had just returned from a
trip and was angry about the leave incident; Hickerson wanted Jones
to come in and tell Crarmer that it was not her (Hickerson) that had
told Jones about Miss Spiegel's leave record. Jones did come to

the laboratory and speak to Cranmer. She advised Cranmer that she
had spoken about the leave problem to Mr. Kenny, the administrative
officer, but that no further action would be taken since the com-
plaint was not put in writing. Crammer replied that he was glad that
she had so advised him. He went further, however, to tell Jones that
she was the "focal point"” around which all the other trouble makers
revolved, that he was going to punish her and all the other trouble
makers he could identify, that she had better be careful about what
she did from now on, that she had better not be one minute late to
work, that she had better not make one mistake because he would use
it against her and "he was going to get her out of there.”

Cranmer explains the matter as follows. Spiegel was hired
in the Spring of 1970 as a biologist. Through some payroll problem,
she worked for the laboratory for a period of time without getting
paid. Moreover, her project involved the use of fish, and she would
come in nights and weekends to feed and water the fish. Accordingly,
with the consent of laboratory director Durham, it was decided to
reimburse her by giving her administrative leave for two weeks of her
vacation. Cranmer gave his timekeeper, Hickerson, the necessary in-
structions before he left in the latter part of August 1970, for an
extended tour of the country on laboratory business, from which he
did not return until September 25, 1970. Miss Spiegel was on leave
around the same time. :{_/

7/ Dr. Cranmer had "dated” Miss Spiegel. The laboratory had a
relatively small complement, and unfortunately there was some
unfounded rumor (Mrs. Jones was also guilty of believing in
the rumor) that Miss Spiegel accompanied Cranmer on his trip.



While on his trip, Cranmer received a telephone call
from Administrative Officer Kenny inquiring about Miss Spiegel's
leave, stating that Jones had complained to him concerning this
matter. Cranmer explained the circumstances to Kenny and reminded
him that he had cleared the procedure with Kenny and Durham.

Mrs. Hickerson contradicted Mrs. Jones' testimony, and
denied that she had ever complained to Mrs. Jones about having to
mark Miss Spiegel present. Mrs. Hickerson further testified in
substance that before Dr. Cranmer left on his trip he instructed
her to mark Miss Splegel present and advised her that it was to
compensate Miss Spiegel for work performed without pay.

That Jones became involved in the problem of Spiegel's
leave cannot be denied. Crammer admitted that while on his trip he
received a call from Kenny concerning Mrs. Jones' complaint. On
the other hand, there is a direct conflict of testimony between
Jones and Hickerson, as to whether Hickerson sought the involvement
of Jones and later reneged. As between the two, I find Jones'
testimony more trustworthy and I am crediting her. Her testimony
rang true and did not seem contrived. In fact, Jones' testimony
was corroborated in part by Mrs. Barbara Elwert, secretary to
Dr. Enos and secretary to the local, who testified that Hickerson
asked her to use her influence with Jones to drop the whole thing
as she was afrald of what Cranmer would do to her when he got back.
I can well understand why Hickerson would not want Cranmer to know
of any complaint she may have made to Jones. She was Cranmer's
secretary, and obviously a secretary's relationship to her superior
could well become alienated if she accused him of some allegedly
improper practice.

Cranmer's version of the meeting with Jones on Septem-
ber 25, 1971, is that the tenor of Jones' remarks was that
Miss Spiegel accompanied him on this trip and that he had carried
her illegally on time cards. Jones said a union member came to her
to complain about the matter and she was bringing the matter to
him. Cranmer testified that he told her that if she cared to bring
these charges up, to discuss them with Durham. Cranmer avers that
the reason Jones was in the office in the first place was that he had
asked her to come in and discuss her work performance. He stated
that he gave her this direction before he left on his trip. (In fact
before he left on his trip he had caused Jones to prepare & list of
tasks she would accomplish while he was gone.)
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There is an element of truth in both versions of the
conversation. Unfortunately conversations lend themselves to
interpretations by the time witnesses testify. However, it is
noted that Cranmer did not testify as to many of the specific
statements which Jones credits to him. These statements attributed
to Cranmer are certeinly compatible with the atmosphere of the
meeting, and I conclude that Cranmer did make statements to Jones
such as that she was the "focal" point of all the trouble makers,
that she had to be careful and not make mistakes or he would have
her out of there.

(2) Alleged Incidents of Harassment
Subsequent to September 25, 1970

According to Jones, all her problems with Cranmer arose
after September 25, 1970, because of her activity as union president
in connection with Miss Spiegel's leave. However, Cranmer testified
that from the time he took over the library in April 1970, he had to
orally admonish Jones because of tardiness and absence. He testi-
fied that often she was 15 or more minutes late to work and left
work often 15 or minutes before closing time. (The hours of the
laboratory were always 8 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. with one-half hour for
lunch - from 12:00 to 12:30 P.M.)

As early as May 12, 1970, Cranmer sent Jones a memorandum
setting forth procedures for leave and the necessity for rigid hours
in the library, as follows:

a. On a request for leave she would have to notify
either Mrs. Hickerson or himself; that informa-
tion obtained from others was not acceptable;
that the actual granting of leave would come from
him or in his absence from the officer in charge
or administrative officer;

That her leave record was in arrears and to make
up she could accrue compensatory time to draw
against rather than annual leave. Extra hours of
work, however, had to be approved in advance by
Cranmer;

Since there is no lunch room available at the
laboratory if she wanted to eat at a commercial
establishment and needed more that half an hour



she would have to make up the time; that her
schedule must be rigid since the staff relied
on the library and they had to know when they
could find assistance; that a few minutes one
way or another might waste a trip to the
library for a scientist and the only purpose
of support personnel is to save the scien-
tists' time.

Aside from the above instruction memorandum from Dr. Cranmer, Jones
received no memoranda from Cranmer complaining of specific matters
until after September 25, 1970, when the following incidents
occurred.

(a) Mrs. Jones' lunch period, Cranmer's memorandum
of Qctober 1, 1970

On October 1, 1970, Jones received a memorandum from Cranmer
referring to the last paragraph of the May 12, 1970 memorandum
requiring that her schedule be rigid. The memorandum stated further
that he was in the library at 11:35 A.M. and Jones was not there,
and that since she did not ask for a change in her schedule, she was
absent without permission; that he returned at 12:05 P.M. and still
di{d not find her in the library; that an explanation was required
before her record would be clear.

According to the unrebutted testimony of Jones and Barbara
Elwert, they had always gone to lunch from 11:30 to 12 noon, and
until October 1, 1970, Cranmer had not criticized this deviation.
Both testified that on that day they went to lunch together at 11:35
and returned at 12:05. Jones testified that she was very careful not
to take more than half an hour for lunch, especially in view of
Cranmer's May 12, 1970 memorandum and his warning on September 25,
1970 that she had better not take more than half an hour for lunch.
Both Jones and Elwert testified that Richard Cook was present in the
library when they left and when they returned, and that Cranmer could
have gotten assistance from him. (By this time, Cook, who holds a
masters degree in library science, was on board as a part-time
librarian, GS-9. He worked daily hours from 8 A.M. to 1:30 P.M.)
while Jones and Elwert quite definitively stated that Cook was there
when they left and returned, their testimony was slightly in conflict
as to why they surmised he was in the library while they were gone.
Jones stated that Cook eats lunch at his desk and when she and Elwert
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left, Cook was making his usual meticulous preparations for luach,
such as getting a cloth and napkins. Elwert stated that Cook was

at his desk working when they left, but was eating when they
returned. Cranmer testified that Cook was not in the library when
he (Cranmer) went in at 11:35 A.M. and returned at 12:05 P.M. He
indicated that he was not ‘'upset" by the fact that Cook was not in
the library since he assumed that Coock was at the University of Miami
library doing some research for him. Jones testified that normally
when Cook had research to perform at the University of Miami he did
it in the morning and came in late or left early to do it on the way
home, since he passed the University of Miami between his home and
the laboratory.

From that date, Jones changed her lunch time to 12 noon
to 12:30 P.M.

(b) Mrs. Jones' leave problem, Cranmer's
memorandum of October 2, 1970

The next memorandum from Cranmer to Jones came the next day,
October 2, 1970. On October 1, 1970, Mrs. Jones told Cranmer in the
afternoon that she felt sick, and requested one hour annual leave.
He concurred, but requested that she check with Hickerson. When
Jones advised Hickerson, Hickerson commented to Jones that she was
sorry that Jones had all this trouble. Jones replied that Hickerson
should not worry, that she would call Mr. Garrison (National Vice-
President, AFGE) and maybe he could do something about it.
Mrs. Jones left for annual leave for am hour.

After Jones left for the afternoon, Hickerson sent a memo-
randum to Cranmer stating in substance that although he had told her
that Jones was going home for illness, vwhen she asked Jones to sign
her card, Jones said the real reason she was leaving was to do some-
thing about Dr. Cranmer. Whereupon, the next day, Cranmer wrote to
Jones advising her of Hickerson's comments, and further warning that
unless Jones provided him with evidence to the contrary her absence
from 3330 P.M. to 4:30 P.M. would be regarded as "Absence Without
Leave.

Hickerson testified that Jones had advised Cranmer that she
was sick, but later Jones told her (Hickerson) that she was not sick
but was going home to do something about Cranwer. Hickerson testified



that she wrote the memorandum because Jones' time was not good and
she had to seek approval in advance for time off, so Hickerson
thought that it was her duty to advise Cranmer.

The Respondent emphasized at the hearing that Jones' leave
record was bad. Admittedly Jones used up and borrowed on her sick
leave in 1969 when she was absent for an extended time in connection
with a cancer operation. Thus, since June 1969, she has taken annual
leave only to cover both sick leave and annual leave. There is no
contention that she didn't have an annual leave balance on her books
to cover the hour. Although, the Respondent alleges that Jones was
a chronic offender with respect to annual leave, no documented
evidence was presented to show her record since her return from her
operation, nor was any comparison made of her leave with that of the
other employees.

Jones answered Cranmer's memorandum of October 2, 1970, in
a sarcastic manner, telling him she was sick and that if he wanted
she would get an “impartial panel,” that she would show him her "big
toe" (one of her ailments was an infected toe) and would "throw up"
if he wanted her to. She also indicated in the memorandum that she
could see nothing wrong with making a telephone call while she was
on sick leave. It is understandable why Jones would be sarcastic
under the circumstances.

On 10 November 1970, Mrs. Jones wrote to Durham appealing
with respect to the deduction of the one hour's pay pursuant to
FPM Chapter 771. 1In the letter she outlined her position in the
matter. (The union has no negotiated agreement with the Respondent
and there 1s no negotiated grievance procedure.) The Respondent did
not reply to this letter.

(c) Mrs. Jones' manuscript problems

On October 2, 1970, Jones was given a manuscript to type by
Cranmer (the Handy-Cranmer manuscript). Cranmer testified that when
he came back from his trip (the business trip described above when he
was absent from late August to September 25, 1970) there were many
manuscripts, etc., to be typed. All the girls who typed similar
documents were burdened with work. $ince Jones' job description
called for typing, he gave the job to her. He testified that this
manuscript was to be published in a trade journal, and he wanted Jones
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to give the manuscript priority. Jones testified that she had no
previous instructions on the proper preparation of such manuscript,
and this was the first such given to her, Her typing in the library
consisted of preparation of library cards, letters to publishers,
filling requests for reprints. The work on the manuscript was an
addition to her regular work in the library, On October 8, 1970,
Cranmer gave Jones a memorandum regarding her progress on the
manuscript. He noted that she had given priority in typing to other
documents. He directed in the memorandum that commencing October 12,
1970 she should budget 8 A,M. to 10:00 A,M. each day to typing manu-
scripts, until the backlog of manuscripts was dissipated; that she
should complete one manuscript before starting another,

On October 12, 1970, Cranmer again wrote to Jones complaining
that he had checked in the morning with her and found that instead of
completing the first manuscript, she was working on a second manuscript,
He further stated that her "failure to follow instructions led to a
sub-performance,"

On October 13, 1970, Cranmer again wrote to Jones advising
that he checked at 9:40 A,M. that day, and instead of working on
manuscripts Jones was working on reprints to be mailed, He warned her
that she was not to change her work schedule without consulting with
him. Jones testified that on the day in question, the Secretary for
Durham, the laboratory chief, asked her to assist in preparing a large
number of reprints to be mailed out that morning, and that she con-
sidered serving customers of the library to be her main function. She
testified this was the first time she was restricted to straight
typing for two hours without the option of helping somebody who came
in the library for books and reprints.

On October 15, 1970, Cranmer again wrote to Jones complaining
that he had observed her working on a manuscript out of proper order,
and that she had to follow his schedule and instructions. The record
reveals that the manuscript which Cranmer was complaining of was a
short manuscript which Jones typed for another scientist during her
lunch period.

(d) Restrictions on Jones' movements, Cranmer's
memorandum of October 16, 1970

On October 16, 1970, Jones wrote a response memorandum to
Cranmer, In it she stated that since Cranmer's "harassment program
she was unable to leave for lunch like other employees, Therefore



during her lunch period she typed a short manuscript for a scientist.
She stated further, "I am amazed that you would consider my voluntarily
typing any laboratory work on my own time as evidence of my bad
attitude., I bet you are the only supervisor in the entire Federal
government who would critize a subordinate for doing this,"

Mrs., Jones' memorandum explains her problems with the manuscripts and
concludes with the following paragraph: "I am also waiting to receive
your letter of admonishment which you began working on about the lst
of October. Since it covers my leave use, and attitude, et al, from
your unbiased viewpoint, it should be very interesting."

Cranmer testified that he was preparing a letter of admonish-
ment, which he never sent out. The typed draft was kept in his desk
and in it he used the expression “from my unbiased viewpoint." He
surmised that Mrs. Jones had looked in his desk, Thus, on the same
day, October 16, 1970, Cranmer sent Jones another memorandum giving
specific answers to her contentions in her memorandum. In the last
paragraph of his memorandum, Cranmer restricted her movements in the
laboratory when she arrived before 8 A,M, or stayed after 4:30 P.M,,
giving reasons for doing so as follows:

"Your comments as to a letter of admonishment should
be supposition on your part since I have not
discussed the issue with you or your comments are
an indication that you have obtained unauthorized
access to confidential material. Since you offer
specifics it appears you have improperly entered
my office or Mrs, Hickerson's desk, Since I have
had complaints about you being in areas other than
your duty station and your examining personal effects
on the desks of staff members and found you in the
door of my office on October 2 upon arriving at work
you will follow the following guidelines. If you
arrive at the laboratory prior to 8:00 AM or stay
past 4:30 you will not occupy areas other than the
zerox room, the library, the ladies room or the
receptionist area. You will not enter my office
at anytime I am not present.,"

Cranmer justifies this memorandum further on the ground that Jones
would stop other people in the reception area to check on their time
of arrival at work and time for lunch.

Jones testified that she did not look in the desks of Cranmer
and Hickerson. She stated that she merely guessed that Cranmer was
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preparing a letter of admonishment. Further, she heard rumors that
such letter of admonishment was being prepared, and she noted
Hickerson working very secretly on a memorandum,

(e) Requirement of arnual leave for tardiness,
Cranmer's memorandum of October 19, 1970

On October 19, 1970, Cranmer wrote another memorandum to
Jones criticizing her for writing long memoranda on government time
and stating that her work was in arrears, In the memorandum Cranmer
advised Jones in substance that if she was not on duty by 8:00 A.M,
she would be docked one hour annual leave; that she would not have to
wvork this hour but would have to be on duty by 9:00 A,M,, and if not
on duty by 9:00 A.M., she would be docked another hour of annual leave.

(f) Assessment of Leave Without Pay for
tardiness, Cranmer's memoranda, October 20, 1970

On October 20, 1970, Jones received two memoranda from
Cranmer., The circumstances were as follows, On October 20, 1970,
Jones arrived at the laboratory before 8:00 A,M. She proceeded with
Elwert to the office coffee pot to get coffee, (Use of the office
coffee pot was apparently the custom of many employees.) She arrived
at her desk at 8:00 A,M, and found the first memorandum from Cranmer
that day on her desk telling her she was late and would be docked one
hour, that she could take off an hour but must return by 9:00 A,M,
(Cranmer testified that he listened to the 8:00 A.M, news on the radio
in his office before he left the note on Jones' desk,) Jones
complained to Cranmer that he was mistaken about her tardiness, Jones
then proceeded to Dr, Durham's office to discuss the matter. She was
accompanied to the office by Elwert and Cranmer. There was a heated
discussion, where Durham sustained Cranmer, Jones then left with
Elwert and arrived at her desk at approximately two minutes after nine.
She found a second memorandum on her desk from Cranmer docking her
another hour for not being at her desk at 9:00 A,M, (Cranmer testi-
fied that the conversation in Durham's office ended soon enough so
that Jones could be at her desk at 9:00 A,M., but she stood around
Durham's anteroom discussing the matter with Elwert,)

Elwert's testimony confirms Jones, Cranmer had testified that
at one point Jones made an offensive gesture to him, which Jones denied.



Elwert also testified that Jones did not make an offensive gesture,
Elwert testified further that her supervisor, Dr, Enos, did not
charge her leave without pay for the time she spent with Jones, Nor
was she ever charged for being a few minutes late to work or from
lunch,

(g) Performance Appraisal of Jones,
November 1970

While the laboratory was under the aegis of the Food and Drug
Administration of Health, Education and Welfare, it used a performance
appraisal form which was used for promotion purposes. (The
Respondent was not certain as to whether the Environmental Protection
Agency would be using a similar form.) Cranmer prepared a performance
appraisal form on Jones as of November 12, 1970, to cover from
November 1969 to November 1970, The instruction on the form provides
that 38% of the employees should be rated as C (good), 24% B (very
good), 24% D (adequate), 7% (excellent) and 7% E (unsatisfactory).
Cranmer gave Mrs. Jones a rating of 1.8 or unsatisfactory., The form
lists 20 factors (given specific numerical weights), and each contains
five descriptive sentences (from a, to e.) from which the rater makes
his choice, the a, choice being the worst. Of the 20 factors listed,
Cranmer rated her a. or the worst on 8, b, or next to the worst on
10, and c¢. or middling on 2. Dr. Durham testified that this appraisal
given by Cranmer to Jones was the worst ever in the laboratory.
Cranmer gave Jones this appraisal after seven months of supervision
over her,

Dr., Durham rated Jones on an identical form in September 1969,
after Jones had been under his supervision for .two years, Dr, Durham
testified that he is very experienced in preparing appraisals, and
that he consjdered that his appraisals were honest, Dr,., Durham rated
Jones 3,1 or good (compared to Cranmer's rating of 1.8 or unsatis-
factory). On the 20 individual factors, Durham rated Jones d. or next
to the best on &, ¢, or middling on 15, and b, or next to worst on
only 1, Some comparative examples from the two appraisals follow,
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Productivity: Durham -- Handles about the normal work
load

Cranmer -- Tends to be a bottleneck in
getting the work out,

Quality of Work: Durham -- Quality of work is about the same
as that of most employees of this
grade and type of work

Cranmer -- His work frequently contains an
unacceptable percentage of error
or shows evidence of poor judgment.

Attempts to Improve: Durham -- Quite often goes out of his way
to improve his skills or knowledge

Cranmer -- Content to drift; generally un-
responsive to efforts to help
him develop,

Capacity for Development: Durham -- Has more than usual
potential for development,

Cranmer -- Potential for development
rather limited,

Attendance and Punctuality: 8/ Durham -- Takes a usual amount
of time for breaks;
requests leave in
advance, but isn't
much concerned about
the effect his leave
will have on the
workload,

Cranmer =-- Takes longer or more
frequent breaks than
most; tends to take
advantage of leave
privilege.

Cranmer's written comments attached to Jones' appraisal are so critical
that it would be difficult to conceive how she ever became a government
employee.

8/ This is the only factor in which both were relatively close,
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According to Cranmer, he showed his rating of her to Jones
on November 12, 1970, and offered to discuss it with her but she would
not do so., On November 13, 1970, Cranmer sent Jones a memorandum
offering her again the opportunity to discuss her professional appraisal
with him, and if she thought it was unfair to discuss it with Dr. Durham.
She did not answer, and Cranmer's appraisal of Jones was approved by
Durham on November 20, 1970, Jones, admittedly, showed her appraisal
to people in the laboratory and complained bitterly of it, This prompted
a memorandum from Cranmer dated November 24, 1970, criticizing her for
using her appraisal as a means of causing trouble, and that such comments
as, "Dr. Durham and Dr. Cranmer are both going to be sorry" for rating
her poorly were consistent with her attitude, Cranmer warned in the
memorandum that he would document such comments.,

Aside from Durham's appraisal of Jones, management voiced other
opinions which appear to be inconsistent with Cranmer's appraisal of
November 1970, In June 1970, Cranmer gave Jones a satisfactory rating
with respect to civil service requirements. Another indication by
management of her worth is indicated by the responses to her request for
a transfer in August 1970 to a vacancy in the training section of the
laboratory headed by Dr, Richardson. Dr. Richardson wrote to Jones on
August 14, 1970, thanking her for her application. He stated further
that he would be happy to have her, but that she had done a commendable
job in her present position and the potential in the library was greater,
He concluded, however, that he would initiate the transfer, if agreeable
to Drs, Durham and Cranmer. Durham turned her down on the transfer,
and in his memorandum to Mrs, Jones, dated August 21, 1970, 2/ he
stated, "I hope that you will continue to carry out your work in the
library with the same degree of interest and enthusiasm which you
currently display."” Jones again applied for a transfer to the training
section during the period of her difficulties with Cranmer, but Cranmer
testified that he would not recommend it since the job required a lot
of typing and he did not think Jones was qualified,

Mrs., Jones did appeal the appraisal to the Civil Service
Commission, But, the appraisal was an agency form not appealable to
Civil Service. Respondent indicated that there was some confusion as to
whether there was an agency grievance procedure in existence. At any
rate, neither of the parties are contending that there is an established
grievance or appeals procedure within the meaning of Section 19(d) of
the Order making such procedure the exclusive procedure for resolving
the Complaint,

(h) Further criticism for tardiness, Cranmer's memorandum of
February 3, 1971

9/ The record, at page 91, lists the date of this memorandum to be
October 21st," It is hereby corrected to read, “August 2lst,"
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The record reveals another memorandum from Cranmer to Jones
concerning tardiness, dated February 3, 1971, He stated in the
memorandum that in the past three weeks she was tardy on five occasions,
He specifically noted three occasions, (1) a morning when her husband
called in about a flat tire on her car; (2) the morning she required
the attention of Dr. Edmundson; and (3) Friday, January 29. The
memorandum noted that the required procedure was for her to call in, not
her husband, as it was necessary to have an estimate of the time she
would be delayed.

With respect to the three occasions specified in the memorandum,
Mrs, Jones explained that on the first occasion noted, she had a flat
tire and she told her husband to call the laboratory and explain that
she was having a tire repaired, She testified that in the past when
emergencies arose her husband often called in for her, and she had
never been questioned about this practice. The second occasion was when
she took a new form of medication, and became dizzy., In fact Cranmer
called a doctor to visit her, On the third occasion, a door into the
laboratory which she normally used was locked. This required her
walking around the building to another entrance which made her two or
three minutes late.

(i) Cranmer's meeting with Delisle, National Representative,
AFGE

On January 13, 1971, by prearrangement with Durham, James
De Lisle, a National Representative for American Federation of
Government Employees met with Durham and Jones in Durham's office to
discuss the unfair labor practice charge. Cranmer was not present,
After the meeting with Durham, De Lisle and Jones proceeded to the
library, where Cranmer met them, and asked to speak to Jones in his
office. Jones refused to speak to him without De Lisle's presence,
Cranmer then asked De Lisle to see him in his office, De Lisle
proceeded to Cranmer's office accompanied by Mrs., Jones, Cranmer was
very angry and spent several minutes complaining about Jones' alleged
shortcomings. The conversation became very heated and in fact the two
men went into the hall where others had to separate them. According
to De Lisle, Cranmer ended the conversation by saying, "I'm sick of this
Mickey Mouse union business, and it's not going to interfere with my, uh,
running my job," Dr, Cranmer admitted using the term, "Mickey Mouse,"
but stated that he had said, "Mickey Mouse issues continuing to require
union intervention," Later, Cranmer apologized to De Lisle for his
attitude, and both men shook hands.
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(j) Cranmer sets procedures for union activities on laboratory
time, Cranmer's Memorandum of February 1, 1971,

On February 1, 1971, Cranmer issued a memorandum to Jones
setting forth a standard operating procedure for requesting laboratory
time for union activities, Dr. Durham testified that Cranmer was not
in charge of labor relations in the laboratory, and that he did not ask
Cranmer to prepare such z wemorandum. He surmised that since Jones
was president of the union and Cranmer was her supervisor, Cranmer
probably felt it was his obligation to set up rules for union meetings.

(3) Discouragement of Membership in the Complaint

There was considerable testimony offered by the Complainant,
apparently to show actual discouragement of membership in and activity
on behalf of the Complainant caused by Cranmer's alleged discrimination
against Jones, Various witnesses testified that the Complainant
historically held meetings in the library during the noon lunch period
but since September 1970 no such meetings have been held. They attributed
this to fear engendered by Cranmer's actions. Further, there was
testimony that employees were afraid to join the Complainant or run for
office in the Complainant because of Cranmer's actions, However, there
was no direct testimony by any employees that they were frightened off
from engaging in such activity by Cranmer. The only such evidence
presented was testimony that various unnamed employees, some of whom were
“annual handlers,'" had indicated to another employee a fear of being
identified with the Complainant,

Conclusions

Qutlined above are numerous actions taken by Dr. Cranmer
against Mrs, Jones, The Respondent argues that Dr, Cranmer's actions
were not precipitated by Mrs, Jones' activities as president of the
Respondent, rather they were actions which were justified because of
Mrs. Jones' performance,

It is apparent from the record that Mrs, Jones had no training
in library science, and that as a GS-4 clerk, she could not be expected
to operate the library as desired by the professionals., It was for the
very reason that there was much to be desired in the library that
Dr, Durham shifted supervision of the library from himself to Dr., Cranmer
in April 1970, In May 1970, Dr. Cranmer outlined in writing what was
expected of Jones, He testified that he was unhappy with her performance
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from the time he took over, and that she often came in late, as much as
15 minutes, and left early, as much as 15 minutes, But, until September
1970, although Dr. Cranmer testified that he admonished her orally,
there were no written disciplinary memoranda issued to Mrs. Jones by
Dr, Cranmer, there were no assessments of leave without pay against
Mrs, Jones, and in June 1970, she was given a satisfactory rating on
the annual rating required by the Civil Service Commission. After
September 1970, Mrs., Jones was plastered with disciplinary memoranda,
was kept to a rigid time schedule (not permitting even a minute or two
deviation), was docked for slight deviations which were in the main
satisfactorily explained by Mrs., Jones, and was given a performance
appraisal by Dr. Cranmer which his superior Dr. Durham characterized as
the lowest ever in the laboratory,

In September 1970 Mrs, Jones intervened in the administrative
leave problem which was bothering Dr. Cranmer's timekeeper, Certainly
such intervention at the request of a member of the unit by a local
union president, is legitimate union activity by the president. That
Dr. Cranmer was upset by Mrs. Jones' intervention is apparent as
indicated by his interview with Mrs. Jones on September 25, 1970, He
accused her of being the "focal point” of the troublemakers, (It was
natural for her to be a "focal point" as she was president of the Union
and the trouble he was referring to was obviously trouble concerning
the administrative leave of Miss Spiegel which Mrs. Jones raised in her
position as local president.) He then threatened her with loss of
employment if she didn't follow his instructions precisely. It was from
this point that Cranmer's memoranda to Jones and other attions against
her started to flow,

A written warning was sent to Mrs, Jones by Dr. Cranmer on
October 1, 1970, because she was out of the library from 11:35 a.m. to
12:05 p.m. that day and the normal lunch schedule for the laboratory
was 12 noon to 12:30 p.m, Yet, it is undisputed that Mrs., Jones took
her lunch from 11:30 to 12 noon from the time she first was employed
by the laboratory., While on May 12, 1970, Dr. Cranmer advised her that
she was to follow a rigid schedule, he did not tell her that she had to
change her lunch period. She continued her own lunch schedule with no
criticism from Dr. Cranmer until after the interview on September 25,
1970, (His criticism allegedly was based on the necessity of having
somebody in the library to serve its patrons, Yet, at this time, there
was a part-time trained librarian employed who theoretically was suppose
to be in the library 8:00 a.m. to 1:30 p.m.)

Respondent evinced a great concern over Mrs. Jones' leave
Her leave problem arose from an extended absence in 1969 for
This absence not only dissipated her sick leave
As a result all leave taken after her

record,
a cancer operation,
but leave was advanced to her.
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return from her operation was annual leave, While the contention was
made that she was abusing her leave, there was no evidence actually
presented by Respondent showing excessive absence since her return from
her operation, nor was any comparison made of her leave record with
that of other employees, On October 1, 1970, she obtained permission
from Dr, Cranmer for one hour annual leave because of a bad toe and
other problems, She engaged in a conversation with the timekeeper and
let slip that she was going to call a union representative, Certainly
there is nothing inconsistent with making a telephone call while out
ill. Because of advice from the timekeeper, Dr, Cranmer wrote Mrs., Jones
the memorandum seeking proof of illness for just one hour taken., Not
being satisfied with her oral explanation (admittedly Mrs., Jones was a
bit sarcastic, but understandably so under the circumstances) he took
the extreme step of docking her one hour leave without pay. Nobody
else in the laboratory was ever docked under similar circumstances,

and while Mrs. Jones was characterized as a chronic offender, she had
never previously been criticized for taking improper leave,

Mrs, Jones’ next problems arose over the typing of manuscripts,
Of course there was nothing discriminaiory about assigning typing work
to her, However, the various memoranda received from Dr., Cranmer about
her performing work out of order, appear to be unjustified. Dr. Cranmer
had constantly stressed that her prime duty was to serve in the library.
Yet, one memorandum was prompted when she was preparing reprints for
mailing at the request of Dr, Durham's secretary (an important service
of the library). Another memorandum was prompted by the fact that
Mrs, Jones gave up part of her lunch period to work on a short manuscript
for another doctor at the laboratory.

Next in Cranmer's program of restrictions and disciplinary
memorandum was a memorandum of October 16, 1970, replying to a
memorandum from Mrs, Jones, In this memorandum because of language used
by Mrs, Jones concerning an anticipated letter of admonishment he
accused her of improperly looking at material in his desk or Mrs, Hicker-
son's desk. He then restricted her movements when she arrived at work
before 8 a,m., and remained at the laboratory after 4:30 p.m, to the
library, Xerox room, reception area or ladies room, This, in my opinion,
is a serious restriction on a union president especially where the
accusations of improper reading of private matter was mere surmisal and
unsubstantiated, No other employee was ever so restricted with respect
to non-working time.

The next memorandum to Mrs. Jones was Dr. Cranmer's requirement
of October 19, 1970, that she take one hour annual leave if not on duty
at 8 a.m. and another hour if not at work at 9:00 a,m, No other employee
was ever so restricted., On October 20, 1970, even accepting Dr.
Cranmer's testimony, she was only a few short minutes late at her desk.
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(Mrs. Jones, substantiated by Mrs. Elwert, testified that she was in

the building before 8 a,m,, but she and Mrs, Elwert, following custom,
stopped for coffee at the office coffee pot.) For this minimal
tardiness he sent her a memorandum docking her one hour leave without
pay because she did not sign an annual leave slip, Thereafter when she
returned to her desk two or three minutes after 9:00 a.m,, after she
discussed the problem with the laboratory chief Dr. Cranmer sent her a
second memorandum docking her an additional hour, This, notwithstanding
that he never docked her for tardiness prior to September 25, 1970, when
she allegedly was late as much as 15 minutes,

More serious in Dr, Cranmer's program against Mrs. Jones is
the performance appraisal he gave her in November 1970, It is inconceivable
that she could have been that bad, taking into consideration her performance
as a government employee for 15 years, Dr. Durham's appraisal, and the
fact that Dr, Cranmer, himself, rated her as satisfactory in June 1970,
(Interestingly, Dr., Cranmer testified that Mrs. Jones has now improved
and he probably would rate her higher now.)

The final memorandum to Mrs, Jones concerning her tardiness
was the one of February 1971, when he pointed to the three instances
discussed above, As noted, Mrs, Jones had valid explanations, which
under normal circumstances should have been accepted,

Dr. Cranmer contended that he was rigid on punctuality for
all of his employees and testified that he admonished other employees,
However, these were oral admonishments on an occasional basis., There
was evidence that he gave only one other employee a one time written
memorandum for tardiness. But, this was on an occasion when he gave
Mrs., Jones a written memorandum and the employee was seen by Mrs. Jones
to enter the laboratory after she did,

Dr, Cranmer testified that he had no animus against unions
and that his grandfather had been very active in a union, However, his
cavalier attitude toward the local at the laboratory and Mrs, Jones as
president, aside from his actions discussed above, is well illustrated
by his discussion with Mr, DelLisle, a national union representative,
where he either characterized the union as a "Mickey Mouse" union or
the issues raised by the union as "Mickey Mouse" issues, Further, he
took it upon himself to issue a memorandum to Mrs, Jones regulating union
activities, when labor-management relations at the laboratory were
not within his purview,

While a supervisor may admonish and discipline an employee

for infractions, under the circumstances of this case I conclude that
the excessive number of memoranda issued to Jones for relatively minor
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infractions, or in some instances no infractions, the restrictive rules
applied only to Mrs., Jones, the “"docking” of Mrs, Jones' pay and the low
personnel appraisal of Mrs. Jones' affecting her promotion opportunities,
all coming after Mrs., Jones, as president of the Complainant, intervened
in the administrative leave incident, were acts of harassement and
intimidation prompted by Mrs. Jones' activity as president of the
Complainant. lg/ This conclusion is especially warranted when considera-
tion is given to the fact prior to Jones' intervention on the administrative
leave matter in September 1970, no such actions were taken against Jones
even though Cranmer testified that her short comings were apparent way
before September 1970,

Section 19(a)(1l) of the Order makes it an unfair labor practice
for agency management to interfere with, restrain, or coerce an employee
in the exercise of the rights asaired by the Order., Section 1(a) of the
Order spells out these rights assuring that each employee "% * * has the
right, freely and without fear of penalty or reprisal, to join, and
assist a labor organization."” Especially applicable to Mrs, Jones, as
president of the Complainant, is a further clause in Section 1(a) providing
"k & % the right to assist a labor organization extends to participation
in the management of the organization and acting for the organization
in the capacity of an organization representative, including presentation
of its views to officials of the executive branch, the Congress, or
other appropriate authority.” Accordingly, I conclude the discriminatory
actions taken against Mrs., Jones, described above, constituted interference
with, restraint, or coercion within the meaning of Section 19(a)(1) of
the Order,

Section 19(a)(2) of the Order makes it an unfair labor practice
for agency management to encourage or discourage membership in a labor
organization by discrimination in regard to hiring, tenure, promotion,
or other conditions of employment, Clearly the docking of her pay and
her low performance appraisal constituted discrimination against
Mrs. Jones with respect to her opportunities for promotion and other
working conditions, As for discouragement of membership in a labor

10/ With respect to the grievances filed by Mrs. Jones with the Laboratory
Director seeking remedies for the deductions from her pay caused by
Cranmer placing her on leave without pay status and for the poor
performance appraisal given her by Cranmer, I do not conclude that the
Respondents failure to act on these grievances was violative of the Order.
Unlike the cases in which the Assistant Secretary found that the failure
to process grievances was violative, there was no negotiated grievance
procedure in existence in the instant case. See Veterans Administration
Hospital, Charleston, South Carolina, A/SLMR No. 87; United States Army
School Training Center, Fort McClellan, Alabama, A/SLMR No, 42,

Moreover, the parties were in doubt as to whether there was an established
agency grievance procedure in existence at the time because of the pending
of the transfer of the laboratory to the Environmental Protection Agency.
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organization, the Complainant's evidence of actual discouragement was
inconclusive, However, it is not necessary to the finding of a violation
of Section 19(a)(2) that there be proof of actual discouragement., The
gravamen of Section 19(a)(2) is that the discrimination would tend to
discourage membership in a labor organization. Accordingly, I conclude
that by discriminatorily withholding 3 hours pay from Mrs, Jones and

by discriminatorily issuing her a low performance appraisal, the
Respondent also violated Section 19(a)(2) of the Order,

The Remed

Having concluded that Respondent has engaged in certain conduct
prohibited by Section 19(a)(1) and (2) of Executive Order 11491, I
shall recommend that the Assistant Secretary order the Respondent to
cease and desist therefrom and take specific affirmative action, as set
forth below, designed to effectuate the policies of the Order,

RECOMMENDATIONS

In view of my findings and conclusions above, I make the

following recommendations to the Assistant Secretary:

A. That Respondent's pre-hearing motion to dismiss be
denied;

B. That allegations in the Complaint of violations of the
Order by the failure of Respondent to process grievances of
Mrs, Phyllis A, Jones be dismissed; and

C. Having found that the Respondent has engaged in certain
conduct prohibited by Section 19(a), subsections (1) and (2)
of Executive Order 11491, it is my considered judgment that
it would be appropriate for the Assistant Secretary to
adopt the following order which is designed to effectuate
the policies of Executive Order 11491,
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RECOMMENDED ORDER

Pursuant to Section 6(b) of Executive Order 11491 and Section
203,25(a) of the Regulations, the Assistant Secretary of Labor for
Labor-Management Relations hereby orders that the Environmental
Protection Agency, Perrine Primate Laboratory, shall:

1, Cease and desist from:

(a) Discouraging membership in the American Federation
of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 3162, or any other
labor organization, by discriminatorily issuing unsatisfactory
pefformance appraisals to employees and by discriminatorily
placing employees on leave without pay status, or otherwise
discriminating in regard to hire, tenure, promotion or
other conditions of employment.

(b) Issuing discriminatory disciplinary warnings to
employees,

(¢) Issuing discriminatory memoranda restricting privileges

of employees with respect to freedom of movement within the
laboratory on non-working time,

(d) In any like or related manner interfering with,
restraining, or coercing its employees in the exercise of
rights assured by Section 1{a) of Executive Order 11491,

2. Take the following affirmative action in order to
effectuate the purposes and provisiom of the Order:

(a) Reimburse Mrs, Phyllis A, Jones for three hours pay
withheld by discriminatorily placing her on leave without pay
status on October 1 and October 20, 1970,

(b) Expunge from Mrs, Phyllis A, Jones' personnel
records the unsatisfactory performance appraisal given her
in November 1970,

(c) Expunge from Mrs, Phyllis A, Jones' personnel records

discriminatory disciplinary warnings, and memoranda discrimina-

torily restricting her freedom of movement in the laboratory
on non-working time,

(d) Post at its facility at the Perrine Primate Laboratory,

Perrine, Florida, copies of the attached notice marked
“Appendix” on forms to be furnished by the Assistant Secretary
for Labor-Management Relations. Upon receipt of such forms
they shall be signed by the Director of the Perrine Primate
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Laboratory and shall be posted and maintained by him for

sixty (60) consecutive days thereafter, in conspicuous places,
including dl places where notices to employees are customarily
posted. The Laboratory Director shall take reasonable steps
to insure that such notices are not altered, defaced, or
covered by any other material,

(e) Pursuant to Section 203.26 of the Regulations,
notify the Assistant Secretary in writing within ten (10)
days from the date of this Order as to what steps have been

taken to comply herewith,

Hem-if/L. Segal
Heariflg Examiner

Dated, Vashington, D. C,
November 23, 1971
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APPENDIX
(NOTICE RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY)
NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES
PURSUANT TO
A DECISION AND ORDER OF THE
ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LABOR FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
and in order to effectuate the policies of
EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491
LABOR~MANAGEMENT RELATIONS IN THE FEDERAL SERVICE
We hereby notify our employees that:

WE WILL NOT discourage membership in the AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO, LOCAL 3162, or any other labor organization, by
discriminatorily issuing to employees unsatisfactory performance appraisals
and by discriminatorily placing employees on leave without pay status,
or otherwise discriminating in regard to hire, tenure, promotion or
other conditions of employment.
WE WILL NOT issue discriminatory disciplinary warnings to employees, and
discriminatory memoranda restricting privileges of employees with respect
to freedom of movement in the laboratory on non-working time,
WE WILL reimburse Mrs, Phyllis Jones for three hours pay withheld by
discriminatorily placing her on leave without pay status on October 1

and October 20, 1970,

WE WILL expunge from Mrs, Phyllis Jones' personnel records the unsatisfactory
performance appraisal given her in November 1970,

WE WILL expunge from Mrs, Phyliss Jones' personnel records discriminatory
disciplinary warnings and memoranda discriminatorily restricting her
freedom of movement in the laboratory on non-working time,

WE WILL NOT in any like or related manner interfere with, restrain or
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APPENDIX, cont'd

coerce our employees in the exercise of their rights assured by
Section 1(a) of Executive Order 11491,

PERRINE PRIMATE LABORATORY
Perrine, Florida

(Agency or Activity)

DATED By

(Signature)

This Notice must remain posted for 60 consecutive days from the date
of posting, and must not be altered, defaced, or covered by any other
material,

If employees have any question concerning this Notice or compliance
with its provisions, they may communicate directly with the Regional
Administrator of the Labor-Management Services Administration, U, S.
Department of Labor, whose address is Room 300, 1371 Peachtree Street,
N. E., Atlanta, Georgia 30309



February 29, 1972

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
SUMMARY OF DECISION ON OBJECTIONS AND
DIRECTION OF SECOND ELECTION OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
PURSUANT TO SECTION 6 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER 11491

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
AGRICULTURAL STABILIZATION AND
CONSERVATION SERVICE

A/SLMR No. 137

This case arose as a result of the National Federation of Federal
Employees (Ind), LU 1633 (NFFE) filing objections alleging that certain
conduct by the Activity affected the results of an election held at the
United States Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Stabilization and
Conservation Service.

A hearing was held before a Hearing Examiner involving the NFFE's
objection concerning alleged statements and conduct by named supervisors
in the presence of employees which allegedly affected the results of
the election.

Upon review of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations,
the Assistant Secretary found, in agreement with the Hearing Examiner,
that a shift supervisor's statement on the day prior to the election
that she would escort everyone to the polls and make sure they voted,
and her statement to two employees in the presence of approximately 30
employees that if they worked half as hard on the job as they did for
the union, they would both be in higher grades, improperly affected
the results of the election as such conduct constituted an interference
with the voting process. He found also that the shift supervisor's
entering the polling area and questioning election officials concerning
an employee's ballot in the presence of other employees constituted
additional improper involvement in the voting process and warranted
the setting aside of the election and the direction of a second election.
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A/SLMR No. 137

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, -
AGRICULTURAL STABILIZATION AND
CONSERVATION SERVICE

Activity
and Case No., 60-2151(RO)

NATIONAL FEDERATION OF
FEDERAL EMPLOYEES (Ind), LU 1633

Petitiomer

DECISION ON OBJECTIONS
AND
DIRECTION OF SECOND ELECTION

On September 30, 1971, Hearing Examiner Rhea M. Burrow issued his
Report and Recommendations in the above-entitled proceeding finding that
the United States Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Stabilization
and Comservation Service, herein called the Activity, has engaged in a
pattern of improper conduct which persuaded or influenced employees from
not exercising their freedom of choice in voting in the election. 1In
these circumstances, the Hearing Examiner concluded that the employees’
freedom of choice had been impaired, and accordingly, recommended that
the election held on December 9, 1970 be set aside and a new election
be directed.



The Assistant Secretary has reviewed the rulings of the Hearing
Examiner made at the hearing and finds that no prejudicial error was
committed. The rulings are hereby affirmed except as modified herein. 1/
Upon consideration of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations
and the entire record, including the Activity's request for review
of the Hearing Examiner's Report and Recommendations and the parties’
briefs, 2/ I adopt the findings and recommendations of the Hearing
Examiner except as modified herein. é/

1/ At the hearing, the Activity sought to exclude evidence relating to
alleged improper conduct of employees William Gilliland and Eugene Kalewi
on the ground that -the allegations as to their conduct were not part of
the original objections and, thus, were raised untimely at the hearing.
The Hearing Examiner found that until the status of Gilliland and Kalewi
was determined, testimony regarding their conduct was relevent to the
objection under consideration. I reject the Hearing Examiner's reasoning
inasmuch as the objections filed by the National Federation of Federal
Employees, (Ind), LU 1633, herein called the NFFE, named specific individuals
who allegedly engaged in improper conduct, and made no mention of any
alleged improper conduct by Gilliland and Kalewi. Because Gilliland and
Kalewi were not named specifically in the objections herein, I find that
allegations concerning their conduct were not properly before the Hearing
Examiner and should not have been considered. Accordingly, the Activity's
motion to exclude testimony relating to Gilliland and Kalewi is hereby
granted,

Also, the Activity's motions to dismiss the objections based on the NFFE's
alleged lack of an adequate showing of interest to process a petition and

on an alleged inconsistency in the Order and the Assistant Secretary's
Regulations concerning the determination of majority status are hereby denied,

2/ In its brief, the NFFE argues that there should not have been a hearing
in this matter and that the election herein should have been set aside and

a new one conducted inasmuch as the Regional Administrator had found "merit"
with respect to one of its objections. I conclude, from a careful reading
of the Regional Administrator's Report and Findings with respect to objection
5, that the seeming inconsistency of his finding "merit" to the objection,
while at the same time finding that a relevant question of fact existed, can
be explained as being essentially an expression of evaluation as to the
sufficiency of the evidence submitted in support of the allegation. Thus,
the Regional Administrator, in effect, concluded that the objection had
"merit" to the extent that it raised a relevant question of fact and, there-
fore, warranted the issuance of a notice of hearing.

3/ In the circumstances, I do not adopt footnote 23 of the Hearing Examiner's
Report and Retommendations, which referred to another Hearing Exeminer's
conclusion that a consent election agreement, under certain circumstances, is
final and binding, to the extent that it is inconsistent with my decision in
Deppriment of the Ar Meteriel Command, Autometed Iogistics Managemeny
Systems Agency, Af%LMR Yo. 112, Nor do I adopt the Hearing Fxsminer's find-
irps concerning the Activityfs mlleged violations »f Section 19 of the Order
ag 1 view such findings %to be irrelevant ard immeterial in & representation
matter.
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The NFFE alleges that on the day of the election herein Maezel
Baehr, a known supervisor, personally escorted a new employee into the
voting room and caused a disturbance when the employee's ballot was
challenged on a tenurial basis. It alleges further that on the day of
the election Baehr "continued her wrath on other employees,"

The evidence establishes that shift supervisor Baehr, on the day
prior to the election, stated to employees that she would escort every-
one (in her section) to the polls and make sure they voted and, in
the presence of approximately 30 employees, she stated to employees
Brockman and Herr that if they worked half as hard on the job as they
did for the union, they would both be in higher grades. The record
reveals further that on the day of the election, Mrs. Baehr escorted
2 or 3 employees to the polls, entered the voting area with one
employee, and questioned why his vote was challenged, stating in the
presence of approximately 15 persons that she was "going to Personnel
to see what she could do about it." Also, on the afternoon of the
day of the election, the record reveals that she stated, in a loud
and excited manner, in the presence of employees in her own section
and those in an adjoining section, that she was "going to start a war
of /her/ ouym."

The Hearing Examiner found that both on the day prior to the
election and on the election day, Baehr's remarks and conduct in the
presence of numerous employees had the effect of discouraging employees
from exercising their rights, freely and without fear of penalty or
reprisal, to form, join or assist a labor organization., He reasoned
that a known supervisor's presence in the voting area during an
election In other than an official capacity was improper in the absence
of compelling reasons or circumstances justifying such presence and, in
this latter regard, he found that the evidence in this case did not show
any justifiable reasoms or circumstances for Baehr's presence in the
voting area. 4/

In its request for review of the Hearing Examiner's Report and
Recommendations, the Activity asserted that the Hearing Examiner "magni-
fied the incidents testified to all out of proportion when he concluded
that a few incidents established a 'pattern of improper conduct' or
created an 'overall atmosphere of fear.'" In the circumstances, the
Activity was of the view that the Hearing Examiner's findings and
recommendations should be rejected on the basis that the evidence failed
to show that management coerced or intimidated employees.

4/ Insofar as the Hearing Examiner implies that a supervisor may be present
in the voting area in an "official capacity' see the Procedural Guide for
Conduct of Elections Under Supervision of the Assistant Secretary Pursuant
to Executive Order 11491 which states, in effect, that authorized ob-
servers will be selected from among nonsupervisory employees of the Federal
Government,
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The Procedural Guide for Conduct of Elections Under Supervision
of the Assistant Secretary Pursuant to Executive Order 11491 states
that,

"Neither supervisors, managerial employees, nor
labor organization officials should be in or near
the polling place while the election is being
conducted, Only official observers and voters may
be in voting places during the election.”

The above language reflects a policy which I have adopted to provide,
to the greatest possible extent, conditions which would enable employees
voting in a representation election to register a free and untrammeled
choice for or against a labor organization seeking to represent them.

In my view, shift supervisor Baehr's entering the voting area and
questioning election officials concerning an employee's ballot in the
presence of other employees constituted an improper interference in

the voting process and necessarily affected the employees' freedom of
choice in the election. Moreover, I find that Mrs, Baehr's conduct on

the day before the election and her additional action on the day of the
election, which occurred in the presence of numerous employees, improperly
affected the results of the election and required that it be set aside

and a second election directed.

The NFFE's objection also alleged that the remarks and/or conduct
of Art Loehr, Victor L, Mahan, Mr, Whalen and Mr. Schwaab contributed
to the disturbance and decomposure of the voting atmosphere. 5/ The
NFFE failed to present evidence in support of this allegation. The
Hearing Examiner concluded correctly that in the circumstances, the
alleged remarks and actions attributed to the above four employees were
permissible expressions of opinion of rank and file employees.
Accordingly, I find that the NFFE objections in this regard are without
merit and are hereby overruled.

Also, the NFFE alleged certain conduct by Mr, Leo Pete, whose
ballot was challenged on the basis of supervisory status, contributed
to the disturbance and decomposure of the voting atmosphere. 1In this
connection, I adopt the Hearing Examiner's finding that Pete was not
a supervisor within the meaning of the Order. Accordingly, because the
alleged remarks or actions attributed to him were permissible expressions
of a rank and file employee the objection in this regard is overruled.

27 The record discloses that the challenges to the ballots of Mahan,
Whalen and Schwaab were withdrawn and their ballots counted. Loehr's

ballot was not challenged.
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In summary, having sustained the NFFE's objection with respect to
the conduct of shift supervisor Maezel Baehr, the election conducted
on December 9, 1970 is hereby set aside and a second election will be
conducted as directed below. 6/

DIRECTION OF SECOND ELECTION

It is hereby directed that a second election be conducted as early
as possible, but not later than 45 days from the date below, in the
unit set forth in the Election Agreement dated November 24, 1970, The
appropriate Area Administrator shall supervise the election subject to
the Assistant Secretary's regulations, Eligible to vote are those in
the unit who are employed during the payroll period immediately pro-
ceding the date below, including employees who did not work during the
period because they were ill, on vacation or on furlough, including
those in the military service who appear in person at the polls.
Ineligible to vote are employees who quit or were discharged for cause
since the designated payroll period and who have not been rehired or
reinstated before the election date.

7 .

/ / ,
L
W, Y, Jr., Afsiftagt Beczetdry of

Labo r Labor-Mgnagement Relations

./

Dated, Washington, D.C,
February 29, 1972

g/ In view of my decision to set aside the election and because the evidence
in the record is insufficient to reach a determination as to the finding of
the Hearing Examiner with respect to the supervisory status of Tom Warren
and Bill B. Boyel, I find it unnecessary to rule upon that portion of the
objection regarding these individuals' alleged improper conduct.
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REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS ON OBJECTION TO ELECTION
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This proceeding was heard at Kansas City, Missouri on

July 7, 8, and 9, 1971. It arose pursuant to a Notice of Hearing
on Objections issued on April 8, 1971 by the Regional Administrator
for the Kansas City, Missouri, Region under the authority of Execu-
tive Order 11491 (herein called the Order) and pursuant to section
202.20(d) of the Rules and Regulations of the Assistant Secretary
for Labor Management Relations (herein referred to as the Assistant
Secretary).

The issue heard concerns one of several objections made
by the National Federation of Federal Employees Local Union No. 1633
(herein referred to as NFFE), in its petition filed on December 14,
1970 against the United States Department of Agriculture Agricul-
tural Stabilization Service (herein referred to as the Activity) to
an election held on December 9, 1970 for certification as the ex-
clusive bargaining agent for certain employees at the Activity's
place of business. The NFFE was the only labor organization involved
in the election and failed to receive a majority of the votes cast.
All parties were represented at the hearing by counsel, who were given
full opportunity to adduce evidence, examine and cross-examine witnes-
ses, submit arguments and submit briefs.

Upon review of the entire record, including observations of
the witnesses and after due consideration of the briefs filed by the
Activity and NFFE, the Hearing Examiner makes the following

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS
I
NFFE OBJECTIONS TO THE ELECTION
A, THE ELECTION

Pursuant to an election agreement signed on November 19,
1970 and approved by the Area Administrator on November 24, 1970,
a secret ballot was conducted in accordance with the provisions of
Executive Order 11491 in the following unit of the Activity's
employees

All Non-Supervisory General Schedule and Non-
Supervisory Wage Grade employees including Part
Time, Temporary, Intermittent, and Seasonal
employees who are employed by the U. S, Depart-
ment of Agriculture Agricultural Stabilization

and Conservation Service, with official duty
station at 8930 Ward Parkway, Kansas City, Missouri.
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The election was scheduled to be held in the Activity's
second floor Conference Room on December 9, 1970 from 7:00 A.M. to
5:00 P.M. with counting of the ballots to begin at 5:15 P.M. The
agreement provided that 'Managerial supervisory, any employees in
Personnel work other than in a purely clerical capacity, guards,
and Professionals" would be excluded from voting.

The results of the election held on December 9, 1970
were as follows:

Number of eligible voters 697
Void ballots 0
Votes cast for Petitioner Local 1633 (NFFE) 207
Votes cast against Exclusive Recognition 259
Valid votes counted 466
Challenged ballots 36
Valid votes plus challenged ballots 502

Challenges were not sufficient in number to affect the results of
the election.

B. THE OBJECTION NOTED FOR HEARING

On December 14, 1970 the NFFE filed some nine timely
objections to the conduct on the part of the Activity alleged to
have affected the results of the election. Thereafter, the NFFE
objections to the election were investigated by the Regional Admin-
istrator who issued a report finding that one objection (No. 5) by
the NFFE raised ". . . a relevant issue of fact which may have af-
fected the results of the election," and that a Notice of Hearing
on the objection would be issued, absent a timely filing of a re-
quest for review. It was further concluded that no improper con-
duct occurred affecting the results of the election with respect to
the other eight objections. There was no appeal from the findings
and conclusions of the Regional Administrator and on April 8, 1971
he issued a Notice of Hearing and directed that a hearing be con-
ducted on the following NFFE objection No. 5:

“Listed below are employees who caused a disturbance at
different times during the day. These disturbances
occurred both at the polls and throughout the building.
The Department of Labor allowed these people to remain
at and around the polls forcing their views and opin-
ions on other voters.

"Maezel Baehr personally escorted a new employee into
the voting room and caused a distinct commotion when
his vote was challenged on a proper tenurial basis.
Since Maezel Baehr is a known supervisor it is certain
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that her agitation influenced the voters present.
She did not stop there but continued her wrath on
other employees several times during the day.

"“Tom Warren, job scheduler, stated that the union was
comprised of lazy misfits who could not get ahead on
their own and need an organization to do it for them.
This was a direct effort to solicit negative votes.
According to the record his vote was challenged but
he told other employees it was not challenged.

"Mr. Whalen spent at least five minutes in front of
approximately ten to fifteen witnesses questioning
the challenge to his vote. When he returned to his
working area he openly campaigned for negative votes
by telling fellow employees how unfair the union had
been in challenging his vote. He also stated that if
the union won he would start a petition to protest
the election.

"Art Loehr accosted several employees in the coffee shop
and made vulgar remarks concerning both them and the
union. He stated that only communists would allow them-
selves to be involved with unions. In doing this his
language and manner were atrocious, certainly not becom-
ing to a federal employee.

"Others who contributed to the disturbance and decom-
posure of the voting atmosphere were Bill Boyel, Mr.
Mayhen, Mr. Schwaab, and Mr. Leo Pete," 1/

I1
PROCEDURAL ISSUES AND MOTIONS

It is deemed appropriate here to refer to certain prelimi-
nary matters and motions raised by the Activity and NFFE before
further discussion of the substantive issue. After the Regional
Administrator had investigated and issued the Report and Objections
on Findings on March 19, 1971, counsel for the Activity indicated
that it was his intention to file a motion with the Hearing Exam-
iner to have the showing of interest available at the trial. He
was advised on June 29, 1971 as follows: "You recognize the

1/ Later investigation which was substantiated at the hearing
revealed that the correct name and spelling for Bill Boyle was
Bill B. Boyel and for Mr. Mayhen, Victor L. Mahan and each will
hereafter be referred to with corrected spelling.
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existence of section 202.2(e)(3) of the Assistant Secretary's
Regulations which provide in part . . . the showing of interest
submitted with the petition shall not be furnished to any of the
parties or organizations listed in the petition. In view of this
strict limitation, I can see no useful purpose served by having a
copy of interest fn the hands of the Hearing Examiner. Whether
or not some one whose name appears on that showing of interest is
a possible supervisor is totally immaterial and irrelevant at this
time. (See 202.2(b) of the Regulatioms). . ." 2/

The motion was renewed at the hearing at which time the
Activity moved to dismiss the complaint on the basis that (1) the
NFFE showing of interest in excess of 30% included management and/or
supervisory personnel who are now claimed by the union to kave been
ineligible to vote; and (2) that there is conflict in the require-
ments of section 10 of Executive Order 11491 providing that in order
for a union to be certified it must be selected in a secret ballot
by a majority of the employees in an appropriate unit as their rep-
resentative and regulation 29 CFR 202.17(c) which states only a
majority of the votes cast. 3/

The Activity also moved to exclude any evidence that
might be offered by NFFE relating to alleged remarks, disturbance

2/ 29 CFR 202.2(f). "The Area Administrator shall determine the
adequacy of the showing of interest administratively, and such de-
cision shall not be subject to collateral attack at a unit or
representation hearing. Any party challenging the validity of show-
ing of interest must file his challenge with the Area Administrator
within ten (10) days after the initial date of posting of the notice
of petition as provided in §202.4(b) and support his challenge with
evidence. The Area Administrator shall investigate the challenge
and report his findings to the Regional Administrator who shall take
such action as he deems appropriate."

3/ Section 10, Executive Order 11491, "Exclusive recognition (a)
An agency shall accord exclusive recognition to a labot organiza-
tion when the organization has been selected, in a secret ballot
election, by a majority of the employees in an appropriate unit
as their representative."

29 CFR 202.17(c¢) provides, "All elections shall be by secret ballot.
An exclusive representative shall be by a majority of the votes
cast."
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or loud and angry conversation made by any individuals at or near
the polling place or any other type of improper conduct at or

near the polling place claimed to have been improper or calculated
to have influenced voters because authorized agents or observers
for the NFFE had certified that the balloting at the election was
fairly conducted and it should not now be permitted to repudiate
the certificate of its agents and to contend that the balloting was
not properly conducted.

I reserved ruling on the motions to dismiss for the
Assistant Secretary noting that under the Rules and Regulations 1
could only make recommendations with respect to disposition of a
case. I also informed the parties that I would pass or make recom-
mendations on the motion to exclude evidence relating to remarks,
loud or noisy conversation and other disturbances at or near the
polling place when I entered my decision with recommendations to
the Assistant Secretary. The Activity's motion to exclude evidence
as to eight of the persons whose conduct the union objected to on
the basis that they were regular employees who had the right to
speak out, rather than supervisory employees, was denied; this was
considered an assumption dependent on proof to be established.

The NFFE objected to the ruling of the Hearing Examiner
requiring it to proceed and put on its proof first in the case be-
cause the Regional Administrator had ruled in its Report and Find-
ings on Objections that improper conduct had occurred affecting the
results of the election which shifted the burden of proof. 4/ The
Notice of Hearing on Objections specified only that certain of the
objections raised a relevant issue of fact which may have affected
the results of the election. This did not alter the responsibility
of the NFFE from carrying its burden of proof to establish the im-
proper conduct alleged and that the results of the election had
been affected by improper conduct of the Activity. The fact that
the objection was ordered to hearing by the Regional Administrator
is an indication that he did not consider that the issue had pre-
viously been determined. In any event, 29 CFR 202.20(d) is con-
trolling in the matter and it provides: ". . ., The objecting party
shall bear the burden of proof regarding all matters alleged in its
objections to conduct affecting the results of the election."

4/ The Notice of Hearing on Objections by the Regional Adminis-
trator, dated April 8, 1971, is as follows: "On March 19, 1971
the undersigned issued his Report and Findings on Objectjions
copies of which were served on all parties, finding that certain
of the objections raise a relevant issue of fact which may have
affected the results of the election and Notice of Hearing on
Objections would issue."
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I am bound in my findings by the Executive Order and
the Regulations of the Assistant Secretary promulgated thereunder.
Apart from the fact that the Assistant Secretary has delegated
specifically that the Area Administrator shall determine the ade-
quacy of a showing of interest, that it shall not be subject to
collateral attack and that the showing of interest will not be
furnished to any of the organizations listed in the petition,
there was no timely challen